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with the Management Board
Jo Maes and Annemieke den Otter,

in the MT1000 list of best service

Ordina CEO and CFO, look back at 2017

providers in the Netherlands.”

What are your thoughts when you
look back at 2017?

What is the financial position
of Ordina?

Growth in revenues and result, but also

strengthen its financial position in a

growth with new employees. We all

number of ways. We once again closed the

worked incredibly hard to achieve that

year with a positive cash balance. That is

and it worked. In the second half of the

an important indicator of financial health.

year, we recorded growth in revenues in

And we saw a return to revenue growth in

both the Netherlands and in Belgium/

the Netherlands in the third quarter of

Luxembourg and we improved our result.

2017. That will boost our profitability.

We stepped up our recruitment eﬀorts to

In addition, Belgium/Luxembourg

boost growth with our own employees. We

delivered another strong performance.”

Jo: “Our top priority in 2017 was growth.

hired more new people in 2017 than ever
before, and I take that as an encouraging
sign. However, the remarkably dynamic
labour market is making it a real challenge
to retain our professionals. We will
continue to devote a great deal of
attention to retaining and incentivising

Annemieke: “Ordina has continued to
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INTERVIEW

Revenues and result declined in
the first half of the year. What
measures did you take to rectify
this?

Annemieke: “The first half results were
under pressure. So we intervened and

our talented employees.”
“In addition to this, one of our primary
focuses was on delivering added value to
our clients. And that also paid oﬀ last year.
For one, Ordina took first place in the
category Outplacement and Outsourcing

‘In the second half
of the year, we
recorded growth
in revenues.’
"

internal processes. By simplifying these support
processes and reducing management and staﬀ numbers,
we managed to make the Ordina organisation more
eﬃcient and eﬀective. We also chose to focus on five
business propositions, solutions we can unite behind
as a unified Ordina. All these measures helped us to
improve results in the second half of the year.”

Why did Ordina opt for five business
propositions?

‘By defining these five
propositions, we have
created a clearly
recognisable go-tomarket strategy and
improved our market
positioning.’

How can Ordina remain attractive to its
current employees?

Jo: “Ordina wants to deliver high performance, with its
own enthusiastic and enterprising professionals. We can
only do that by creating the best possible working
conditions that provide room for personal development
and career opportunities. Because the pace of change in
the IT world is so rapid, our employees have to keep their
expertise up-to-date, so we can anticipate and respond to
the market demands of tomorrow. You can only do that if
you have an agile organisation. We oﬀer our employees

Jo: “Market know-how is essential. That requires an

an environment in which they can continue to develop

external viewpoint. Conversations with our clients and

their know-how and expertise, both in the short term and

a thorough analysis of developments in the market

the long term. For instance, last summer we organised a

revealed a number of key themes that are relevant right

number of boot camps, giving our colleagues the

now. We subsequently combined our expertise and

likely to get worse. This is why we increased our

opportunity to gain certificates in a number of new

know-how into five business propositions based on those

investments in the recruitment of employees last year.

technologies.”

themes: High performance teams, Intelligent data-driven

For instance, we launched the recruitment campaign

organisations, Security & privacy, Digital acceleration

‘Do you look beyond the code?’. And we also developed

and Business platforms. By defining these five

an internal programme to recruit new colleagues via

propositions, we have created a clearly recognisable

the networks of our own employees. This helped us to

go-to-market strategy and improved our market

intensify our recruitment eﬀorts and we actually

positioning. And this has been successful, as we now

managed to recruit more employees in 2017 than

and has an impact on our daily lives and how we work.

have more than 60 High performance teams working at

ever before.”

There has been debate recently on the question of

our clients and we are also booking results with our
other propositions.”

What are your views on technological
developments and the impact they have
on society?

Jo: “Technology is more and more conspicuously present

whether we are not going too far with automation and
“The fact that we are not a niche-player, but also not a

whether robotisation is not putting jobs at risk. We

multinational, makes Ordina unique as an employer.

believe IT and robotisation oﬀer new opportunities and

We are a local player with short lines of communication,

new types of jobs. We believe that new technological

a low-threshold culture and broad career opportunities,

developments will create jobs. In the Benelux, we are

Annemieke: “Shortages in the labour market are a given

which the employees themselves can influence. And they

seeing the development of a manufacturing industry that

for Ordina and virtually every company in the IT sector,

have the opportunity to work - in teams - on interesting

would have been impossible in the past. And thanks to

and that is not going to change anytime soon. It is more

assignments with real impact.”

new technologies, Ordina can compete with low-wage

How is Ordina dealing with the shortages
on the labour market?
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reduced overheads. We also took a close look at our

#

countries on the IT front and actually
safeguard employment. But you can only
do that if you add value.”

Innovation is one of Ordina’s
spearheads. What is the current
status?

How do you mobilise innovative
strength to realise structural
innovation?
Jo: “That is the big question a lot of

organisations are wrestling with and we
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‘The fact that we are not a niche-player,
but also not a multinational, makes
Ordina unique as an employer.’

have structured our strategy to respond to
that question. Innovation revolves around

Jo: “Two years ago, we set up the

speed and agility: short-cyclical, working

Innovation cluster, to provide a platform

in teams towards clearly defined targets,

for innovative technologies, concepts and

with high levels of transparency on the

propositions. We have now reached a

progress made. That is where our High

stage in which innovation is supported

performance teams come into play.

across the entire Ordina organisation and

They help organisations to accelerate

we can surprise our clients with complete

their transformation processes. Together,

innovative solutions and projects that

we create sustainable innovation. What

make new technology relevant to their

this boils down to is that we want to make

business. That was also clear during the

the jump from being our clients’ IT

most recent edition of the Ordina

partner to being their IT and business

Innovation Days, with the theme

partner. This means that we look beyond

‘Innovative strength’. During the various

the IT side and proactively come up with

sessions, in which Ordina colleagues

innovative business solutions for our

presented ‘their’ projects and cases, it

clients.”

became very clear that innovation is a
basic prerequisite for added value.”

$
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This chapter gives you an impression
of the organisation, including Ordina’s
company profile. We will also describe
our activities in the Netherlands and
Belgium/Luxembourg and explain
the key figures. We will also devote
attention to the organisation’s most
important assets: our professionals.

%

Ordina has been active as an IT services provider
in the Benelux for more than 40 years. We closely

Revenues('&&,"

monitor the latest technological developments and
make these relevant by creating innovative business

Recurring EBITDA 14.5

and IT applications that add value for our clients.

Net profit 3.1
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COMPANY*PROFILE

Net cash position (year-end 2017) 10.9
In EUR millions

Ordina is active in the
Ordina’s head oﬃce is in Nieuwegein, the Netherlands.

public sector, financial

The company was founded(in()"-'.

services, industry and
healthcare

markets

Ordina shares have been listed on Euronext

.
We operate under
the brand names
Ordina, Clockwork
and SourcePower.

Amsterdam since 1987 and are included in the
Small Cap Index (AScX).

We provide our

services in the form of

professional services, consulting, application
management, projects and market-specific solutions.

partnerships

Ordina in the Netherlands

Ordina has

Our mission is:

and Belgium/Luxembourg

with companies including

Partnerships in

has around

Microsoft, Oracle, SAP,

Sustainable Innovation.
Our vision is:
IT that works for people.

!+#%$
employees

(year-end 2017: 2,559 FTEs).

Salesforce, Mendix,
Quintiq, T-Systems,
Pegasystems and Hippo.

&

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | ABOUT ORDINA

MANAGEMENT*BOARD

The Ordina Management Board consists of Jo Maes and Annemieke den Otter.

Jo Maes (1968)

has been a member of the Management Board since 1 January 2017 and
was appointed as CEO as per 1 April 2017, for a period of four years. He was
appointed CEO of Ordina Belgium/Luxembourg and a member of the Executive
Committee on 1 January 2014. In his capacity as CEO, Jo Maes is responsible for
the general operations, portfolio management and commercial affairs.

Annemieke den Otter (1979)

was appointed as CFO and member of the Management Board in September
2016, for a four-year period. She joined Ordina in 2013 as financial director
corporate and member of the Executive Committee. In her capacity as CFO,
Annemieke den Otter is responsible for general operations, finance & control,
facilities & purchasing, information management, corporate social
responsibility and investor relations.

'

EXECUTIVE*COMMITTEE

The Management Board is responsible for the strategy and management

The Executive Committee (ExCo) is responsible for the day-to-day,

of Ordina. The director of Delivery the Netherlands, the director of

operational management of Ordina. The ExCo consists of the members

Commerce, the director of Belgium/Luxembourg, the HRM director and

of the Management Board, the director Delivery the Netherlands, the

the director of the Innovation cluster report directly to the Management

director of Commerce, the director Belgium/Luxembourg and the HRM

Board.

director. The director of the Innovation cluster and the commercial
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ORGANOGRAM*ORDINA

director Belgium are regular guests in the Executive Committee.

Outline of the organisation

Ordina

Management Board

Netherlands
Innovation cluster

Belgium/
Luxembourg

You will find the legal organogram on page 159.

(

Key figures
In millions of euros, unless stated otherwise

2014

2015

2016

2017

Revenue

366.9

348.3

343.6

344.9

EBITDA

9.8

4.3

15.1

14.5

EBITDA margin as a % of revenu

2.7

1.2

4.4

4.2

Net profit

1.0

-3.2

5.0

3.1

Net profit margin as a %

0.3

-0.9

1.5

0.9

Net cash position

9.6

4.5

2.7

10.9
20.0

Cash generated from operations

20.1

2.6

5.6

Leverage ratio based on bank convenants¹

-0.8

-0.5

-0.2

-0.8

Interest Cover Ratio at year-end¹

11.8

18.8

54.5

57.7

144.6

141.8

147.4

147.8

61

60

64

64

133.5

134.3

136.2

131.8

7.1

6.5

4.7

5.0

Average DSO (Days Sales Outstanding)

48

56

55

54

Average DPO (Days Payable Outstanding)

59

60

61

59

Average number of staﬀ (FTE)

2,884

2,884

2,709

2,560

Average number of direct staﬀ (FTE)

2,548

2,541

2,394

2,263

Equity
Solvency2
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Average number of indirect staﬀ (FTE)

336

343

315

297

Number of staﬀ at year-end (FTE)

2,907

2,886

2,689

2,559

Number of direct staﬀ at year-end (FTE)

2,565

2,542

2,382

2,276

342

344

307

283

93

93

93

93

Number of indirect staﬀ at year-end (FTE)
Number of shares outstanding at year-end (in millions)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | ABOUT ORDINA

KEY*FIGURES

1) See explanatory note 17 of the Annual Report on page 136.
2) Shareholders’ equity as % of total assets.

)

2014

2015

2016

2017

-0,5%

4,5%

-3,3%

5,7%

Environmental targets CRS plan
Energy reduction per work space for electricity³
Energy reduction per work space for gas³

-28,7%

22,5%

-2,8%

-4,9%

Fuel reduction in liters and CO2 exhaust fumes per car³

-8,8%

-6,1%

-6,3%

-3,8%

CO2-reduction per FTE³

-3,8%

-6,0%

-3,3%

-5,7%

Maintaining level 5

Maintaining level 5

Maintaining level 5

Maintaining level 5

baseline measurement

6,9 and 6,6

7,1 and 6,9

7,1 and 6,9

CO2-performance ladder level 5
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HRM targets CSR plan:
Diversity (scores questions employee engagement survey concerning inclusiveness)
Social projects CSR plan:
Oranje Fonds / Ordina Foundation (hour)
Innovation Challenge (hour)

appr. 450

appr. 300

456

68

appr. 1.000 appointed

appr. 1.500

1.179

n.a.

3) Negative % is a reduction compared to previous year

Result

Last year also saw the implementation of the

its financing agreement with ABN Amro Bank and ING,

In 2017, Ordina recorded EBITDA (after deduction of

eﬀectiveness & eﬃciency programme, which had a

under the same terms. This extended the financing to

redundancy costs) of EUR 14.5 million (2016:

positive impact of around EUR 1.8 million on the

May 2020. The main covenants in the financing facility

EUR 15.1 million). The EBITDA margin came in at

result for the full year 2017.

are the Leverage Ratio (<= 2.5) and the Interest Cover
Ratio (>= 5.0). The Leverage Ratio stood at 0.8 negative

4.2% (2016: 4.4%). Redundancy costs amounted to
EUR 5.9 million in 2017 (2016: EUR 6.0 million).

Ordina increased its productivity to 68.0% in 2017

at year-end 2017 (year-end 2016: 0.2 negative). The

In 2017, there was one working day less in both the

(2016: 67.7%). Personnel expenses fell by

Interest Cover Ratio stood at 57.7 at year-end 2017

Netherlands and Belgium/Luxembourg. The number

EUR 8.3 million to EUR 220.0 million. The cost of work

(year-end 2016: 54.5). Both ratios meet the covenants.

of workable days was 254 in Netherlands (2016: 255)

contracted out came in at EUR 90.2 million, which is

and 250 in Belgium/Luxembourg 250 (2016: 251).

EUR 12.9 million higher than in 2016. This increase

At year-end 2017 Ordina performed its yearly impaiment-

Net profit came in at EUR 3.1 million in 2017 (2016:

was largely driven by the rise in the number of external

test. The outcome of this test did not result in an impair-

EUR 5.0 million).

personnel with high-demand profiles deployed under

ment. The headroom of the cash generating unit Delivery

the framework agreements with the Dutch government.

The Netherlands has declined and is limited at year-end.

A number of one-oﬀ items with a total net value of

Other operating expenses fell by EUR 3.0 million to

Ordina also evaluated the valuation of the deferred tax

EUR 3.1 million had a net positive impact on the result

EUR 13.4 million, partly due to the savings programme

asset due to these circumstances. In the financial

in the first half of the year. These one-oﬀ items included

and the release of the provision for vacant oﬃce space.

statement the details of the impairmenttest (note 7.6)

the release of the provision for vacant oﬃce space.

In April 2017, Ordina agreed the second extension of

and the deferred tax assets (note 10) are explicated.

!*

At year-end 2017, Ordina had a net cash position of

Net debt development full year 2017
Rounded in millions of euros

EUR 10.9 million (year-end 2016: EUR 2.7 million).

"

This improvement in the cash position was largely

%

driven by the higher cash flows from operating activities.
This came in at EUR 20.00 million in 2017 (2016:
EUR 5.6 million), on the back of strict working capital
management and an early payment from a major client.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In 2017, Ordina worked on its new Sustainability
strategy plan with the company’s ambitions for the
period 2017-2020. Ordina has enriched its vision on
sustainability with the insights it has gained in the

-"
-&
-'
-(

-"#$
Net debt at
year end
2016

-*#)

-)%#,

Net result

-$#'

-)%
-)"

*#%

-)&

Depreciation

-)'

previous plan period (2013-2016). Based on the principle

-)(

of value creation in line with the themes employees,

-"%

stakeholders. These include both annual goals and

*#&

-+#&
)#'

clients, society and suppliers & resources, Ordina has
formulated concrete goals with respect to the relevant
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Cashflow

--Debt-increase
--Debt-decrease

Working
capital
& provisions

Interest & tax

Net debt at
year-end 2017

Cashflow from
financing
activities

Net
investments

longer term goals.
We achieved almost all of our CSR goals for 2017.

measurement on sustainable employment, while in

the previous year. We also realised a reduction in energy

On the employees’ front, for the third time in a row our

Belgium we measured the average score of the

consumption per work station, with a 4.9% cut in gas

Employee Engagement Survey once again included two

evaluations of our training courses (measure: 8.0, target:

consumption, while fuel consumption per car was down

specific questions to measure the degree of inclusivity in

7.0) and the degree of participation (measure: 91%,

6.8% in 2017. However, electricity consumption per

our organisation. These questions were related to room

target: 80%). The pilot with people who find it diﬃcult to

work station increased by 5.7% in 2017. This was largely

for diverging opinions and attention to diversity. The

enter the labour market that we were looking to launch is

due to the diﬀerent use of our oﬃce buildings, some

scores on these questions were the same as last year and

currently in the planning stage but has not yet started.

of which were rented out on a temporary basis.

came in at 7.1 and 6.9 respectively. In addition to this,

We will launch this pilot in 2018.

For the results of the other themes, please see the

we carried out a number of measurements on the

On the ‘suppliers & resources’ front, in 2017 we managed

Corporate Social Responsibility chapter on page 60

training front. In the Netherlands, this was a baseline

to cut our CO2 emissions per FTE by 5.7% compared with

of this annual report.

!!

ICT.FOR.PEOPLE
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Niels & zijn High
performance team
The automation of a standard
statement for entrepreneurs
Niels’ motivation: not just doing a good job, but making
the difference in every assignment. Giving that little bit
extra that helps make sure your client is pleasantly
surprised. Thanks to close cooperation and a healthy
team spirit, the High performance team succeeds in
doing just that, time and time again.
‘If you work well together and complement each other,
you are more effective and more flexible as a team.
We also noticed that in the job for Rabobank. We
automated a standard statement for entrepreneurs.

Niels Heinis, Solution Architect at Ordina:

It’s now possible to complete this in an hour rather than

‘The chemistry in our team.
That’s what makes the diﬀerence.’

a whole day. The fact that our code saves the Rabobank
employee time is obviously wonderful. But that’s our
business. The fact that we not only deliver a good
product, but also ahead of the deadline, is truly down to
the chemistry in our team. That’s what makes the
difference.’
High performance
teams

!"

Professional services

Ordina is active in the Netherlands and Belgium/

Delivery the Netherlands and Belgium/Luxembourg

Luxembourg. We have around 1,900 employees (year-end

provide clients with a comparable range of services

2017: 1,831 FTEs) in the Netherlands and around 750

in the field of professional services, application

Innovations are arriving at an increasingly rapid pace

(year-end 2017: 728 FTEs) in Belgium/Luxembourg. The

management and consulting. We execute these activities

and have a profound impact on our work and our living

services we provide to clients in the various countries are

in both project form and other contract formats.

environment. Ordina follows the latest technologies

Technology is a key driver of change in our lives.

comparable, but there is a diﬀerent balance. For instance,
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ORGANISATIONAL*STRUCTURE

closely and makes them relevant in the context of our

application management and project activities represent

We have combined our activities in five business

clients’ business. We create innovative business and IT

a greater proportion of our revenues in the Netherlands

propositions to give Ordina a recognisable profile

applications for our clients that add value and provide

than in Belgium/Luxembourg.

in the market. These are: High performance teams,

tangible results.

Intelligent data-driven organisations, Security & privacy,
In the Netherlands, the organisation consists of Delivery,

Digital acceleration and Business platforms. We explain

Within our professional services activities we design,

the Innovation cluster, Commerce and staﬀ departments.

the five business propositions in more detail in the

build and test applications for our clients, both in the

The Innovation cluster comprises a number of units, such

Strategy chapter.

form of out-of-the-box solutions and tailor-made

as Security & Risk Management, SMART Technologies,

solutions. We do so by consistently making use of the

Clockwork and Codestar. There is no separate innovation

Our activities in the field of professional services,

latest development environments and technologies.

cluster in Belgium/Luxembourg, but similar activities

application management and consulting are closely

We prefer to work with our clients in multi-disciplinary,

have been incorporated in the units. As of 1 January 2018,

interrelated. We often start with a request for advice and

agile and DevOps teams, in which we build end-to-end

the units Smart Technologies and Clockwork, formerly

this may lead to a project and subsequently the design

applications that we test and implement with all due care

part of the Innovation cluster, were incorporated in the

and management of applications and systems.

at our clients’ companies. Our specialists are trained to

newly-founded Digital business unit, while the other

operate in an agile team, in both technical and

units were incorporated in Delivery.

operational terms.

Revenue per segment
In thousands of euros
The Netherlands
Delivery
Innovation cluster
Belgium/Luxembourg
Total

2016 1

2017

Development in 2017
compared to 2016 1

256,105

254,344

-0.7%

236,538

234,572

-0.8%

19,567

19,772

1.0%

87,470

90,544

3.5%

343,575

344,888

0.4%

1) 2016 figures have been adjusted to the current organisational structure for comparison purposes.

!#

Our application management activities are geared towards renewal,
continuous development and maintenance of IT applications, (cloud)
infrastructure and workspaces, on the basis of long-term contracts.
In a world in which IT plays an ever-growing role and in which new
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Application Management

developments are arriving at an increasingly rapid pace, companies
must be able to rely on the stable availability of IT systems. At the core
of the services Ordina provides is a guarantee of continuity, together
with the certainty that the IT landscape will continue to meet evolving
requirements thanks to continuous innovation. We apply innovations
in a way that ensures they provide clear added value. The contracts for
these services include an ever growing number of best value elements,
such as the realisation of shared goals, adaptability during the life of the
contract and a focus on the quality of the cooperation via eXperience
Performance Indicators. More than 150 companies and organisations
in the Benelux have been using these services for many years and have
awarded them a net promoter score of 96%.

Consulting

With Ordina’s consulting activities we provide the company’s clients
with advice on how they can translate their business processes into IT.
We provide advice on the optimisation of processes and how to improve
the use of IT. We deliver added value to our clients by connecting
technical expertise with know-how of the business. We provide solutions
in areas such as strategy, business processes, business intelligence and
chain integration, using the latest technologies. We combine know-how
with creativity and technology to arrive at sustainable solutions that
connect people.

!$
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Innovation cluster

Clockwork is Ordina’s digital engagement bureau.

Security & Risk Management provides safe solutions

In order to accelerate our innovation agenda, we set

This company delivers expertise in the field of digital

that guarantee the security and privacy of organisations

up a separate cluster in 2016 for parts of the company

organisational transformation. For instance, the bureau

and add value. Examples include pen testing and ethical

with an innovative character. The Innovation cluster’s

acts as a partner in the development of digital strategies,

hacking, but also privacy and data protection and secure

aim is to develop and provide a platform for innovative

develops social media campaigns and builds websites.

digital identification.

have been developed into fully-fledged services, they

SMART Technologies makes innovation applicable

Codestar develops modern web applications and

are transferred to Delivery and the cluster starts on the

for our clients by combining diﬀerent solutions in the

platforms. It is the home base for Ordina’s Scala,

development of new concepts.

field of virtual and augmented reality, robotics, smart

full stack and big data engineers.

technologies, concepts and propositions. Once these

sensoring, wearables and the Internet of Things.
Ordina’s innovation cluster currently has four main
lines of business: Clockwork, SMART Technologies,
Security & Risk Management and Codestar.

EBITDA per segment
In thousands of euros and %

2016 1

2016 1

2017

2017

The Netherlands

6,402

2.5%

5,700

2.2%

8,976

3.8%

5,983

2.6%

-2,574

-13.2%

-283

-1.4%

8,731

10.0%

8,833

9.8%

15,133

4.4%

14,533

4.2%

Delivery
Innovation cluster
Belgium/Luxembourg
Total

1) 2016 figures have been adjusted to the current organisational structure for comparison purposes.

!%

Added value

Our people are the capital of our organisation. After all, Ordina is a company where
we join forces to realise Ordina’s mission
and our objectives: IT that works for
people. Our professionals deliver top-level
performances at our clients each and every

‘This is how we focus on
keeping our employees
future-proof and at the
top of their game.’
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OUR*PEOPLE

day. That is where we make the diﬀerence
and where we add value. To be able to carry
on doing that – and continue to improve

particular field of IT, and broad-based

into the future – it is crucial that our people

general knowledge, this requires

are curious, have the right skills and

considerable know-how of and ability to

continue to develop both professionally

empathise with our clients’ business, as

and personally. By continuously enriching

well as highly developed communication

and updating the know-how and expertise

and social skills.

of our professionals, we are constantly
working to develop strategic competen-

Ordina invests in its employees. We believe

cies and anticipate tomorrow’s market

it is important to invest in permanent

demands.

education to keep our employees’

Sustainable relevance

know-how of new technologies up-to-date.
In the Netherlands, Ordina set up a

We are in an era of incredibly rapid change.

number of training groups in 2017, giving

It is crucial for companies and organisa-

employees the opportunity to gain the kind

tions to recognise the opportunities of

of expertise our clients need. We have

technical innovations at an early stage.

already done this for low code platforms

Ordina helps its clients to constantly

and we will continue these eﬀorts. In the

adapt to their changing environments.

period ahead, we will develop similar

That demands a great deal from our

initiatives, such as training groups for

employees. The so-called T-shaped

security and the General Data Protection

profile, combined with consulting skills,

Regulation (GDPR). This is how we focus

is becoming increasingly important. In

on keeping our employees future-proof

addition to extensive knowledge of a

and at the top of their game.

!&

DEVELOPMENT*WITHIN*ORDINA

Young Professional programme

and self-starters. These characteristics, together with

Academy facilitates this programme. In 2017, all our

We have a special training programme for our Young

thorough knowledge of at least one specific field of IT

managers in the Netherlands completed the programme.

Professionals. Recruiting and training young people

expertise, are indispensable to our employees throughout

It has a very strong focus on executive strength,

ourselves puts us in a position to respond more

their time with Ordina.

entrepreneurship and connections. Other important
themes include leadership and the impact of leadership

eﬀectively to shortages in the labour market, meet the
needs of our clients and capitalise on opportunities

The Business Game Changer plays a prominent role in the

on people and the organisation. The entire programme is

in areas where know-how is still scarce. In Belgium/

Young Professionals programme. During this hackathon,

driven by high levels of coaching and intervision. We also

Luxembourg, the Young Professionals programme is

Young Professionals devise innovative solutions for

oﬀer tailor-made packages of training courses available

called Kickstarter Class.

current issues in our clients’ businesses or within our

for every participant, based on individual needs.

own company. A pitch of the solutions to clients and/or
The Young Professionals programme also enables us
to develop the above-mentioned T-profile: employees
who are creative, innovative, solution-focused and
communicative, can work well together in agile teams
and are pro-active, alert to commercial opportunities

the Ordina board is a fixed part of the process.

Management Development programme
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Our people

Specialists programme

Development is for everyone at Ordina. In 2017, we
therefore decided to launch a specialists programme,

In 2016, Ordina launched a Management Development

based on the premise that Ordina wants to be a company

(MD) programme for its people managers. The Ordina

‘where you do not have to become a manager to make a
career’. In Belgium, we are launching a similar initiative
called the Accelerator programme.
The programme will help our professionals to make the
diﬀerence and do so sustainably. For clients and for
themselves. Over the course of two years, all employees
will participate in training courses and workshops aimed
quite literally at accelerating their careers. Not only on
the technology front, but also in terms of social and
organisational skills. The programme comprises a mixture
of theory and hands-on practical sessions. It oﬀers various
entry points and has been adapted to every type of expert
at Ordina.

!'

ORDINA*ACADEMY

Our own Ordina Academy facilitates continuous growth and
development. The Academy provides training courses geared
towards the acquisition and growth of IT expertise and personal
competencies. We believe it is important that our professionals
continue to develop and that they can constantly adapt to rapidly
changing circumstances.
The Ordina Academy helps create a culture within
Ordina that puts the pleasure of learning centre stage.
The Academy enables both professional and personal
development. The focus is on the immediate and
sustainable application of the subject matter taught in the

‘Futureproof fit’

thanks to boot camp
IT specialists know like no others just how
essential it is to remain up-to-date in your
professional field. Which is why Valentijn
Engels didn’t have to think too hard about it
when he got an offer from Ordina to take part
– via the Academy – in the in-house Mendix
boot camp. “No, that was not a difficult
decision to make. If you are given such an
opportunity you have to grab it with both
hands,” says Valentijn, who took part in the
boot camp with 30 of his colleagues.

courses. Our trainers are experts who are active in their
field. Ordina’s people learn with and from each other.

Innovative learning solutions

Ordina uses state-of-the-art training resources and
methods to ensure the optimum transfer of know-how
and expertise. What this means in eﬀect is that we
continuously develop our oﬄine and online teaching
methods to the highest level currently available. This
enables us to make sure that colleagues who work on
location at our clients and are not always able to visit

In just two months, the participants learned
pretty much everything they needed to know
about Mendix, after which they were able to
become Mendix certified developers. Mendix
is a model-driven development environment
that is extremely well suited for the rapid
building and implementation of business
applications. The major advantage is that
users don’t have to write any code to work
with the platform.

one of the Ordina locations on a daily basis still have
access to learning and training opportunities.
In addition to more traditional teaching methods, we use
e-learning, webinars and apps to provide our employees
with blended learning. Blended learning is the application
of both oﬄine and online learning methods in a single
training course.
Our employees took more than 100,000 hours in training
courses in 2017 (2016: 75,000 hours).

“The boot camp was a combination of
learning and practical experience, which
makes it an attractive proposition. You learn
the ins and outs of the software package and
at the same time you can apply what you’ve
learned in practice straight away by building
proof of concepts in a DevOps team. You can
learn the package pretty quickly, as you don’t
need to work with code. Because I have a

business background, I was able to make
good use of that knowledge in the practical
assignments. My team converted and
improved several legacy applications for
ProRail, including applications for emergency
procedures and the administration for the
issuance of hardware.”
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The fact that he attended the boot camp has
certainly paid off for Valentijn. He is currently
involved in an exciting project at the Dutch
Ministry of Public Works and Waterways
(Rijkswaterstaat).

Niek Schroten, initiator of the
Mendix boot camp, on the why:

“Ordina believes in smart solutions, such as
low-code platforms. This is why Ordina wants
to rapidly become a major player on the
Mendix front. To realise this ambition more
quickly, Ordina opted for a boot camp. Under
intensive supervision, we very quickly trained
and certified our Ordina colleagues in the
platform, right the way through from junior to
senior. Thanks to this approach, we have been
able to record very rapid growth in our
expertise in this field, in combination with the
know-how our more experienced employees
bring to the table. This results in powerful and
balanced teams, which helps us to provide
our clients with top-notch services on this
front.”
!(

Our people deliver top-level performances every single
day. This makes their vitality immensely important to
the organisation. This theme is also quite topical, as we
all now work longer and retire at a later age. Under the
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Vitality

motto ‘prevention is better than cure’, we oﬀer our people
a wide range of services under the header ‘Prevent’.
Prevent gives employees access to a range of healthcare
providers, from physiotherapists to psychologists.
We encourage our people to use Prevent to avoid health
problems. In 2017, 193 people used the Prevent services,
compared to 198 in 2016.

Ordina DevOps
MOOC
generates massive interest

Last year, the Ordina Academy organised
a free online training course on the basic
principles of DevOps. The so-called MOOC
(Massive Open Online Course) covered all the
basic concepts of DevOps over a period of
four weeks.
The interest in the MOOC was appropriately
massive. In just two weeks, 1,500 applicants
signed up for this form of digital social
learning. MOOCs, for which learning materials
are frequently offered free of charge online
and which put a high priority on the social

interaction between the participants,
are a phenomenon first developed in
the US. Universities and other colleges
are now organising more and more of
these online courses.
The Ordina MOOC dealt with a wide range
of subjects, including: what are the
consequences of DevOps for the participant
and the organisation, what mindset is
needed for a DevOps culture and why do
DevOps organisations opt for far-reaching
automation?
!)

RECRUITMENT*AND*GROWTH

Growth with our own employees

• (Re)introduction of an internal referral programme,

The 2017 management agenda shows one of Ordina’s

rewarding all employees via an incentive programme

top priorities: growth with our own employees, so we

for the introduction to a successful hire.

can safeguard know-how and experience for our clients

Employer branding campaign
#DoYouLookBeyondTheCode?

In a volatile employment market marked by an ever
growing shortage of IT talents, it is crucial for Ordina

in the longer term. Shortages on the labour market

In addition, we have made progress by actively

to bolster its brand as an employer and increase its

mean that recruitment requires ever greater levels of

involving all managers and teams in our recruitment

visibility in the employment market. In early 2017,

inventiveness. We are making recruitment a joint priority

eﬀorts. This is based on the notion that Ordina can

Ordina launched the employer branding campaign

by making smart use of existing Ordina (employee)

have a greater impact on recruitment as a collective

‘Kijk jij verder dan code?’ (Do you look beyond the code?).

networks and together communicating Ordina’s

than the recruitment team alone.

This recruitment campaign resulted in the first half year

attractiveness as a local market leader with short lines

in an increase of the influx of new employees in the

of communication, broad career opportunities and a

In 2017, we hired 528 new colleagues (505 FTEs), with

people-focused culture.

347 of these new hires in the Netherlands (328 FTEs) and

Netherlands of 20% compared to 2016.

181 in Belgium/Luxembourg (177 FTEs). In line with

The campaign focused primarily on our target audience

Ordina has taken action in a number of areas to make

previous years, we once again invested in the recruitment

‘on the move’. We shared our message in the Netherlands

significant progress:

of Young Professionals, and this included the redesign of

via posters at NS railway stations, advertising along the

• Introduction of a new role: recruitment business

the associated Young Professionals programme, which is

motorways and radio commercials during the morning

run by the Ordina Academy. Overall, Ordina is a very

rush hour.

partner (RBP).
• Even closer cooperation between the business and

attractive employer for young talents. Hiring young

our recruitment team: recruitment of new people is

people and training them ourselves puts us in a better

a common goal.

position to meet the needs of our clients more eﬀectively

• Redesign of recruitment processes, improvement of
the conversion ratios.
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and capitalise on opportunities in areas where know-how
is still scarce.

"*

cultural backgrounds into our pool of professionals.
However, we would welcome more multicultural
diversity among our management.
In Belgium, Ordina works with Passwerk for the
deployment of testers. Passwerk is a reintegration
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progress in terms of the influx of people from a range of

company for people with limited access to the
employment market. Passwerk employs the special
qualities of people with an autism spectrum profile
(ASP) with normal mental capacities to test software.
The professional support Passwerk provides, via job
coaching, compensates for any limitations the employees
with an ASP may have on the job front.
Ordina is also a member of the platform De Normaalste
Zaak. This is a network of large employers and small and
medium-size companies that are looking to operate on
the basis of inclusivity. They want everyone to have an
opportunity to participate in the employment market to

Inclusivity and diversity

While IT may be a growing part of our daily lives,

the best of their abilities, while making the best possible

Ordina is an organisation with an inclusive culture, with

relatively few women work in the field. The number

use of people’s diversity and talents.

the room required to accommodate diﬀerences in the

of women in the IT sector (10% overall, but 19% at

broadest sense of the word. In 2015, we added a number

Ordina in 2017) is far from representative of our society.

of questions on this front to our Employee Engagement

We feel there is an opportunity there. Because we have

Survey. The survey revealed that people do indeed feel

learned from experience that diversity at work makes

They facilitate know-how exchange, connections and a

that the company culture is inclusive. Although our

all the diﬀerence. Teams with a diverse composition

sociable and friendly atmosphere, plus they create

organisation scored a solid pass mark for diversity, there

perform better.

meeting spaces for like-minded people. In 2017, these

is still room for improvement. At Ordina, diversity is

Communities

A large number of communities are active within Ordina.

communities organised a wide variety of activities, from

about a lot more than just gender, race or ethnicity. It is

Ordina organises a number of activities for various target

the sporty BeNeLux Challenge Event to game nights, and

the sum of personalities, backgrounds and perspectives

groups that we believe could contribute to greater

from sports tournaments and tasting events to company

of all our employees.

diversity. For instance, we have an active women’s

visits. Internal networks, such as Young Ordina,

network, and a relatively high proportion of women in

Women@Ordina and #TrotsopOrdina (proud of Ordina)

management positions (27%). We are making solid

ensure that there is a place for everyone at Ordina.

"!

ICT.FOR.PEOPLE
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Miranda & the smartest
port in the world
Making smart IT intuitive
Digitisation. New technologies. Organisations that want
to stay ahead of the game are facing a major challenge.
Ordina helps them meet that challenge, in some cases
by creating new client experiences. The Rotterdam Port
Authority is an excellent example.
Miranda Woutersen: ‘For this client we developed
Navigate, the first navigation tool that maps out the
entire logistics chain in the port industry. My task as a
software engineer is to make smart IT intuitive. That
also makes me responsible for the user-friendliness of
the tool. I really like the fact that my work makes the
work of port employees and carriers so much easier!

Miranda Woutersen, So.ware engineer at Ordina:

But it is just as exciting to pull a major organisation

‘It is very exciting to pull a port
authority into a new era!’

such as a port authority into a new era!’

Digital acceleration

""
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EMPLOYEE*ENGAGEMENT

We want to create the best possible environment for our
employees, so they can perform in a pleasant atmosphere
and with enthusiastic professionals as colleagues. In
addition to appreciation and remuneration, we focus on
actively facilitating personal development and
encouraging entrepreneurship. Ordina’s culture is

Employee absenteeism rate

Number of employees (at year end)
In fte’s
307

created by our employees: our employees are proud of

283

the work they do, enjoy working in teams with their

4.3%

!$)#

2.7%

colleagues, value the internal openness and invest in
their own development. Ordina measures employee

!$)-

engagement every year to gain insight into what people’s
concerns are within the company. This gives us the

2,382

2,276

4.0%

3.0%

information we need to focus our eﬀorts on potential
areas of improvement and create an even better working

Direct

Indirect

The Netherlands

Belgium/Luxembourg

environment for all employees. The overall satisfaction
came in at 6.8 in 2017, unchanged from 2016. You can
find more information on the Employee Engagement
Survey in the Strategy chapter.

Male/female ratio total

Male/female ratio in managerial positions

18%

19%

25%

Age composition
11%

27%

7%

26%

12%

31%

25%

82%
Male

81%
Female

75%
Male

7%

25%

34%

22%

73%
Female

25 years and younger

36 - 45 years

26 - 35 years

46 - 55 years

56 years and older

The average age of Ordina’s employees at the end of
2017 was 40.5 years (2016: 40.6).

"#

Consultant

Age

Frans de Wilde

/001
23
Proud of

Working with people on
IT that works people.

What is your job at Ordina?

work as an analyst, I also run training

“I’m a consultant and I’m currently on

courses via the Ordina Academy and I

assignment at the Dutch Tax Oﬃce, where

coach colleagues in the use of agile and

I manage several teams that are working

scrum methodology. Yes, knowledge

according to agile and scrum methodology.

transfer is very much my thing. Most of

That’s running pretty smoothly right now,

my training courses are very hands-on,

so I can now focus more on supervising the

and participants have to get down to it

overall environment. We’re using the agile

and do the work themselves.”

framework SAFe for this. On top of that,
I’m an analyst with one of the teams and
my job is to get a better understanding of

What is your favourite project so far?
“That was for the Kennisnet foundation, a

users’ wishes and requirements, so the

service provider in the field of IT and

development team can use these in the

education. That was before we had agile

platform.”

and scrum methods and most of our work

Why did you apply for a job at
Ordina?
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Joined Ordina in

was done in short cycles. The assignment
was to build a website, but the project was
really struggling to get oﬀ the ground. After

“That was quite a while ago. I’ve been

a whole year they had nothing tangible to

working at Ordina since 2001. I was pretty

show. During my intake interview with

young when I developed an interest in

the project leader, I suggested trying an

electronics and information technology

agile way of working in a small multi-

and at that time you could only study those

disciplinary team. Every two weeks we

subjects in Delft. After my studies, I ended

showed the progress we had made to the

up working at an insurance company and

client and then we moved on to the next

then at Relan ICT in Zoetermeer. At some

steps. The project went like a dream. I was

point, that company was acquired by

lucky at that point that the organisation

Ordina. At Ordina, it took me a while to

was ready for such working methods.

find my place. Then when Ordina set up

Agile methods don’t work for every

the Requirements business unit, I jumped

organisation. For instance, organisations

at the chance and I worked my way up to

with a very strict hierarchy are especially

what I’m doing right now. On top of my

resistant to agile and scrum methods.

"$

Joined Ordina in

Redmar Verboom

Age

What is your job at Ordina?

working at Philips. I also applied for a job at

“I’m a junior business consultant and I’ve

Ordina due to the career development

been working at Ordina for just over a

opportunities and the wide range of training

year. I’m currently on my second project,

courses oﬀered by the Academy. On top of

this time at the Dutch Ministry of Public

that, you are given the opportunity to work

Works and Waterways (Rijkswaterstaat

on several projects, so you can discover what

- RWS). I started at the Social Security

you’re good at and where your preferences

Bank (Sociale Verzekeringsbank), where

lie. I’ve found that I find working with data

I was responsible for the functional

really interesting, especially when this

management of a tool. At RWS, my task is

involves converting data into insights.”

to generate more management data for
the management of the department I work
for. What that boils down to, among other
things, is the automation of data and

/5
Proud of

My ability to create
added value for clients
and Ordina in an
innovative fashion.

What developments in your profession
will play a role in the future?
“One development that will continue in

making sure that data is delivered in the

the years ahead is on the data-driven

right formats, but it also involves designing

marketing front. On the client-facing front,

processes in such a way that they run

organisations are making the switch from

smoothly. The management can then

segment-driven marketing to personalised

analyse that data, which helps them to

marketing. To do this well, you need to be

make better decisions.”

able to use your data to form a 360-degree

Why did you apply for a job at
Ordina?

/014
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Junior business consultant

picture of individual clients and then use
predictive models to tailor your marketing
campaigns at client level. Some companies

“When I was studying communication

are really good at this, like a certain well

sciences, I did a lot of quantitative

known wine store. For instance, last week

research, which involves a lot of work with

I received an email with a deal on a

data. And then during my internships,

carménère from a wine store I’d previously

mainly at Philips, I also got heavily

bought wine from. This means that in their

involved in data via digital marketing and

email marketing they use dynamic fields

e-commerce. That was also when I came

that adapt to the client on the basis of the

across people from Ordina who were

available data.”

"%

Joined Ordina in

Remco Runge

Age

What is your job at Ordina?

long about it. I still find the combination

“I started work as a Java software engineer

of personal attention, short reporting

at Ordina in December 2014. At the

lines and the innovative working climate

moment, I’m working on an assignment for

really appealing.”

Rabobank, where I’m working on all kinds
of applications on the mortgage front.
One example of these is the Rabobank
Hypotheek Dossier (Rabobank mortgage

What is your favourite project at
Ordina so far?

“Actually, I have to pick two. Last year, I

dossier). This application helps customers

worked on the internet of things diorama.

to determine their mortgage options. On

For this project, we combined an old-

top of this, the bank’s mortgage advisers

fashioned diorama with state-of-the-art

also use this application to provide advice

IoT technology. The result was a diorama

and ultimately to close the mortgage

with a living room setting, in which you

contract.”

could do things like turn the lights on and

Why did you apply for a job at
Ordina?

/016
/7
Proud of

How we work at
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Java so!ware engineer

Ordina, including the
opportunity we’re
given for continuous
self-development.

oﬀ using an app on your phone.”
“The other project was Hack A Drone.

“When I was studying for my Master’s

This was a workshop that we set up within

degree in Artificial Intelligence at the

JTech, to teach the participants how to

Radboud University in Nijmegen, I was

control a mini-drone using Java. So they

looking for an innovative company that

used Java to make the drone fly

would give me the opportunity to conduct

automatically and have it recognise

research in the field of image recognition.

objects via the drone camera with the aid

Ordina gave me that chance in the form of

of Deep Learning. This is an artificial

an assignment to determine the size of a

intelligence technology based on the

potato using smart phone photos. I’d

neural networks of the human brain.

already had a chance to experience the

The opportunities you get at Ordina

pleasant working atmosphere within

to continue your own development

Ordina before I graduated. So when they

alongside your daily assignments

oﬀered me a job I didn’t have to think too

makes Ordina a great place to work.”

"&
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WORKS*COUNCIL

The Netherlands

The Works Council protects the interests of our
employees and plays a role in management decisionmaking with an economic impact. Last year was another
year full of change, starting with the election of a new
Works Council.
In 2017, the Works Council once again played an
active role in reviewing a number of projects that had
previously been brought to its attention. A good example
of this was the request for advice on the subject of
‘secretary pool, service point and reception’. Thanks to

The Works Council assumes that in 2018 Ordina will

The monthly Works Council meetings dealt with

the fact that we maintain an active dialogue, we were

continue on the positive line that was started in 2017.

numerous employee-related subjects, such as

able to find additional ways to make improvements.

The cooperation between the Works Council and the

adjustments to the labour terms and conditions,

Always bearing in mind the realisation of the targets

management is positive and constructive.

the net bonus for all employees (CAO90), the training

we have identified and the retention of engaged and
enthusiastic employees.

Belgium

opportunities, the employment plan 45+, the wage gap
report and the Ordina oﬃces.

The Works Council and the Safety and Prevention
Another example was the request for advice on ‘the

Committee have a comparable composition and consist

The Safety Committee is actively involved in devising

simplification of the process from application to

of an equal number of representatives from employees

an adjusted policy on burn-out prevention and

deployment’. On this front, the continuity and

and the employer. The Works Council gives advice on

re-integration after extended absence. One of the

embedding of (new) responsibilities were reasons to

financial and economic issues that aﬀect employees.

initiatives on this front was a survey on the psycho-social

initiate a joint evaluation process with the management

The Safety Committee devotes attention to safety,

burden experienced by employees and the company has

during the request for advice process.

prevention and psycho-social risks.

set up a training course on this subject for managers.

In 2017, we launched the Eﬀectiveness & Eﬃciency

The cooperation between the OR and the committee

programme. The Works Council was involved in this

was constructive, with attention devoted to the interests

initiative at an early stage and was able to give its input

of employees, employer and shareholders. The meetings

on various projects proposed by the management. It is

in 2017 were conducted in an open and constructive

regrettable that we were forced to bid farewell to a number

atmosphere.

of colleagues as a result of the proposed measures.

"'

Ordina sees integrity and trust as two of its main core

Ordina has integrated the integrity policy in the

values. We monitor risks in the field of business integrity

organisation in a number of ways, including via reports

(including anti-corruption and bribery) and personal

and regular consultations:

integrity (including human rights) on the basis of our

• We have a clear process for dealing with incidents,

integrity policy. This integrity policy is based on three
pillars: policy, integration in the organisation and the
development of our employees. We devote a great deal
of attention to development, awareness and knowledge
on the integrity front among our employees. Ordina

as described in the Governance section of this
annual report.
• We have interdisciplinary consultation between
the Compliance Oﬃcer, Assurance Director, Privacy
Oﬃcer and Corporate Security Oﬃcer.

safeguards norm-setting parameters with an annual

• We have consultations on the compliance function

review of its policy documents, including the code of

with local Compliance Oﬃcers and Compliance

conduct and the related guidelines. We also review
and evaluate any suggestions submitted by employees.
In addition, an annual risk assessment of a number of
relevant issues, including anti-corruption and bribery,
helps us to determine whether any extra control
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INTEGRITY

confidential contact persons.
• The Compliance Oﬃcer has an internal duty to report
to the Management Board and the Supervisory Board.
• The annual report includes a report on the integrity
policy.

measures are necessary.
In 2017, there were no reports in the context of the
In the context of our integrity policy, in 2017 we devoted

integrity reporting scheme.

attention to the continued development of knowledge
and awareness of integrity issues among our employees.

Ordina includes the subjects raised in reports in the

These activities included the following:

annual update of the code of conduct, internal training

• The publication of news items with relevant cases.

courses and the related guidelines.

• On their first day with the company, new employees
are informed about how Ordina deals with integrity, in
a mini workshop presented by the Compliance Oﬃcer.
• We organise dialogue sessions on integrity issues
for specific target groups and use the outcome of
the annual risk analysis of integrity-related issues to
increase know-how levels among employees.
• We updated our integrity e-learning module.

"(

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | STRATEGY

STRATEGY

BUILDING!A!DIGITAL!
WORLD!THAT!HELPS!
PEOPLE"!IT!THAT!
WORKS!FOR!PEOPLE!

Rapid technological developments
are radically changing the world in
which we live, work and communicate.
This is putting a severe strain on our
adaptability, but is also creating lots of
opportunities. The application of IT
helps to solve countless business and
social issues.

!"

VISION

MISSION

We believe that IT is the key to solving a lot of the new

The humanisation of IT

Partnerships in sustainable innovation

IT provides an answer to major social challenges, such as

are getting smarter, more personal and more intuitive.

with our clients. We invest heavily in understanding and

a more eﬃcient government, aﬀordable healthcare and a

Technological solutions anticipate and respond to our

analysing our clients’ business, because we want to

clean environment.

needs and take into account our experience. Human

carefully apply the latest know-how and technology

needs and technology are converging. We expect

in the context of our clients’ business. What we see is

But if IT wants to play a decisive role in this eﬀort, people

technological solutions to be attuned to the users’

that the smooth running of primary processes within

need to be able to rely on smoothly operating and

personal experience. This ‘humanisation’ of IT sets

organisations depends very strongly on the flexibility of

sustainable solutions. Because only then IT will really

sky-high standards for design and ease of use.

the organisation’s IT environment. This means that IT

help people to deal successfully with the ever more

In addition to technological know-how, this requires

projects have become fundamental change processes: a

rapidly changing world and wil it create long-term value.

medical, psychological and sociological insights and

successful technical implementation depends on the

Ordina puts itself on the front line of that eﬀort every

new forms of leadership to create long-term value.

extent to which existing processes, roles and employee

single day.

Ordina is responding to these developments, for

responsibilities are able to adapt to these changes.

instance in our training programme and in the

That requires intensive cooperation, not just on the part

recruitment of new employees.

of clients, but also from Ordina as the supplier. And what

challenges companies are facing today. At the same time,

How we work is fully aligned with today’s challenges.

Technology is within everyone’s reach. Devices and apps

We want to forge partnerships in sustainable innovation

that requires first and foremost is the right mindset to

The times when this market was dominated by huge
IT volumes and large-scale projects are long gone. Now

We are fully aware that in the end everything is about

co-create and achieve the desired result together.

there is a growing need for compact projects that deliver

results. Not only do today’s users expect more options,

Of course, we observe the highest standards of corporate

results quickly; in short-cycle sprints with the flexible

they also want new solutions to do exactly what they

social responsibility in everything we do.

deployment of specialists, often using agile methodologies

promise. This is something that Ordina strives for 100%.

and focused on concrete results. Ordina does exactly that

Because we believe that IT should work. For people.

via new, extremely successful business propositions.
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It goes without saying that we attach a great deal of
importance to forging sustainable relationships with our
clients and our employees. This is the only way we will
always have the knowledge we need to use the latest
technologies to be of real value to our clients and to create
long-term value. Ordina is never far away from its clients,
knows the local market and local laws and regulations
inside out and adds to this knowledge by working with
partners whenever necessary. At Ordina, the lines to our
specialists and to our managers are always short.

#$

Adaptability

In environments that are changing ever more
rapidly, existing organisations and business
models can find themselves under increasing
pressure. New market entrants who know
how to deal with this pressure can and do
fundamentally change market dynamics.
This is why it is so important for companies
and institutions to recognise and seize the
opportunities offered by technological
innovations as quickly as possible. The success
factors in this effort are the utilisation of the
organisation’s own innovative potential,
connecting people and organisations with
intuitive technologies, plus the secure and
robust implementation of innovations. This is
where Ordina plays a vital role.

Innovative strength

It is extremely important for companies to
increase their innovative strength and Ordina
helps them do just that. We deploy specialists
with the right know-how in new technologies,
methods and operating processes. And we do
this with the help of dynamic working
methods such as agile, DevOps, scrum and
co-creation with chain partners. We put
together teams that combine young talents

with experienced professionals, which not
only leads to knowledge transfer but also
boosts our own innovative potential. This is
how Ordina increases its own innovative
strength through the deployment of people,
methods and technology.
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Our business themes

Intuitive technology

End-users want to stay in control of IT
applications via technology that feels intuitive.
This requires lots of attention to design and
user experience in the flexible and scalable
integration of new technical possibilities. We
connect people, organisations, information
sources and devices using technology that
works intuitively and we do this in such a way
that all actions can be data-driven.

Secure and robust

Technological innovation should never in any
way endanger the continuity and robustness
of existing systems. We safeguard that
continuity during the innovation project.
We establish a responsible link between
innovation and legacy by protecting all
existing systems and data. This is how we
continuously make sure that the systems
and data are secure and robust.

#%

Ordina has built its recognisable go-to-market approach
based on five clear business propositions: (1) the deployment of High performance teams, (2) the development of
Intelligent data-driven organisations, (3) our oﬀering to

High performance teams

positive side-eﬀect of this approach is that these teams

Our High performance teams are fully

inspire other teams within our client’s organisation,

focused on the development of innovative

which then step up their own performance.

solutions for our clients, on increasing the

accelerate operating processes via Digital acceleration,

quality of IT applications or on the optimisation of our

(4) the creation, maintenance and continued develop-

clients’ primary operating processes. These teams are

ment of Business platforms and (5) how we are able to

multi-disciplinary coalitions of professionals who have

provide assurance on the Security and privacy front.

mastered a whole range of technologies, from Java and

Intelligent data-driven organisations
An intelligent data-driven organisation is

fully aware of what is going on in the world
around it and is adaptable enough to

Microsoft to Drupal and Pega. True professionals who are

respond to current trends, developments and events.

These propositions are Ordina’s response to significant

used to working together on the basis of a shared culture

Ordina acts as the guide in the journey to data-driven

market trends and developments and are fully aligned

and a shared vision of quality.

intelligence and helps organisations to generate the

with our powerful combined range of expertise, based
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BUSINESS!PROPOSITIONS!

maximum value from their data. The result: a more

on a combination of tried and tested solutions and

High performance teams work together on the basis of a

eﬀective organisation, outstanding client experience

innovations developed right across the company.

DevOps culture. They diﬀerentiate themselves through

and the insight the organisation needs to use its

These propositions are the result of close cooperation

their high level of team maturity, marked by high levels

adapted business model to anticipate and respond to

between Ordina employees working in highly eﬀective,

of reciprocal coaching and the constant measurement of

tomorrow’s world.

multi-disciplinary teams. This is how we retain full

eﬀectiveness. Finally, Ordina’s High performance teams

control and responsibility for the projects we execute.

use a fixed set of tools and business platforms. This

There are three preconditions to becoming an intelligent

Plus, this approach creates the maximum long-term

combination ensures that the teams achieve their goals

data-driven organisation. Ordina helps organisations to

value for our clients and makes projects all the more

quickly and generate maximum client value. One

meet those conditions:

interesting for Ordina.

High performance
teams

Intelligent data-driven
organisations

Digital acceleration

Business platforms

Security & privacy

#!

external data sources, make sure that our client can
collate this data and make it available to the right
people in its organisation or to its clients.
• We oﬀer our clients solutions to analyse the mix of

Digital acceleration

ownership and enthusiastic users. We make this

In a digital world characterised by an ever

successful execution possible by involving all

more rapid succession of new technologies

stakeholders from the planning stage and making

it is extremely diﬃcult for organisations

sure that these plans for digital acceleration have

to stay ahead of the game. In this age of digitisation,

data, to discover new connections and to gain a deeper

companies that adapt their business model and manage

understanding of their own operating processes.

to carve out a new position on the market, improve their

• We make sure our clients can capitalise on
opportunities by adding data-driven applications to

chances of continuity and sustainability and remain
relevant to their clients and their employees.

their IT landscape.
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• We map out and review the relevant internal and

broad support.

Business platforms

Business platforms are crucial to
organisations for their day-to-day business.
They have to be available 24/7 and provide

It is important to note on this front that the needs and

the scope for value-driven innovations that improve

Ordina can provide organisations with support on fronts

expectations of these clients and employees are constantly

user-friendliness, performance and eﬀectiveness.

such as data migration, advanced analytics, meta data

changing thanks to rapid technological changes. They

Ordina sees a number of preconditions for the success of

management, data-driven applications and smart asset

want services to be available at all times, everywhere and

business platforms. They have to guarantee the continuity

management.

via every channel and they want to be able to interact

of day-to-day processes, ensure that an organisation can

with each other. And this is possible, for instance via the

profit from technological opportunities at low cost, move

use of intuitive websites, apps and IT applications that

with the organisation and the eco-systems in which that

are close to people.

organisation operates and enable the organisation to
innovate and upscale.

Ordina takes the following steps to realise this digital
acceleration:

We have four strategies to optimise the value of a

• In our Value Discovery approach, we combine

business platform:

technology and the business knowledge of the client to

Simplify – A business platform has to be stable. This is

develop new applications that create added value for

why we focus on robustness, flexibility, rationalisation

the client. In this process, we work on the basis of

and reducing the complexity of business platforms.

Design Thinking principles.

Surround – Business platforms are the standardised core

• We then deploy digital acceleration teams. Thanks to

of a process. By building agile development platforms

these multi-disciplinary teams, we can quickly move to

and standard business apps around this core, we help an

the execution of prototypes, minimum viable

organisation to increase the productivity and

experiences and minimum viable products, before

adaptability of their business platforms.

moving on to rapid upscaling.

Innovate – Ordina can create added value for its clients

• We call the final step sustainable activation.
Successful execution depends entirely on broad

by linking new technological developments and working
methodologies to existing business platforms.

##

strategically at the partner landscape and select partners
on the basis of specific needs within the business
platforms. These can range from experts for the
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Smart Partnering – Together with our client, we look

management of the legacy systems to specialists for the
management and development of (multi) cloud solutions.

Security & privacy

In addition to the countless new opportunities it creates, digitisation also comes with a
new range of threats, such as cyber-attacks
and identity fraud. Stricter requirements and increasing
risks demand a proactive approach on the security and
privacy front. It is a challenge to choose and implement
the right measures under the constraints of minimum
capacity and the most eﬃcient budget possible.
Our motto goes ‘a bit more secure tomorrow than today’.
Do not immediately take an all-out approach to security
& privacy, but instead increase your data security in
practical ways and in phases. And do it in specific areas
that are important to your organisation. And focused on
actual threats.
An overall approach is necessary to safeguard security
and resistance to attacks. This has to cover technical and
organisational issues, but also staﬀ-related aspects.
Using flexible teams and a range of specialised expertise,
we take an agile approach to security to address your
business priorities.

#&

ICT!VOOR!MENSEN
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Marco & het datadriven land registry
Thinking outside the box
Intelligent, data-driven organisations are flexible and
can move with the times. Ordina helps them to do this
and makes sure that organisations can generate the
maximum value from their data. The Dutch Land
Registry came to us with the request to digitise
geographical data and give it back it to the Dutch
people. Marco Brattinga was the right man for the job.

Marco Bra#inga,
Senior principle expert at Ordina:

‘We opted for an open data platform, which the Land
Registry uses to provide data sets. One important part
of the platform is a catalogue that shows users what

‘You cannot make it more
transparent than that!’

data is relevant for them and how they can use it.
You cannot make it more transparent than that!
This project is one I will definitely remember. The Land
Registry was willing to listen to our solutions and think
outside the box. That meant we were able to create
something truly exceptional.’

Intelligent data-driven
organisations

#'

Improved returns

Growth

term sustainable value creation via innovative solutions

safeguard the continuity of the organisation. This level of

added value to clients in the Netherlands, Belgium and

that are relevant and attractive to our clients and

return would put us among the most profitable companies

Luxembourg. Thanks to our specific knowledge of local

employees. To realise this long-term value creation,

in our sector. In 2017, our EBITDA margin was 4.2%

markets and local legislation, we are able to develop

we have defined five concrete goals:

(2016: 4.4%). In addition to this, we are aiming for a

relevant solutions that help our clients to realise their

• Improved returns

balanced cost structure, with low overheads, optimal

goals. Our growth will be generated on a number of fronts:

• Growth

productivity and availability below 10%. In 2017, our

1. Growth with our key clients by developing and growing

• High-grade services

availability level was 9.2% (2016: 9.0%).

Ordina wants to be in the leading group of companies in
the IT sector. To achieve this ambition, we aim for long-

Ordina is aiming for an EBITDA margin of 7-9% to

from a reliable IT partner to an IT and business partner

• High employee engagement
• Corporate social responsibility

Ordina is looking to realise revenue growth by oﬀering
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GOALS

and proactively devising innovative business solutions.
2. A number one position with local mid-size clients

Result - EBITDA margin
In %
*)

by acting quickly and combining our expertise by
providing them with a full range of solutions and
complete peace of mind.

Ambition"level#"$-&'

3. Growth via our own direct employees, enabling our
enthusiastic and enterprising professionals to deliver
top performances by creating optimum working
conditions, which include room for personal develop-

+,+

(,$

ment and the encouragement of entrepreneurship.

$%&

competencies by continuously enhancing and

*,(

)
()*+

()*-

We are also working on the development of strategic
updating the expertise and skills of both our employees

()*.

&'()

and our managers.

#(

Ordina Promotor Score

and every year they expect more from our people and

&)

Our clients continue to set the bar higher and higher
our services. That keeps us on our toes in our continuous
eﬀort to improve. By focusing on client satisfaction, we
are systematically strengthening the dialogue with our
clients to make sure we continue to oﬀer our clients an
outstanding level of service.
And this eﬀort is paying oﬀ, because Ordina scores well
in external surveys. For instance, Ordina came in first

/+,0

‘Ordina came in first
in the Secondment &
Outsourcing category
of the MT1000.’

/*,0

/)
$)
.)

./
.-,.

$(

.$,(

*+%,
+$%'
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()*+

in the Secondment & Outsourcing category of the
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High-grade services

()*-

()*.
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MT1000, in which Management Team conducts an
annual survey on the quality and popularity of the best
service providers in the Netherlands. On top of this, we
recorded a Recommendation Score of 96% in the Giarte

Ordina Client Satisfaction

Outsourcing Performance study, which was Ordina’s
highest score in the thirteen years it has participated in
the study. The annual Giarte study measures clients’
perceptions of their outsourcing providers. According

/

$,/

$,&

$,)

$,*

()*+

()*-

$,/

to this study, Ordina was most valued for its openness
and reliability in its relationship with clients.
Ordina uses a range of instruments for its own
measurements of client satisfaction. In addition to
the Ordina Promotor Score (OPS), in which we look

$

)%*

.,&

)%'

()*.

&'()

.

at the likes of our portfolio, innovation and industry
knowledge, we conduct a client satisfaction survey
among our clients in both the Netherlands and
Belgium/Luxembourg. We use this so-called Client
satisfaction index (Klantevredenheidsindex - KTI) to

The"Netherlands
Belgium"/Luxembourg
Ambition"level#"minimal"$,)

measure the overall satisfaction of our clients and

#)

This indicates that satisfaction is stable. Our ambition is

clients to identify the strengths and weaknesses of our

to realise an above-average employee engagement score,

services, expertise and products. On the basis of these

together with our employees. Last year’s response among

measurements, we then get together with our clients to

employees was the highest in three years and stood at

devise an action plan to improve our services should

79.7%. The survey revealed, among other things, that

this be necessary.

training & mentoring, organisation & culture and the job
on oﬀer were the main reasons to join Ordina.

In the Netherlands, the OPS was 65.3 in 2017 (2016:
72.0) and 54.0 (2016: 81.3) in Belgium/Luxembourg.

In 2017, we once again devoted attention to the

We have noted a shift in the number of promoters

engagement of our employees in the organisation, among

to passives. We have initiated improvement plans to

other things by organising so-called pizza sessions, in

rectify this. In 2017, the KTI was 7.0 (2016: 6.9) in the

which employees were given the opportunity to discuss

Netherlands. In Belgium/Luxembourg, the KTI came

various issues with a member of the Management Board

in at 7.6 (2016: 7.8).

in an informal setting. In these sessions, the board

High employee engagement

Ordina is by its very nature a people company and
therefore wants to remain one of the top IT employers.
We invest in the development, training and vitality of
our employees. As an employer, we want to achieve a

members and employees brainstorm on important
themes such as engaging and exciting employees and
how we can recruit the best people on the job market.

Ordina Employee engagement
/

)%)
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conduct research on Ordina’s image. We also ask

-

The"Netherlands
Belgium/Luxembourg
Ambition"level#"minimal"$1)

Corporate social responsibility

Together with our clients and our employees, we develop

minimum score of 7.0 in our annual employee

sustainable digital solutions that can improve people’s

engagement survey. We see this as an important

quality of life and the world around us. In line with this

indicator that we are in the top quartile in the sector.

vision, Ordina’s CSR policy focuses on five themes:

Within Ordina as a whole, we recorded an employee

employees, clients, society, suppliers & resources and

engagement score of 6.8 in 2017 (2016: 6.8). In the

external obligations & validation. We have set concrete

Netherlands, this score came in at 6.4 (2016: 6.5).

targets for each theme. For more information on this

In Belgium/Luxembourg, this score was 7.7 in 2017

subject, please see the Corporate social responsibility

(2016: 7.6).

section on page 60 of this annual report.

‘Ordina is by its very
nature a people company.’

#*
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MARKETS

Ordina is active in four markets: the public sector,
financial services, industry and healthcare. We help
clients realise business and IT solutions.

Revenue per market segment
In thousands of euros

2016 1

2017

Development
in 2017
compared to
2016 1

Public

116,513

127,093

9.1%

Finance

101,291

95,748

-5.5%

Industry

101,058

99,560

-1.5%

24,713

22,487

-9.0%

343,575

344,888

0.4%

Healthcare
Total

1) 2016 figures have been adjusted for comparison purposes due to the reclassification of
a number of clients.

#"
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Markets
PUBLIC!SECTOR

Realising quality targets through
the digitisation of services
Public sector institutions are facing a number of complex

reason to enter into eﬀective consultations with clients

challenges. From keeping healthcare aﬀordable and

to prioritise the quality and the results of IT projects.

the creation of digital services for matters such as VAT
returns and permit applications to the reduction of CO2

An e icient, facilitating public sector

The big question is: how can we use IT to meet and over-

for more eﬃciency, digital links between the public

come these social challenges and at the same time realise

sector, citizens and the business community are vital to

digital ambitions at national, regional and local levels?

the future liveability, accessibility and security of our

emissions and devising protections against cyber-crime.

Digital ambition and the human dimension

Due to ongoing decentralisation initiatives and the need

society. At the same time, citizens are expected to be
more self-suﬃcient and play a more active role in society.

The public sector can go a long way towards realising

All of this is aimed at preserving social services and

its quality ambitions by digitising services. On the

prosperity in the future. A society in which citizens can

condition that it respects the human dimension, that

also help each other requires a facilitating public sector

the technology feels ‘close’ to people and leads to

and IT systems that are fully aligned with this

meaningful contact. The IT sector provides the support

interaction. Existing systems need to be made more

the public sector needs in this digital transformation.

flexible by adding user-friendly interfaces that can be

Expectations seem to have been tempered due to the

operated intuitively. This is where Ordina can help the

public discussion regarding major IT projects and

public sector and citizens to forge connections and

government tenders. Ordina sees this as even more

interact with each other.

&$

Through the expert’s eyes
focused fashion and more safely, plus
they have both hands free for their

Two-speed digitisation

The public sector’s targets on the digital services front

engineering tasks. Thanks to the

are defined in the digital agenda. In this document,

Microsoft HoloLens, flicking through

the government has expressed its ambition to create

instruction books is now a thing of the

conditions in which citizens and companies interact with

past. It took the close-knit team of Ordina

the government as much as possible via digital channels.

experts and practical specialists from the

Ordina believes in responsible digitisation, in which the

Royal Navy less than five weeks to

approach to the design of IT systems requires two speeds.

develop this highly promising process

Digitisation where possible and human contact where

innovation.

necessary. But also: safeguard the robustness of existing

Working prototype
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Case Dutch Royal Navy

systems and at the same time make a responsible shift
towards the adoption of new technologies.

Innovation consultant Jasper Jochem of
Ordina Smart Technologies was closely
How do we make sure our engineers can

involved in the project. “We were

maintain all the technical systems on

convinced that it was technologically

board a vessel? Can technology help?

possible, but it had never been done

That was the question the Dutch Royal

before. Working with the navy, we

Navy put to Ordina in 2017. The answer

translated the idea into a working

was a resounding ‘yes!’. Thanks to

prototype, which we used to run a number

augmented reality.

of initial trials. These trials have been

HoloLens

positive.” Michel Caspers of the Royal
Navy agrees: “We entered into this

The engineers put their Microsoft

experiment with our eyes wide open.

HoloLens on, look at a ship’s engine

We were not expecting a finished product.

through these smart glasses and all the

We simply wanted to know whether this

instructions they need – what to do and in

innovation could be used in a military

which order – are then automatically

context. It was a success. And we very

projected onto their retina. This system

much appreciated the cooperation with

enables the engineers to see their engine

Ordina. We delivered this together and

through the eyes of the expert. They make

we felt more like colleagues than clients.

fewer mistakes, work faster, in a more

That says it all really.” ■

Dennis Struyk, market director Public:

‘The Dutch government has a lot to
gain from eﬀecting far-reaching
digitisation as quickly as possible.
Ordina is the partner that can help
it do that, with IT that works for
people as the key priority.’
&%

Ordina has the expertise needed to help eﬀect this
digital transformation. We can help government
institutions to realise their digital ambitions at national,
regional and local levels. Making use of multi-disciplinary
High performance teams that can execute the relevant
innovations quickly and eﬀectively. Whether this
involves the development and management of apps,
the realisation of digital workplaces, secure data flows,
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High performance teams

privacy & security or other IT-related matters that connect
citizens, companies and government institutions: we
make sure that citizens and the business community can
communicate eﬀectively and eﬃciently with public
sector bodies via apps and other applications.

Intensify and streamline

Digitisation is creating opportunities for the public sector
to provide services that intensify and streamline the
interaction with citizens and the business community.
This does require a number of measures. First and
foremost, this will require a diﬀerent approach to the
steering of IT projects. More and more IT projects are
change processes that combine technical implementation
with adjustments to existing processes and the roles and
responsibilities of employees. That requires new working
methods. What is more, public sector organisations
need new IT talent to alleviate the impact of ageing in
the sector.

&!
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Markets

FINANCIAL!SERVICES
Technological innovation
creates opportunities for the
financial sector
Financial institutions play a leading role in society and

personalised service and to be able to oﬀer custom-made

are vital for economic growth. It is not for nothing that

propositions. That requires suitable data from the

the government sets high standards for compliance and

appropriate data sources. Via the application of big data

security; standards that have become even stricter since

and artificial intelligence technologies, they can gain

the banking crisis. However, digitisation is creating

access to this data (with the client’s permission) quickly

countless opportunities to improve services and regain

and automatically. Another step in the right direction is

the trust of their clients.

to renew on the service front itself, using (hybrid) cloud

New possibilities

solutions and innovations such as blockchain, the
technology behind cryptocurrency bitcoin. All these

Payment traﬃc in the Benelux is eﬃcient and at

developments are creating opportunities for financial

international level the region is a leader on the internet

institutions to make their processes cheaper, more

banking front. But here too technology is developing at

flexible and more relevant for their clients.

lightning speed. That technology is creating new
possibilities, which in turn is constantly raising client
expectations. They want to be able to communicate

Secure and robust

Banks and insurance firms are well aware that digital

with their bank via social media as easily as they used

transformation will have an impact on their business

to at the counter in their local bank. On top of that,

models and strategies, but they also realise it will create

they want instant service, online services and products

opportunities. Ordina provides support for banks and

that are tailored to their wants and needs. Clients also

insurance firms that are dealing with this digital

want user-friendly and intuitive mobile applications.

transition. We realise that these institutions have to

Mobile banking in particular makes life easier for

meet an ever-growing number of obligations, which

banking clients.

limits their room for manoeuvre on many fronts. They

Cheaper, more flexible and more relevant

need to comply with strict laws and regulations, and
they need to devote attention to security and robust (risk)

It is a challenge for financial institutions to meet these

management. Their existing IT infrastructure has to be

expectations. They need access to the right information

secure and robust and at the same time guarantee the

to provide their clients with the highest level of

smooth operation of payment traﬃc. While the main

&#
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priority is security and robustness, the sector has to

even more opportunities to improve the security and

make a responsible transition to the adoption of new

robustness of existing systems and to do all of this at

technologies and IT systems that respond to today’s

considerably lower costs. The engine behind all these

demands. This balancing act will require a huge

innovations is advanced IT in combination with

investment of time and eﬀort on the part of established

fundamentally new ways of thinking.

players in the sector. On the one hand, it is full steam
ahead: respond to the changing playing field by making
business operations more adaptable and cut costs and

Connecting

Ordina believes that the financial landscape will be

staﬀ numbers. We have also noted that banks are looking

changed permanently by the competition from, among

to acquire their own IT expertise and are now insourcing

others, fintech companies, retail sector players and major

IT specialists. On the other hand, the ballast of the past

technology firms. Financial institutions recognise the

is creating a number of operational challenges when

added value of fintech companies and are increasingly

banks try to fit innovations in existing systems.

embracing these players. In the future, we will see more

Opportunities

Eric Euwes, market director Finance:

‘The rise of ‘open architecture’,
which is being embraced
by more and more financial
service providers, is creating
opportunities for new entrants
and new business models.’

and more partnerships involving banks and fintech
companies. The bank of the future will be a network

However, doing nothing is not an option. The digital

organisation. And we will see the creation of a platform

transition is creating lots of opportunities for financial

with banks and insurance firms at the centre, surrounded

institutions to provide clients with better and more

by a group of fintech companies that oﬀer specialist

personalised services and to renew their own service

products. These will result in a wider range of products

oﬀering, making it more fit-for-purpose in today’s

and better services for clients. Ordina can help in this by

financial landscape. Also, technology itself is creating

playing a connecting role in the process.

&&

Cost of mortgage administration cut by millions
This project in fact involved two operations: the
migration of all mortgage data to the new system
(the data migration) and the careful storage of all the data
that does not fit into the mortgage-related data, but that
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Case ABN AMRO

you do need to keep accessible one way or another (the
historical data management). Rijken: “In the old days,
such data would sometimes be put on a disk and filed in
a cupboard, but those days are over. The General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR), which comes into eﬀect
in May 2018, also prohibits this kind of data storage.
Customers are also increasingly aware of their rights
when it comes to the storage of their personal
information. If their customers request it, companies
have to be able to show what data they keep on them
and they are obliged to delete any stored data once the
In 2017, Ordina completed an extensive assignment for

It certainly was a complex project. The new system

retention period related to the duty of care has expired.”

ABN AMRO bank that went to a long way to helping the

includes all the mortgages provided by ABN AMRO

Ordina has safeguarded this process for ABN AMRO.

bank make annual savings of millions of euros. Over the

and its subsidiary Florius. And everything has been

All safely stored historical data is easily accessible to

course of three years, hundreds of thousands of multiple

digitised, so the entire process of application, granting

ABN AMRO employees, so they can respond to their

brand mortgage dossiers were migrated to a single new

and management of a mortgage can be quick, simple

customers’ requests immediately.

system. “That migration had to be executed with a great

and cost-eﬃcient.
Now that the migration has been completed, Ordina

deal of care,” explains Margreet Rijken, director of
Ordina Data & Finance Solutions (ODFS), a collaboration

Han Bosz, lead product owner mortgages at ABN AMRO,

will remain involved in the bank’s historical data

involving a wide range of experts.

did not underestimate the complexity and potential

management. And as far as Bosz is concerned, that

diﬃculty of the project: “I know just how complicated

will not be the end of it: “Ordina also has innovative

That combination of experts proved to be a brilliant

these kinds of operations are. The dossiers often conceal a

techniques for source data accessibility. For instance,

idea. Rijken: “Thanks to the fact that the ODS data

history that spans many decades and numerous mortgage

a tool such as ‘Lckr’ can save a lot of paperwork

experts share their expertise with the OFS IT financials,

schemes that have frequently changed over the years.

around valuations and salary statements. These are

we can identify and address cross-connections at our

So I felt these conversions were very ambitious. But I’m

interesting developments that I will want to follow

clients. And that’s exactly how we are able to complete

very pleased with how it went. And in the process, I got to

closely and that includes what Ordina has to oﬀer

the high-impact and complex projects like this one at

know Ordina as an excellent company to work with on a

on this front. This cooperation has given us a taste

ABN AMRO, and do it flawlessly, on time and within

collaborative basis. They are flexible and pragmatic and

for more.” ■

budget.”

can always respond to changes quickly and eﬀectively.”

&'
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INDUSTRY!
New technology enables the
industry sector to maintain and
increase its lead
Companies in the industry sector in the Netherlands and

cooperate closely with all relevant partners in an allencompassing eco-system and adapt their business
model accordingly.

Increasing loyalty

Companies can use a variety of digital channels to better

Belgium are ahead of the game in terms of high-grade

understand and serve their customers. Social listening

products and services. By putting time and eﬀort into

is one of those tools. Companies can use service design

improvements, they are increasing their competitive

and analytics to increase their customers’ loyalty. For

edge. Of course it is vital to maintain and expand that lead

instance, online retail companies use experience data

in today’s fiercely competitive markets, but that does not

and recommendations to respond even more eﬀectively

just happen by itself. Any business that wants to remain

to consumers’ needs. The distance between consumer,

successful will have to adapt to tomorrow’s world faster

producer and partners in the supply chain is becoming

than ever before. The use of technology in particular will

ever smaller. Consumers are ordering straight from

be an important factor in the years to come.

wholesalers without any intervention from the retail

Internet as a vital artery

trade. A growing number of companies are setting up
online platforms that are merging services and commerce.

The digital revolution is in full swing. The exponential

They are acting as a driving force of creativity and as a

speed at which new technological possibilities emerge

source of financing.

often makes it too diﬃcult for well-established
companies to keep up with new developments. For
instance, this could be anything from smart logistics,

Cooperation in the eco-system

Backed up by the internet, companies, individuals,

robotics, 3D-printing and big data to smart roads and

communities and public sector organisations are

ports, self-driving vehicles, and the connection of

communicating, producing, consuming and operating

devices via the Internet of Things (IoT). Consumers now

in an all-encompassing eco-system. Ordina believes

have a world of possibilities in the palm of their hands

the cooperation in this eco-system oﬀers surprising

via their smartphones, possibilities that can often be

opportunities to respond eﬃciently to existing client

accessed 24 hours a day. They are quite rightly adapting

demands, and create new demands. This kind of

their expectations to that situation. The internet is now a

cooperation results in new products and distribution

vital artery and new entrants are making the most of that.

opportunities. And it creates opportunities for

Organisations that increase their lead in this rapidly

companies to make smart use of each other’s

moving market tend to take client intimacy seriously,

infrastructure and R&D.

Eric Slobben, market director Industry:

‘It is crucial for industrial
companies to maintain
and increase their lead.
Ordina is a partner in the
application of innovative
technology in existing and
new operating models.’

&(

Total picture of rail subsidence thanks to satellite data
lacks up-to-date information on around a quarter of the
7,000 kilometres of railway tracks in the Netherlands.”

Adapted business model

Companies that seize these opportunities with
The PoC showed that it is possible to get a full picture of

ease and transform themselves into intelligent data-

all instances of rail subsidence in the Netherlands, and

driven organisations are turning existing market

all at the same time. To do this, images of the earth’s

relationships on their head. After all, many

surface taken from various satellites operated by both

companies are busy ‘reinventing themselves’ for

the European Space Agency (ESA) and Airbus are turned

very good reason. They are integrating IT solutions,

into measuring points. HANA-in-memory technology is

which keeps them ahead of the competition and

then used in the SAP Cloud Platform for a high-speed

keeps them relevant. Organisations that adapt their

analysis of those points. All the areas where the soil shows

business model to these developments and put

subsidence patterns are subsequently projected onto a

themselves back on the map increase their chances

map via an ArcGIS server, which is used to determine the

of survival and continuity. In the industry sector, it is

type of subsidence. And by comparing that information

still important to use valuable assets as productively

with ProRail’s 3D data, it is immediately clear whether

as possible. That means utilising capital-intensive

any railway infrastructure is in fact subsiding. “In the

infrastructure eﬃciently and using the latest

Ordina can promise ProRail a comprehensive system to

future, maintenance engineers will be able to go out on

technologies to optimise and future-proof logistical

chart every single instance of rail subsidence. This claim

targeted missions armed with that know-how,” Broens

and operating processes.

was borne out in a proof of concept (PoC) that Ordina

predicts. But we need to take a number of other steps

developed in collaboration with SAP and the Technical

before we get to that stage. “ProRail wants to continue to

University (TU) Delft in the space of just 4½ days. The

enrich the satellite data working with the TU Delft data

PoC made use of a striking innovation laboratory: SAP’S

scientists, to refine the accuracy: from the current

opportunities to increase productivity, explore new

Run Live Truck. This truck was parked outside the

centimetre right down to a millimetre.”

markets and forge surprising alliances. IT innovations

ProRail head oﬃce for a week. Hilco Broens, innovation

Surprising alliances

The digital era oﬀers the Dutch industry sector new

facilitate new business models, more intensive client
But the test was certainly a success, says Broens, and in

contacts and sustainable operations. Ordina believes

more ways than one: “The truck attracted considerable

that this requires clear choices: for the centralised

“You want to avoid rail subsidence at all costs, especially

media attention, but what’s more important is what we

management of IT projects, agile operating methods

in the Dutch railway network, which is one of the busiest

achieved in such a short space of time. We now know how

and multi-disciplinary High performance teams that

in the world. That is why ProRail monitors the rails

we can combine various kinds of data in a smart way to

prepare organisations for their long-term future.

closely using test trains. But those trains are expensive,

create a single picture, plus how we can eﬀectively deploy

cannot be everywhere at once and are used mostly on

a complex database. We made the user the focal point at

heavily used tracks,” says Broens. “As a result, ProRail

every stage along the way.” ■

principal at Ordina, was one of the team members.
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Travel independently with the new NS PAS system
Van Heukelum: “Disabled travellers should be able to

considers the NS PAS a monster job. “This is one of the

take the train independently as much as possible.

first, truly major projects in the Netherlands that will

The NS is providing them with support to make that

run entirely on an Azure platform. So we initially

possible. As part of the services, these travellers can

devoted a lot of attention to the data analysis.

apply for personal assistance at more than 100 stations.

Throughout the process, we worked closely and flexibly

And they can do this up to an hour before departure.

with the client, in line with the agile and scrum method.

They can apply by phone or via the website and this

Every two to four weeks we had a delivery, which would

sets in motion a number of processes and gets people

sometimes send us back to the drawing board with new

moving behind the scenes. This involves considerable

ideas.”
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Case NS

administration, telephone calls, orders and supervision
activities with one single goal: to help the passenger

But the result is impressive. The demo app was tested

smoothly onto the train and help them to continue

successfully and NS will use this demo April for minor

their journey once the train arrives at its destination.

improvements and refinements. And the company will

And obviously you also want to be able to monitor the

also use this time to train NS staﬀ. The moment of truth

whole process.”

will follow in April. Boelman: “Everything is geared to
making it easy to use for the passengers involved.

Thanks to the new NS PAS system, this all happens

And that should also dramatically reduce the number

Dutch rail company NS wants to improve the process

automatically. Van Heukelum: “The app communicates

of calls to the service desk.”

around personal assistance for disabled passengers.

with a lot of diﬀerent IT systems. For instance, the

The rail company wants to simplify the services for

standard transfer times in the NS Reisplanner travel

The client also has high expectations. Marthe Vlaskamp,

both the company and its passengers. From April 2018,

planner application are automatically adjusted if

programme manager Accessibility for NS: “The NS PAS

passengers with a disability will be able to use the NS

passengers with a wheelchair have to transfer and

system is something really new: a reliable and flexible

PAS system for help and assistance. This is a back-end

therefore require more time. Service personnel and

travel system, fully geared to disabled travellers.

application which they can, if they wish to, use to plan

train staﬀ, plus other parties who work on behalf of

The road there was not easy; we all managed to

and oversee their entire trip themselves, and call in

NS, such as taxi firms, are notified automatically if a

underestimate the complexity of the project. But you

assistance where needed. NS employees will also be using

disabled passenger has registered for assistance.”

can’t polish a gem without friction: when it comes down
to it, I am very proud that we will be able to oﬀer this to

the system to book, execute and register the assistance
provided. Ordina supported NS in the development of

Ordina used the Microsoft Azure platform for the

this application. Hans van Heukelum was responsible

development of this application. The software has no

for the project in his capacity as contract owner.

secrets for software architect Henk Boelman. Yet he

our clients.” ■
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Course set for a lead with Navigate

One million ship movements a year,

and container flows. And they are doing

12 million containers a year and more than

this using Navigate, a kind of Google Maps

180,000 jobs, in a port that stretches no less

for the port, which they developed in

than 40 kilometres from end to end. That is

cooperation with Clockwork and Ordina.
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Case Rotterdam Port Authority

the field of operations of the Rotterdam
Port Authority.

This platform provides a complete
overview of the more eﬃcient deep sea,

Thea de Vries, Marketing Communications

short sea, rail and inland shipping routes

manager at the Rotterdam Port Authority,

via Rotterdam. Navigate also provides

explains that megatrends such as the

insight into transit times and the logistics

energy transition and digital transformation

services providers shippers can work with.

are currently causing a lot of turmoil in

On top of this, the empty depot planner

the port industry. Shipping has to become

also shows where empty containers can

more environment-friendly. Chinese

be dropped oﬀ or collected.

conglomerate Alibaba has suddenly teamed
up with Danish shipping giant Maersk.

In short: thanks to digital acceleration,

And technologies such as blockchain are

intelligent and data-driven decision

knocking on the door. What role does a port

making and, first and foremost, a lot

authority take in this ‘new world’?

of teamwork in an eco-system of
complementary partners, the Rotterdam

Rotterdam Port Authority is focusing on

Port Authority stands out head and

increasing the transparency of its shipping

shoulders above its rival ports. ■

&"

HEALTHCARE!
Raise quality of healthcare
through smart interplay between
people, technology and care

Michel Lohr, sales director Healthcare:

‘Ordina frees up healthcare
organisations on the IT front,
so they can focus fully on their
primary process, strategy and
innovation.’

Everybody is entitled to good healthcare. And this holds
true whether it involves assistance for disabled people,
treatment for chronically ill patients, or people who
arrive at the emergency department after an accident.
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Our healthcare system is one of the best in the world,
but various economic and social trends are proving a
challenge to the system.

Transition requires an integrated approach

The ageing of the population and the increase in the

can provide healthcare as they see fit and even more

number of people with lifestyle diseases is increasing

eﬀectively; regardless of whether we are talking about

the demand for healthcare, at a time when budgets are

doctors, nurses, home care providers, or other care

means we have to move away from devising solutions on

declining. From surgeons carrying out more surgical

professionals.

the basis of separate silos and make sure that all the IT in

procedures to rostering problems in home care,
providing patients and clients with the targeted quality
of care is becoming an increasingly complex aﬀair.

Enabling care professionals to focus on care

We believe that an integrated approach is essential. This

a healthcare organisation works in unison. That has to be
the deciding factor in providing support for healthcare

Ordina is working on e-health and m-health solutions

professionals and their patients or clients. This requires a

for remote communications, on digital working

reliable, robust IT infrastructure. An infrastructure that

environments with smart care and administration

ensures that operating methods are in compliance with

IT provides opportunities to turn this situation around;

applications for healthcare professionals, together with

laws and regulations, which guarantees the continuity of

to increase the quality of care at a lower cost. At the same

the possibility of secure data exchanges within the

critical systems and applications, and one that can adopt

time, we need to think very carefully about how IT is

healthcare chain. The ultimate aim is for IT to provide

new technologies. Ordina makes sure that healthcare

used. Ordina believes the healthcare sector can achieve

healthcare professionals with the highest possible levels

organisations do not get stuck on the road to tomorrow,

the best results if it makes patients the focal point of its

of help in every aspect of their everyday work. And to

but instead receive the maximum support in the

IT strategies and provides healthcare professionals with

make sure that IT never gets in the way of the care

implementation of technological innovations. From

the best possible support. After all, they know better

process. This is why enabling healthcare professionals

experiments with proof of concepts and the integration

than anyone how they can provide and receive the best

to focus on care is written in capital letters in our vision

of new technologies in healthcare processes, to 24/7

possible care. By giving them access to IT solutions

statement. Because this is the only way to make sure

management of the application landscape. Together,

anytime and anywhere – like water flowing from a tap –

that patients or clients truly are the focal point of the

we are building tomorrow’s healthcare.

we create a situation in which healthcare professionals

healthcare system.

igher uality of care, lower costs

'$

The players in the Belgian healthcare

from the United States via Europe into

market share several characteristics and

Asia. But Ordina covers a lot more than

challenges with their Dutch colleagues.

the compliance needs of its international

For instance, providing better care at

clients. These days, Ordina also provides

lower costs is also a central theme for

compliance services for the rapidly

everyone involved in the Belgian

growing mid-segment of Belgian pharma

healthcare chain. At the same time, the

and biotech companies.
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Healthcare in
Belgium
healthcare landscape in Belgium does
look slightly diﬀerent to the healthcare

While extremely important, compliance

landscape in the Netherlands. Belgium

is not the only need Ordina meets in the

has a solid reputation in the field of

Belgian healthcare market. For instance,

research, development, production and

Ordina also helps pharmaceutical compa-

logistics on the medication front, and

nies in their complex financial reporting

that translates into the strong presence

for various countries and continents. And

of very large pharmaceutical and

Ordina helps pharmaceutical companies

biotechnology (pharma-biotech)

to optimise their production and supply

companies.

chain by converting data into management information and subsequently

Ordina Belgium/Luxembourg is active

converting that information into manage-

in every single essential part of the

able and pragmatic recommendations.

pharma-biotech chain. Ordina’s best
known services in the Belgian healthcare

The pharma-biotech world, while tradi-

sector are the specialist compliance

tional in nature, is changing rapidly on

services the company oﬀers to help its

the back of new technological needs.

clients comply with very specific

Ordina is supporting the digital accelera-

regulations that apply to activities and IT

tion of pharma-biotech companies by

systems related to medication research,

providing them with advice in areas such

production and logistics. At the request

as the opportunities oﬀered by mobile

of its international clients, Ordina

health apps. At the same time, Ordina also

provides compliance support for

makes them aware of the possible security

numerous international projects,

risks associated with new technologies.
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Virtual practice in social resilience
Virtual city neighbourhood

Together with a team of ’s Heeren Loo’s specialists,
Ordina created a specially tailored virtual reality
environment. The client walks through a virtual city
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Case healthcare facility ’s Heeren Loo

neighbourhood and meets the coach in various roles
and guises. To make this happen, both the therapist
and the client wear HTC Vive-virtual reality headsets.
The headset allows them to see and navigate the
virtual city neighbourhood and respond to an avatar
that represents the other person. And thanks to
motion controllers the client and the coach can use
their own body movements to control their avatars.
This makes them feel as if they are the avatar,
Healthcare facility ’s Heeren Loo helps people with a

which is very important to how the users experience

mental impairment to make their own choices and

the simulation.

to navigate society independently. Self-advocacy is a
challenge for many people, but it can be especially
diﬃcult for people with a minor mental impairment.

World first

“They also use this is full motion body tracking

They unwittingly find themselves in diﬃcult and

technology in the movie industry, but the combina-

possibly even dangerous situations, sometimes

tion of these technologies for the healthcare sector

with dire consequences. This is why the staﬀ at

is a world first,” says Ordina’s Jasper Jochem. “In

’s Heeren Loo train their clients in social resilience.

this simulation, you can talk to each other and move

These training courses usually take place in a gym,

around in a situation that feels realistic. It is only a

with the coach playing various roles and the client

test model so far, but the results are very promising.”

learning how to respond. But this role-play has its
limitations. After all, the employees are not

Suzanne Verheijden, programme manager

professional actors and the situation can seem very

Innovation at ’s Heeren Loo: “It was fantastic to see

artificial. With this in mind, ’s Heeren Loo went in

the wishes of the therapists turned into technical

search of a realistic simulation environment and

and innovative solutions. The great team work led

found the solution in Ordina SMART Technologies.

to an excellent result for our clients.” ■
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Peter & the workstation solution
that puts people centre stage
Workstation solutions in
the cloud
Business platforms: many organisations can no longer
do without them. With the aid of these platforms, all
employees can work 24/7, whether they are at their
desks or on the road. This is partly thanks to Peter
Wuytack, Business platforms architect. For instance,
he worked on the platform for steel giant Arcelor Mittal.

Peter Wuytack, practice manager datacenter
cloud & storage at Ordina:

‘A challenging job. So many employees, so many

‘Getting all employees on board is
something that that I will never grow
bored with.’

wishes. Plus every organisation wants something a
little bit different. But the bottom-line basic requirement
is always the same: everyone has to be able to do his
job well. It’s great to be able to contribute to that. And I
get more and more enjoyment from dealing with the
human side of our work. After all, a business platform
comes with some major changes. And not just in terms
of IT. Getting all employees on board is something that I
will never grow bored with.’

Business platforms

'#

‘High performance teams
mobilise innovative strength’

transparently and as agile and engaged as possible. “The
new IT skill is empathy,” Werkhoven told his audience.
“Let’s challenge each other to think outside the box and
initiate practical innovative solutions. With our clients as

Innovation is very important, but you only get results
when you deploy High performance teams to mobilise
your innovative strength. This credo was amply
demonstrated during Ordina’s Open Innovation Days,
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Ordina Innovation Days 2017

our new colleagues.”

Resilience

Polar explorer and climate journalist Bernice Notenboom

in mid-October in Nieuwegein. Ordina welcomed more

went on to tell us some harrowingly exciting stories that

than 600 visitors to the event, all of whom came to be

showed just how important teamwork and passion are to

inspired by engaging presentations and demonstrations

bringing a polar expedition to a successful conclusion.

of technology solutions.

And let’s not forget thorough preparation, because a
simple mistake can easily turn into a life-threatening

Ordina CEO Jo Maes opened the 2017 edition and

situation. Notenboom swears by a highly diversified

immediately stressed the unique character of the event:

team, with members who represent all disciplines and

“This is where you can really see that we feel that we are

temperaments. She noted that she sees a number of

first and foremost a partner for our clients, not just a

‘arctic words of wisdom’, such as loyalty, discipline,

supplier. We have created innovation labs at our clients

resilience and intelligence as key priorities when she is

and used hackathons. But playtime is over. We are now

putting together her team. “Everyone is diﬀerent: we

moving from innovation to execution,” Ordina’s CEO

have to complement each other and share the same goal,”

said. Not an easy task. Established companies in

said Notenboom. “We discuss any problems immediately.

particular face the daunting task of staying open for

And to prevent clan formation, everyone sleeps in a tent

business as usual while their renewal projects are in

with someone else every night.”

progress. But Ordina makes that possible.

Empathy

Smart and e icient

Thea de Vries, Marketing Communications manager at

Arjan Werkhoven, director Commerce at Ordina,

Rotterdam Port Authority explains how the Rotterdam

subsequently highlighted the main lessons to be learned

Port Authority stays ahead of the competition thanks to

from innovation. Innovation always revolves around

innovations such as the Harbour master Information

unlocking added value and encouraging collaboration.

System (HIS), the Port Community System (PCS) and the

Any successful innovation strategy is largely about

Navigate platform, which the port authority developed in

choosing what not to do. And for the rest, innovation is

partnership with Ordina. Navigate is both an orientation

mainly about doing: showing initiative, anticipating,

and a planning tool, that directs users to the most

'&
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eﬃcient shipping routes and port logistics. Examples of

which metrics are particularly useful if you want to

A wonderful form of digital acceleration, Koersen said.

other innovative applications include cable reels that

maximise learning and performance.

Tommi€ – developed by Clockwork at the behest of the

display their location using sensors, or a tool that shows
empty depots. All of these innovations help the Port of

Smart asset management

city of Amsterdam – helps the capital’s vulnerable
residents to handle their financial resources sensibly.

Michiel Smits, SMART business developer at Ordina, took

Virtual and augmented reality (VR and AR) are used to

his audience into the world of smart asset management.

realise other forms of digital acceleration, said Jasper

He explained the potential gains of combining informa-

Jochem a little later on another stage. VR makes learning

tion from sensors, open data sources and satellite data.

processes fun and more personal and thus more eﬀective.

The day continued with break-out sessions from two

For instance, we can already visualise subsidence

The AR headset adds know-how and experience to real

stages – a summer stage and a winter stage. These

around railway tracks, wear and tear on motorways

life situations, which in turn boosts performance,

sessions gave visitors the opportunity to talk to experts

and water levels from the skies, which drastically

especially for engineers and station managers.

in six areas. Oﬃcers from Dutch special forces talked

reduces maintenance costs. And intelligent data-driven

about teamwork during dangerous operations and the

organisations perform better: they operate more

power of their High performance teams in that area.

eﬃciently and eﬀectively and have an ideal instrument

Ordina colleagues Edwin Burgers, delivery lead High

to optimise their client experience, Smits said.

Rotterdam to realise its ambition to be the smartest,
most eﬃcient and fastest port in Europe.

Break-out sessions

performance teams, and senior project manager Henk
Ledderhof later took to the same stage to discuss how
High performance teams can create client value

Digital acceleration

Security and privacy

And finally, Ordina’s Saskia Meeuwessen – director
consulting – and Michael Voorn – principal expert
Security & privacy – explained it is no simple task to
eﬀectively meet safeguards in the field of security and

Using the Tommi€ app as illustration, Martin Koersen,

privacy in the digital world of today and tomorrow.

quickly and eﬀectively. They also explained the best

head of Strategy at Clockwork, explained that digital

App traﬃc makes it easy to trace transactions, which

way to monitor the whole process; in other words,

solutions can be used to tackle major problems in society.

companies can then use to make their customers

''

speakers explored the various boundaries and dilemmas
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targeted oﬀers. But is that allowed and possible? Both
with their audiences on the basis of the new privacy
legislation (GDPR and AVG), which is set to come into
eﬀect at the end of May 2018.

Killjoy

“I am often seen as the killjoy. Because coming up with
ideas is often a lot more fun than executing them.”
With those words, Jacques Pijl took to the stage at the
end of the day for the final presentation to the entire
audience. “But it is the painstaking work of execution
that is the most important of all,” said Pijl, who is
the author of the management book of the year 2017
– ‘Strategy = Execution’ – and thought leader in the field
of strategy execution.
Success in business is all about the disciplined
execution of the strategy. And that is exactly where
many organisations fall short, Pijl concluded after a
study in which he assessed 75 cases and interviewed
60 managers. Pijl distilled seven success factors
from his study and shared those with the audience.
They included: “Make a clear distinction between
improvement, renewal and innovation, so you always
know whether you are running your business or working
on actual change.” And: “Use 80% of your time, money,
energy and motivation on pure execution.” At the end of
the event, all the visitors to the Ordina Open Innovation
Days were given a copy of Jacques Pijl’s management
skills book to take home.

'(
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INFORMATION!
ABOUT!ORDINA!
SHARES
Ordina informs its shareholders in
a transparent manner about the
company’s strategy, developments
at clients, personnel developments
and the company’s performance. The
Management Board, together with the
Investor Relations Oﬃcer, maintains
contact with shareholders and
analysts. We provide our shareholders
with all the relevant information they
need through our annual report,
interim reports, trading updates,
the General Meeting of Shareholders,
press releases and our website. We also
publish our presentations for analysts
on our website, including audio
webcasts, plus we organise analysts
meetings twice a year.

!"
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Stock exchange listing

All outstanding ordinary shares in Ordina N.V. are listed
on the Euronext Amsterdam stock exchange. Ordina N.V.
shares are traded on the Small Cap Index (AScX) of
Euronext Amsterdam.

Share capital

The total number of outstanding shares stood at around
93.3 million shares at year-end 2017. There were no
outstanding preference shares at year-end 2017.
At year-end 2017, there was one outstanding priority
share. No new shares were issued in 2017. We refer you
to page 98 of the chapter on ‘Provisions of the Articles of
Association’ for an explanation of the function of the
priority share.

Voting rights

zeggenschap in ter beurze genoteerde vennootschappen),

Each listed ordinary share in Ordina N.V. entitles the

Ordina received the following notifications (situation at

holder to one vote.

year-end 2017):

Share price development

The Ordina share price declined by 25.8% in the course

• Shareholding 15% to 20%:
Mont Cervin Sàrl
• Shareholding 5% to 15%:

Shareholdings members of the Management
Board at year-end 2017
Jo Maes: 51,725 shares

Annemieke den Otter: 1,867 shares

Shareholdings members of the Supervisory Board
at year-end 2017

of 2017 (2016: increase of 97.7%). The Small Cap Index

Teslin Participaties Coöperatief UA,

closed the year 31.0% higher than at the end of 2016.

Lazard Freres Gestion SAS,

The volume of Ordina shares traded in 2017 came in at

Otus Capital Management,

Cervin Sàrl)

an average of 436,999 shares per day (2016: 524,495).

Dimensional Fund Advisors

Jan Niessen: 14,425,967 shares

Ordina shares were trading at a price of EUR 1.56 on
31 December 2017 (year-end 2016: EUR 2.10).

Act on the disclosure of major holdings
in listed companies

Johan van der Werf: 100,000 shares (held via Mont

Dirk Anbeek: 35,000 shares
We refer you to the Ordina website for an overview of
the most recent notifications, or alternatively to the
register of ‘substantial holdings’ on the website of the
Dutch Financial Markets Authority AFM.

AGM

The General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) took place
on 2 May 2017. For an overview of resolutions adopted,

Within the framework of the Dutch act on the disclosure

please see the minutes of the meetings on the Ordina

of major holdings in listed companies (Wet melding

website.

!#

Ordina’s current dividend policy provides for a dividend
payment of 35% of the net profit, with the following
conditions: i) a solvency ratio of at least 35% in the year

Results per share
In euros

2014

2015

2016

2017
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Dividend policy

Per-share information

under review, ii) a historical net debt/adjusted EBITDA

Equity

1.56

1.53

1.58

1.58

ratio of less than 1.25 in Q3 and Q4, and iii) the future net

Cash flow from operations

0.22

0.03

0.06

0.21

debt / adjusted EBITDA ratio in Q1 and Q2 is less than

Net earnings per share

0.01

-0.03

0.05

0.03

1.25 (after dividend payment). The basic premise is to

Net earnings per share fully diluted

0.01

-0.03

0.05

0.03

safeguard healthy balance sheet ratios to ensure the
continuity of the company. The company may consider a
variable, additional dividend in the event of surplus cash.

Investor Relations

Share Price Development 2017
Change in % compared to December 31, 2016

Ordina believes it is important to be transparent and
accessible for its shareholders, to give investors the

EUR!"#$%

best possible basis to make an informed assessment of

EUR!&"'#'"

EUR!$0%&*#)&

the value of the company’s shares and of the company

EUR!(&)#$*

,)$#%-

itself. Maintaining an active and open dialogue with
shareholders, analysts and banks helps Ordina to

EUR!+((#+&

increase the visibility of its share among institutional

,$"#*-

and private investors.

We regularly organise roadshows in Amsterdam,
London and Frankfurt.
26 April 2018

Trading update

26 April 2018

General Meeting of Shareholders

2 August 2018

Publication interim results 2018

1 November 2018

Trading update

14 February 2019

Publication annual results 2018

4 April 2019

General Meeting of Shareholders

EUR!$#+.
-"+#&-
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Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
is a given for Ordina. It is built into
our DNA. In 2017, Ordina developed its
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CORPORATE!
SOCIAL!
RESPONSIBILITY

new CSR policy plan, outlining our
ambitions for the period 2017-2020.
We have reassessed our vision on CSR
on the basis of the insights we gained in
the previous policy period (2013-2016)
and our annual stakeholder sessions.
We will now be placing emphasis on
goals that are aligned with the themes
where Ordina can create the greatest
social value and help create a
sustainable society.

%&

The CSR strategy is one of Ordina’s key priorities and
is safeguarded at Management Board level. Four of the
five themes – employees, clients, society, suppliers &
resources – each have their own theme owner in the
Netherlands, based in the business. In Belgium, these
themes are managed centrally by a single theme owner.
The combined theme owners, together with a member
of the Management Board and the corporate secretary,
form the Sustainability steering group. This steering

Employees

Our employees are the beating
ICOON
heart and the future of Ordina.
That is why we focus on two
issues on this front: inclusivity and
sustainable employability. In other words, we
strive to create an environment with room for
diversity, where everyone can bring out the
best in themselves and remain in good
physical and mental health.

group has overall responsibility for the fifth theme:

Clients

external obligations & validation.
The steering group appoints project leaders for various
initiatives and a programme manager to monitor
the coherence between the various activities in the
Netherlands. The steering group supervises the
execution of the strategy and monitors the progress
we make.

themes

We work in partnership with our
ICOON
clients and suppliers to create IT
solutions that really help people
move forward. Sustainable tools that truly
help people, that are easy to manage and
created without any waste of resources or
human effort. And we do this partly thanks
to an agile way of working and attention for
security and risk management.

Society

Every year, Ordina makes 300 to
500 hours available for projects
with a special social relevance.
And projects we can add value to thanks to
our own expertise. We support a number of
projects in partnership with the Oranje Fonds
and initiate other projects ourselves via the
Ordina Foundation.
ICOON

Suppliers & resources

A chain is more than the sum of
its parts. With that thought in
mind, we have drawn up several
concrete CSR spearheads that we would like
to work on with our suppliers, such as a
reduction in CO2 emissions and more efficient
use of resources such as water, energy and
paper.
ICOON

ICOON

External obligations &
validation
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Embedding the CSR strategy

5

Ordina strives for an integrated
form of reporting with the aim of
making our CSR goals a part of our reporting
and control cycle. In addition, Ordina attaches
a great deal of importance to sustainable
operations and aims to find a balance in our
operations between economic, ecological and
social interests. Ordina’s ambition is to
constantly improve its environmental
performance and we work to keeps our own
CO2 emissions as low as possible. We also
make our own concrete obligations clear.
Ordina has defined concrete goals for
the various sustainability themes. You
will find an easy to use overview of the
targets and the results achieved in 2017 on
page 71 of this annual report.

%'

For Ordina, corporate social responsibility means that

Ordina assesses each year whether the current frameworks

the organisation makes an eﬀort in all of its activities to

and guidelines match the developments in the market and

make a contribution to society. By using IT in smart ways

Ordina’s ambitions with respect to its stakeholders. With

to meet the challenges we face as a society and by making

the chain concept in mind, we work on a more sustainable

IT work for people. It is largely through that value

future with our clients, suppliers, financiers, employees and

creation that Ordina fulfils its sustainability ambitions.

other interested parties in society. The ultimate goal is for

Partnerships in sustainable innovation

Partnerships in sustainable innovation means first and
foremost that Ordina works with interested parties in the
chain to make a sustainable and measurable diﬀerence in

all parties involved to work together on a safer future and
on partnerships in sustainable innovation.

Materiality matrix

In 2015, Ordina drew up a materiality matrix, which

the environments in which Ordina is active and can exert

provides insight into the importance of (sustainability)

influence. And not on a one-oﬀ basis, but on a structural

themes for the company and its stakeholders. It shows

basis. In that context, we endorse the principles of

which sustainability issues we focus on, as required in the

corporate social responsibility in terms of accepting

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines 4 of the GRI (Global

responsibility and being accountable, transparency and

Reporting Initiative).
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VALUE!CREATION

ethical conduct, but also in terms of respect for the
interests of stakeholders, for legislation and regulations,

The materiality matrix helps Ordina to determine the right

international ethical standards and human rights.

focus in its sustainability initiatives. Most aspects of the
matrix are simply business as usual for us: we already work

In working with these principles, Ordina focuses in

along those lines in our normal operations.

particular on the themes that have the highest
materiality for the company. Materiality to Ordina

Ordina’s materiality matrix and value chain and an

means: the themes that are the most important to its

explanation of same can be found on our website under the

stakeholders and those where it can exert the greatest

header Downloads on the Sustainability page.

influence. We use the following directives as a reference
framework: the CO2 Performance ladder, FIRA, the

When drawing up the new policy plan at the end of 2016,

multi-year energy eﬃciency covenant for the IT sector

Ordina determined that the materiality matrix was still an

(Meerjarenafspraken energie-eﬃciëntie - MJA3),

up-to-date representation of the key aspects for Ordina.

ISO 26000, the Global Reporting Initiative guidelines,
the OESO guidelines, the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code and the Transparency benchmark.

%(

ICT!FOR!PEOPLE

Security and safeguarding
privacy is a people business
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Tanja & the protection of
private data, especially in
emergencies
Security and safeguarding privacy is a people business.
No matter how good a system is, the people who work
with it have to keep it secure. Tanja Boscu helps make
that a seamless part of an organisation’s DNA. Step by
step. ‘Security is seen as something of a poor relation in
many organisations. But not for the 112 control room in
Drachten, because it is vital to secure personal data in

Tanja Boscu, Data Security & Privacy oﬃcer at Ordina:

‘It’s wonderful to make a
contribution to security in
such a vital environment.’

such a privacy-sensitive environment. I think it’s
wonderful that I can make a contribution to that in such
a vital environment. So that the emergency staff know
exactly what to do to safeguard security and privacy
and comply with laws and regulations. Not just for
themselves, but obviously also for the people who
phone the control room.’

Security & privacy

%)

RESULTS

Firmly based on the principle of value creation, Ordina
has drawn up concrete goals within the themes of
employees, clients, society and suppliers & resources, on

Employees

Our 2017 employee engagement survey once again

Ordina believes it is important that its

included two specific questions to measure the extent

workforce has a balanced composition. We

to which our employees consider us an inclusive

the basis of the stakeholder groups involved in each

consider diversity a natural part of our corporate culture

organisation. The question that asked whether it is

theme. This involves both annual goals and longer term

and a success factor in achieving our strategic goals.

possible to express a diverging opinion at Ordina and

goals. In the context of the MJA 3 covenant for the Dutch

Ordina therefore strives to be an inclusive organisation

the one that asked whether Ordina devotes suﬃcient

IT sector, we have included a four-year target for CO2

with room for diﬀerences in the broadest sense of the

attention to diversity within the organisation received

reduction. We assess the other goals annually and reset

word. To this end, we aim for a balanced division of men

scores of 7.1 and 6.9 respectively (2016: 7.1 and 6.9) at

them if we feel this is necessary. You can find additional

and women, for instance, both in the overall population

group level for the Netherlands and Belgium combined.

details regarding our goals on the Ordina the Netherlands

and in management positions. We have set up a special

In the Netherlands, these questions scored 7.5 and a

and Ordina Belgium websites.

programme for Young Professionals to further their

7.7 respectively (2016: 7.0 and 6.6) and scored 7.5 and a

training, both in terms of know-how and in other skills.

7.7 in Belgium (in 2016: 7.3 and 7.6). This means we

The Young Professionals who complete the programme

achieved our goal for 2017 of an average of at least 7.0.
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GOALS

are awarded a certificate.
Sustainable employability
Inclusivity

Via training courses at the Ordina Academy and a

A specific group on the ‘inclusivity’ front are people with

number of vitality programmes, we work on the

limited access to the employment market. This is a

sustainable employability of our employees. It is

diverse group with lots of potential, but also a group

extremely important to Ordina that our employees

that requires extra attention. The Dutch Participation

are full of vitality, but also that they are and remain

Act also draws attention to this group of people. And

up-to-date with the latest developments in the field

in the context of social return, we also need to reach

of IT expertise. Given how rapidly the IT world is

additional agreements with clients to shape our

changing, there is a risk that employees lose touch

approach to this group. Ordina has developed a number

with the expertise required in the market. This is why

of initiatives with specialised parties in the market.

we attach enormous importance to the continuous

While this did not result in any actual placements in

education and retraining of our employees, regardless

2017, we do have plans to launch a small-scale pilot in

of age or the duration of their contract. In 2017, we ran

2018, with clear commitment from the business unit

an assessment at Ordina in the Netherlands to find

manager involved.

out whether there is a diﬀerence between the training

%*

diﬀerence in training hours when we look at diﬀerent
contract durations. This baseline measurement did not
give us any reason to draw up quantitative KPIs to

Clients

Ordina’s services make direct and indirect contributions

Client satisfaction

suppliers also have sustainability targets. What this

Ordina is constantly working on sustainable

means is that our joint eﬀorts on this front have an

to the greater sustainability of society. Our clients and

safeguard the number of training hours for specific

solutions that truly help people and companies move

impact along the entire length of the value chain. A

groups. We will therefore look at other (qualitative)

forward. Solutions created without any waste of human

trendsetter in this respect is the Navigate project, which

KPIs for 2018.

eﬀort and resources and that are easy to manage and use.

ships heading to the Port of Rotterdam can use to realise

The result of these eﬀorts is revealed partly in client

considerable savings in energy use and CO2 emissions.

For Ordina Belgium, we measured the average score

satisfaction, expressed in the Ordina Promotor Score

employees gave the training courses and the

(OPS). We are striving for a score of at least 70.0. In 2017,

than the volumes we achieve in our own operations on

participation level. We measured the participation

the OPS in the Netherlands was 65.3 (2016: 72.0) and

this front (see page 49). Other notable projects in the

level to ensure that more than 80% of our employees

54.0 in Belgium/Luxembourg (2016: 81.3). We have

field of sustainability and social engagement are Tommi€

participated in some form of training in 2017. We

ascertained that there has been a shift in the number of

(see page 66) and the NS PAS (see page 48).

realised a participation level of 91% last year. In addition,

promoters to passives. We are implementing plans to

we assessed the average score of the evaluations of the

improve that situation.

training courses to safeguard quality. On that front, we
realised an average score of 8.0.

In terms of volume, these savings are many times more
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hours for the diﬀerent age groups and whether there is a

Security
Digital security is vital and aﬀects every sector of society.

In addition to the OPS, Ordina uses a client satisfaction

Almost four in five Dutch companies are concerned

index (Klantevredenheidsindex - KTI). We use this to

about the vulnerability of their own computer systems.

For a detailed description of our HRM policy, including

measure our clients’ overall satisfaction and assess

Ordina has combined its data security expertise in

diversity, training courses and vitality, we refer you to

Ordina’s image. We also ask about the strengths and

specialised Security & Risk Management units in the

the section ‘Our people’ in the About Ordina chapter on

weaknesses in our services, expertise and products. In

Netherlands and Belgium. We also maintain the expertise

page 16 of this annual report.

2017, the KIT in the Netherlands came in at 7.0 (2016:

levels of our employees on this front via a mandatory

6.9). In Belgium/Luxembourg, the KTI was 7.6 (2016: 7.8).

training programme right across the company. We use

For more information about client satisfaction, we refer

an e-learning module to train our employees in the

to the Strategy chapter (see page 29).

fields of security, integrity and privacy. We started this
programme in the Netherlands in the fourth quarter of

Services with an impact

2017 and by the end of the year 419 employees had

A growing number of Ordina projects are realised in

completed the training. We are also planning to launch

partnership with our clients using agile working methods:

an e-learning module in Belgium this year. The target is

via a series of short sprints, with partial results delivered

for all our employees to have completed the e-learning

every two to three weeks, so it is always possible to make

module by next year.

adjustments in the early stages of the project.

%!

Tommi€ teaches people how to handle money
combine those two in the right way, you arrive at an app
that is close to the user, intuitive and encourages
interaction from the target audience. That means you
remain relevant in an increasingly digital world. We call
this digital acceleration.”

‘For every project,
we study the
market situation
and the end-users.’
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Case Tommi€

The right spending pattern

Tommi€ is an excellent example. The app keeps track
of people’s spending, and provides feedback on plans
The city of Amsterdam has more than 250,000 residents

Martin Kroesen, head Strategy at Clockwork. “That’s why

to spend money in the form of GIFs with a wink. This

with financial problems. That regularly results in

we joined forces to tackle the challenge of developing an

is important because if there is enough money in the

criminal behaviour and evictions. Suppose those

app that lets vulnerable people know how much they

account anything may seem possible. But that changes

vulnerable people were able to manage their financial

have to spend each day.”

once you realise your health insurance premium will

resources more sensibly. How many social problems
would we be able to prevent?

Linking know-how

The preliminary analysis resulted in eight assumptions.
That question sparked a partnership between the city of

Psychologists and neuro-marketeers at Clockwork

Amsterdam and Clockwork. Research had shown that

subsequently tested these on the target group and on

vulnerable people with a very limited income do not

people who work at Pantar, the sheltered employment

always use their bank app because they find it too

organisation in Amsterdam. “For every project, we study

complicated. “Besides, the app cannot tell people

the market situation and the end-users: their lives,

whether something is a sensible financial decision,” says

certainties, fears and how they make decisions. If you can

be withdrawn the next day. Koersen: “The app is a kind
of financial buddy that helps people find the right
spending pattern for them.” ■

%%

Ordina Foundation

a combination of fun and child development: a child

Ordina also set itself the goal of contributing

The Ordina Foundation oﬀers employees the opportunity

learns how to hold their own in later life in playful and

to a better society in the form of social

to use their specific expertise to support concrete, short-

spontaneous ways. Ordina took a baseline measurement

welfare projects. After all, we can use our know-how and

term projects and by doing so help solve a problem in

to assess the current state of personal data processing at

expertise to make a valuable contribution to a variety of

society. Our employees often come up with ideas for

Kinderwoud in the context of European privacy

social welfare projects. Our aim is to dedicate between

these projects themselves. In 2017, we executed one

legislation, the General Data Protection Regulation

300 and 500 hours a year to such projects. These

project. We did receive other applications, which will

(GDPR), and what actions were needed to meet those

are concrete, short-term social welfare projects in the

result in projects in 2018.

requirements. The project at the Stichting Kinderwoud
was executed in the fourth quarter of 2017.

Benelux region in areas where we can make a diﬀerence
via our core business. So rather than donating money,

In the year under review, Ordina helped the children’s

Ordina actively deploys the know-how and expertise

charity Stichting Kinderwoud to upgrade its privacy

Ordina spent a total of 68 hours on social welfare projects

of its employees. Some projects receive support in

systems. Kinderwoud is active in child care and play

in 2017 (2016: 456 hours). This means we did not meet

partnership with the Oranje Fonds, while we initiate

group facilities in the Friesland province and represents

our target of 300 to 500 hours.
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Society

others ourselves via the Ordina Foundation.
Oranje Fonds
The Oranje Fonds is the largest Dutch national fund in
the field of social welfare. The fund supports more than
7,000 social welfare initiatives in the Netherlands and
the Caribbean part of the Kingdom of the Netherlands.
The Oranje Fonds selects those social welfare
organisations where we, as Ordina, can have a major
impact. Ordina subsequently asks its employees with
the right specialist expertise to invest their time in the
project, often as part of a team. We received few
applications in 2017 and no projects were undertaken.
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1) The two-percent norm is in line with the objective of reducing CO2
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I’ll never drive a petrol car again!
“Charging never a problem”

choosing to use fuel-eﬃcient and hybrid
cars. In 2017, the first employees began

Technical ES consultant Gerben Jan Dijkman also drives

driving 100% electric cars. We have

an e-Golf. Each day, he drives from his home in Groningen

increased the number of charging points

to his work in Leeuwarden, where he charges his car up

in the parking lot at the Nieuwegein head

again. Gerben: “In the summer I would easily make it

oﬃce to facilitate that move and we have

there and back without charging, even with my sporty

made preparations to install a total of

driving style of 130 kilometres an hour. But in the winter

20 charging points. The fact that the

it becomes an issue, because the heating also runs on the

actual action radius of fully electric cars

battery, which is less eﬃcient when it’s cold. I have never

increases every year (to around 400 km

had a problem topping up the charge. If I travel to The

in 2017) is a very positive development.

In 2017, five Ordina employees signed up to lease fully

Hague (240 kilometres), I spend less than half an hour at

However, there are a number of risks that

electric cars. And they are all very positive about their

the quick-charge station near Almere and that takes the

are reducing the pace of CO2 emissions

experience, although the action radius is still an issue.

battery capacity back up to 80%. I eat a sandwich while

batteries in the global marketplace is

Since November 2017, information security consultant

creating ever longer delivery times for

Raïz Amierali has been getting into his Volkswagen

such cars. That may prove to be an

e-Golf every day to travel from his home in The Hague to

obstacle to the mass transition to electric

his work at Logius, also in The Hague. He is very pleased:

transport in the coming years. And the

“It is always very quiet in the car, I only have a 4% tax

adjustment of tax regulations is a risk that

addition – that’s a definite plus for a junior consultant –

may have a negative impact on this

and I am consciously doing something that is good for

In addition to the low tax addition, the environment was

development.

the environment. You do have to be aware of the action

also Gerben’s main reason for the switch. “At Ordina, we

radius. It’s easy to drive 100 kilometres. Any more than

charge on green energy, but even if we didn’t, electricity

that and you have to go looking for a charging point to

still works out more positive than traditional fuel in terms
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Case 100% electric car driver

I’m waiting.”

reduction. For instance, the shortage of

charge the car. And at Logius, I always put the car on a

‘Gerben wholeheartedly
advises his colleagues to
make the change, too.’

of CO2 emissions.” Gerben wholeheartedly advises his

nearby charging point, about a five-minute walk from the

colleagues to make the change, too: “The car drives

entrance, just to be on the safe side. But that’s not really

fabulously, accelerates quickly and without hesitation, is

necessary. I can just as easily drive to the head oﬃce in

quiet and has a low centre of gravity that makes it very

Nieuwegein.” Raïz sees very few problems even when it

stable on the road. In inner cities, when all the other

comes to holidays. “I rarely if ever go on driving holidays.

parking spaces are taken, the charging points are often

If I wanted to go away on a longer trip by car, I could

still available. And at the Nieuwegein head oﬃce, our

always swap my car with a colleague who drives a petrol-

parking spots are located very prominently right next to

driven car for that period.”

the main entrance!” ■

%$

report. For this annual report, the external auditor issued

work station was -2%. Last year, gas consumption per

an assurance statement for the targets and results, as

work station was down (-4.9%), but electricity use per

shown on page 168 of the Dutch version of the annual

integration with the business. Ordina has already started

work station increased (5.7%), largely due to a diﬀerent

report of 2017. The theme External obligations &

down that road and takes a structured approach to the

use of the buildings, part of which was rented out

validation was not included. We are currently assessing

new requirements. We also want to improve eﬃciency to

temporarily. One of the instruments used in energy &

whether it is possible to integrate the CSR objectives

reduce the audit pressure for the organisation.

environment measurements is the CO2 Performance

more deeply in our control and reporting cycle.

highest possible level. All of this combined means we are

CO2 Performance ladder

The FIRA Rating System is the platform organisations

In 2017, Ordina in the Netherlands once again achieved

use to make their sustainability performance transparent

level 5 of the CO2 Performance ladder. Our objective

and open for discussion. Ordina has the FIRA Extended

remains the same: to use insights, transparency and

certificate. Ecovadis is another platform that suppliers

participation to realise a reduction in CO2 emissions in

can use to demonstrate that their operations are

our own organisation and in the chain in which Ordina

sustainable. Ordina achieved the Ecovadis Silver

Ordina chooses to gain and retain a number

operates. The emphasis is on the management system

Recognition Level in 2017.

of certifications to show what the organisation

and the focus on continuous improvement. These

FIRA and Ecovadis

ladder. Last year, Ordina retained its level-5 status, the
ahead of our target of reducing CO2 emissions by 20% in
2020 compared to 2010.

External obligations & validation and
certification

and the ISO standard is geared towards increased

does in terms of reliable services and corporate social

elements are a good fit with Ordina’s approach and

Transparency benchmark

responsibility with attention for the environment.

system, as we already work with an integrated

The Transparency benchmark is an annual assessment of

Ordina also aims for a high score in the commonly used

management system.

the content and quality of information about the social
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The development of both the CO2 Performance ladder

In 2017, the savings target for energy-consumption per

element of the operations of the largest companies active

benchmarks on this front.
ISO

in the Netherlands. Some public sector organisations are

Each year, the Sustainability steering group assesses

Ordina has ISO certifications including ISO 9001:2015

also part of the survey group, which includes a total of

whether the certificates and statements still meet the

(for quality) and ISO 14001:2015 (for the environment),

512 companies and organisations. In the Transparency

wishes and requirements of our stakeholders. Internally,

ISO 27001:2013 and NEN 7510:2001 (for management)

benchmark of 2017 (which covered the reporting year

we have streamlined processes and activities to make

and ISO 27001:2013 (for !TX data migrations). The

2016), Ordina took 43rd place, compared with 74th in

sure we can meet all the various requirements with

context of the organisation also plays a significant role in

2016 (reporting year 2015). Ordina also raised its score

limited eﬀort.

these new standards: what are the key developments in

in comparison to similar companies: in the category

the organisation? What is happening in the company’s

Services, Ordina went up to 4th place in 2017, from 14th

A key development on this front is the assurance

sector? How are the wishes and requirements of stake-

place in 2016.

statement from an external auditor with respect to the

holders taken into account? The new standards also devote

non-financial information Ordina reports in its annual

more attention to an integrated, risk-based approach.

"&

Results sustainability

Goal 2017

Result 2017

EES questions inclusivity: 7

7.1 and 6.9

Pilot people with limited access to the labour market (NL)

Not yet started: pilot being prepared, execution in 2018

Sustainable employability

Baseline measurement hours (NL)

Completed

Training courses

Average score 7/10 (Be)

8.0

Participation level 80% (Be)

91%

Client satisfaction

NPS score min. 70

The Netherlands: 65.3
Belgium: 54.0

Services with an impact

Trendsetting project in annual report (min. 1)

Total 3
Navigate (p. 49)
Tommi€ (p. 66)
NS PAS (p. 48)

Security

Research: # trained security professionals

Research completed: company-wide training programme 419 participants

Employees
Inclusivity (in broadest sense)
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Overview CSR results 2017

Clients

Society
Oranje Fonds
Ordina Foundation

Combined 300 to 500 hours a year

68 hours

Suppliers & means
CO2 reduction per FTE

2.0%

Reduction 5.7%

Energy consumption reduction per work station for electricity
(in KWh) and gas (in m3)

2.0%

Reduction gas 4.9%
Increase electricity 5.7%

Reduction in fuel consumption (in litres) and CO2 emissions per car

2.0%

Reduction 3.8%

The glossary of terms on page 161 includes a more detailed explanation of the objectives and measurement methods.

"'
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RISKS

Risk management is an important part
of Ordina’s corporate governance, of
our Business Management Framework
(our digital management system) and
our business principles.

!"

Ordina’s risk management recognises strategic, financial,

In addition, we have also determined a risk management

operational and compliance risks.

ambition per risk on the basis of the extent to which

Risk management is an integral part of our business

we can influence a risk and the developments relating

planning and review cycle. As part of its business

to each risk. In this context, we also assessed any

planning cycle, Ordina conducts a bottom-up risk

opportunities that may be associated with a risk, which

assessment of its operations in the Netherlands and

might mean that fully mitigating a risk may not always be

Belgium/Luxembourg. In addition to this, the

desirable. The measures we take are designed to move

management also conducts a top-down risk assessment.

the risks towards the ambition level we have set. The rate

We assess all relevant risks for likelihood and impact

at which we achieve this ambition depends on the risk

according to a predetermined structure, and we weigh

and market developments.
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RISK!MANAGEMENT

the risks on that basis. We include the findings of
these assessments in our regular reports, which are

The risks included in this annual report are directly

subsequently discussed during regular reviews in the

related to market developments, our market positioning

Executive Committee, and with the Supervisory Board.

and our business operations.

On the basis of the assessment of likelihood and impact,

The heatmap on page 74 shows the risks on the left,

we also determine Ordina’s risk appetite level.

positioned in line with our assessment of said risks at

The reasons risks may be qualified as unacceptable are:

the end of the year. This heatmap shows which risks

• Any danger to our continuity.

have the largest impact on our operations, when

• Any danger to our reputation in the fields of

incurred. The movement of the risk compaired tot the

compliance and integrity.
• Any material impact on revenues and, more
specifically, on our profitability.

previous year (indicated by the arrow) shows how this
risk occurred during this year. On the right, the direction
of the arrow shows our ambitions relating to the risks.
In addition, we describe this ambition for each risk, the
developments in the past year and the measures we are
taking to limit the likelihood of that risk materialising or
to mitigate the impact of same.

!#

high

high

Ambition direction

O2

O2

S4
S3

O1

low

medium

high

Impact

F5

C1
O1

S1

F2

S2

C2

F6
low

medium

high

Impact

The dot marks the current position
The arrow indicates the development in the past year

Strategic
S1 Sensitivity to economic cycles
S2 Ordina’s relative scale
S3 Consequences of threats or acts
of terrorism
S4 Rise of small, specialist companies

F3

C2

F6

O3

F4

F1

low

F5

C1

S1

S2

F2

medium

F3
F1

low

O3

F4

S3

F7

Chance

medium

F7

Chance

S4
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Current estimate (year-end 2017)

Financial
F1 Liquidity risk
F2 Pressure on consultancy rates
F3 Credit risk
F4 Impairment of goodwill
F5 Valuation projects in progress
F6 Foreign operations
F7 Valuation deferred tax assets

The dot marks the current position
The arrow indicates the direction of our ambition

Operational
O1 Growing risk profile client projects
O2 Scarcity on the employment market
O3 Data security and legislation

Compliance
C1 Failure to comply with laws and regulations
C2 Reputation damage

!$

Strategic risks may have an impact on the achievability
of Ordina’s strategic objectives. We explain the main
strategic risks below.

Sensitivity to economic cycles (S1)

Economic fluctuations, due to factors such as an unstable

Ordina’s relative scale (S2)

Ambition: unfortunately, we cannot influence the

Some (potential) clients occasionally have concerns or

likelihood of this risk arising. However, we aim to reduce

doubts regarding Ordina’s scale in relation to the scale of

the impact of this risk considerably, and consider a

the client or the contract. On the other hand, Ordina

medium impact a feasible target in that respect.

could quickly become dependent on a specific client
when revenues from that client increase.

(geo) political situation, in combination with a relatively

Rise of small, specialist companies (S4)

We are seeing a steady increase in the number of

inflexible cost structure, will have a direct impact on our

Development: this risk is easier to mitigate due to

small, specialist companies coming on the market, as

results.

improved market conditions, which has resulted in a

competitors in terms of both our services and on the

slight reduction of the impact.

labour market. The reason for this is the decline in

Development: the economic recovery and the high

Measure: we are targeting growth in all our markets

demand for all-encompassing projects, and client

market demand for IT services have reduced the chance

and focus on clients that fit Ordina’s profile. We are also

demand for specific sub-solutions. In addition, these

of this risk occurring. Due to the absence of revenue

looking to close more long-term contracts.

companies are doing a lot to be attractive employers

growth, the impact of this risk has remained the same.

Ambition: we strive to reduce both the impact and

for their staﬀ.

Measure: we aim to create more added value in our

likelihood of this risk to the medium end of the scale in

services by focusing on our five business propositions,

terms of likelihood and impact. The focus on our key

Development: the likelihood of this risk arising has

plus we look to forge sustainable partnerships to

accounts means that we believe a certain level of

increased considerably due to the current market

maintain and strengthen our client relationships.

dependence is acceptable.

conditions, both on the sales market and the labour

In addition, we are aiming to achieve a manageable
cost structure, a flexible pool of temporary staﬀ and to
increase revenues from long-term contracts. Revenue
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STRATEGIC!RISKS

Consequences of threats or acts of terrorism (S3)

market.
Measure: we are working on a more sharply defined

It is possible that (the threat of) acts of terror may result

market positioning, which gives clients and potential

is also spread across various markets (public sector,

in restrictions on travel, that particular locations may be

employees a much clearer idea of what we stand for and

financial services, industry and healthcare).

inaccessible for longer periods of time, or that the

why we can provide an attractive working environment

Ambition: our measures are aimed at reducing the

operations of clients are brought to a standstill

for existing and future employees.

impact of this risk to the medium end of the scale. We

temporarily. This has direct implications for our services.

Ambition: we strive to reduce the impact of this risk to

do not consider a reduction to a low impact and/or low

Development: this risk is unchanged.

the medium end of the scale. We consider it unlikely that

likelihood feasible and do not consider mitigating this

Measure: we aim for maximum flexibility and location-

we would be able to reduce either the likelihood or the

risk to low desirable, as our services are by their nature

independence in our work. This does not only apply to

impact of this risk to low: we operate in a competitive

sensitive to economic fluctuations, which also creates

our own infrastructure, as we strive proactively to reach

market, which means this risk also comes with

commercial opportunities.

agreements with our clients on this front.

commercial opportunities.

!%

Financial risks are risks related to financing, the financial

Development: due to the scarcity of IT professionals,

this risk fell slightly due to the drop in the number of

results, the financial stability of partners in the chain and

both the likelihood and impact of this risk have

freelancers we deploy per broker.

fiscal risks. The main financial risks are as follows:

declined. However, this decline in risk is limited, as we

Measure: internally, we report periodically on payment

work on the basis of numerous multi-year framework

behaviour and the outstanding invoices sent to

agreements.

(vulnerable) partners in the chain. We periodically

The increasingly critical stance adopted by financiers is

Measure: we target above-average performance levels

assess the creditworthiness of our partners, on the basis

limiting financing opportunities in the market.

and clear added value for our clients, by providing clients

of strict limits.

Liquidity risk (F1)

with an integrated package of the various services that

Ambition: our eﬀorts are aimed at reducing both the

Development: the likelihood of this risk arising has

Ordina oﬀers. In addition to this, we focus on innovation,

likelihood and impact of this risk, as a result of which

decreased slightly, both as a result of the recovering

so that we can oﬀer clients clearly identifiable added

both likelihood and impact are low.

economy and the measures we have taken, including the

value vis-a-vis the delivery of capacity.

extension of our financing for the second time by one

Ambition: we aim to reduce both the likelihood and the

year at unchanged conditions through to May 2020.

impact of this risk to the middle of the scale. We consider

Measure: we aim for the continued reduction of our

this an acceptable ambition level since the rates are a

average net debt through the intensive monitoring of our

substantial part of our earnings model and entail both

working capital and the structural reduction of our costs.

risks and opportunities.

We continue to monitor our working capital intensively
and take any possible optimisation measures to further

Credit risk (F3)

Impairment of goodwill (F4)

Market circumstances and forecasts may sometimes
necessitate the impairment of goodwill on acquisitions.
Development: in 2017, the likelihood of this risk
increased due to the fact that Ordina’s results lagged
expectations.

Due to market circumstances, clients, suppliers or

Measure: we continue to maintain strict control of our

Ambition: our eﬀorts are aimed at reducing both the

vulnerable groups could experience solvency or

cost structure and we have taken measures to cut our

likelihood and impact of this risk. This risk will decline

continuity issues.

overhead in the Netherlands. We are also targeting

improve our liquidity position.

to low in terms of likelihood and to medium in terms

growth in all our markets to improve our returns.
Development: the eﬀect of the recovering economy

As a result, we reduce the likelihood of impairments

and our strict credit management has reduced both the

to goodwill. For more information, see note 7.6 of the

likelihood and the impact of this risk. The decline in risk

financial statements on page 125.

The rates for the professional services of commodity

is slight, due to the increase in the number of freelancers

Ambition: we aim to further reduce both the likelihood

service providers could come under further pressure due

deployed via brokers. In 2017, we increased the amount

and the impact of this risk to low.

to freelancers and brokers.

of business we do with brokers. However, the impact of

of impact.

Pressure on consultancy rates (F2)
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FINANCIAL!RISKS
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Valuation projects in progress (F5)

Foreign operations (F6)

Valuation deferred tax (F7)

functionality, the applied technology or the involvement

removed from our head oﬃce in geographical terms and

totalling EUR 42.7 million. In the context of these loss

of several parties. This can result in financial risks in the

operate in their respective markets with their own

carry-forwards, Ordina has recognised a deferred tax

valuation of projects in progress with respect to projects

employees, clients and management. This entails a risk

claim of EUR 10.2 million. There is a risk that it will not

for which Ordina bears financial responsibility.

that these oﬃces might operate too autonomously.

be possible to oﬀset these loss carry-forwards quickly

Development: the measures we have taken and the

Development: the appointment of Jo Maes, former

reduced number of large projects means both the

director BeLux, as CEO has further reduced this risk,

likelihood and the impact of this risk have declined

both in terms of likelihood and impact.

Development: the fact that our results lagged

slightly in the past year.

Measure: the foreign operations are part of the division

expectations in 2017 has increased the likelihood this

Measure: Ordina maintains a strict schedule for the

Belgium/Luxembourg. This division is managed in line

risk will materialise.

internal reporting of our result obligations, with specific

with the Netherlands division. The directors of the

Measure: we are targeting growth in all our markets and

attention devoted to the reliability of estimates and

Belgium/Luxembourg division have seats on the

continue to monitor our cost structure to improve our

planning schedules. The valuation of projects in progress

Executive Committee, which safeguards their

returns. This reduces the risk of any depreciation of the

is an important part of our month-end procedures and

engagement with the rest of the company. The financial

deferred tax claim. For more information, please see

we discuss the most important and the most high-risk

function in Belgium/Luxembourg is managed centrally

note 10 of the financial statements on page 129.

projects during regular reviews.

in functional terms.

Ambition: our aim is to reduce both the likelihood and

Ambition: we aim to reduce the potential impact of

Ambition: this risk is at our ambition level.

the impact of this risk to low.

Projects can be complex due to the scale, the desired

Our operations in Belgium/Luxembourg are further

At year-end 2017, Ordina had loss carry-forwards

enough, as a result of which (a part of) the deferred tax
claim will have to be depreciated.

this risk to low.

!!

Scarcity on the employment market (O2)

Data security and legislation (O3)

clients and systems. The main operational risks are as

This is due in part to a limited supply on the labour

Confidential information can fall into the wrong hands

follows:

market and in part to lower retention rates (the retention

due to cybercrime or the failure of IT systems.

Operational risks are unexpected developments that may
have a negative impact on internal processes, employees,

ncreasing risk profile client projects O1

There is a shortage of highly-trained IT professionals.

Data security is vital in the current digital era.
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OPERATIONAL!RISKS

of expert and experienced employees) and due to factors
such as the recovering economy.

Development: on the one hand, we are seeing a growing
dependence on information systems, and on the other

There is a growing need among clients to transfer
responsibility to their suppliers. This combined with a

Development: the likelihood and impact of this risk

hand regulations are now tighter on this front. Both the

growing claim culture has raised the risk profile of our

increased considerably over the past year.

impact and likelihood of this risk are unchanged from

projects.

Measure: we are targeting a much clearer market

the previous year.

positioning, through our focus on the five business

Measure: we work constantly on our security

Development: both the likelihood and the impact of this

propositions. This makes it much clearer to future

organisation and on increasing awareness. In addition,

risk have declined, as the use of agile principles has

employees what we stand for. In addition to this, we

we are taking steps to safeguard our own data systems

reduced the level of obligation to produce results and due

strive to create an innovative working environment, to

and those of our clients. Parts of our services are certified

to the fact that projects are becoming smaller in scale.

make Ordina an attractive employer, with an excellent

according to ISO 27001 standards, as well as NEN 7510

Measure: our approach to projects ensures both control

reputation in the field of integrity and high employee

standards.

and buy-in and engagement from all parties concerned.

engagement. On top of this, our Young Professionals

Ambition: we believe it is possible to reduce the impact

During the acquisition phase, our Deal Review System

programme oﬀers opportunities for young newcomers.

of this risk slightly. The measures we take are primarily

ensures a critical assessment of opportunities and risks

Ambition: we aim to reduce both the likelihood and the

aimed at considerably reducing the likelihood of this risk

and involvement at the right level of management.

impact of this risk to medium.

materialising.

Ambition: our measures aim to reduce the impact of this
risk to the medium end of the scale. We consider this
level acceptable since we want to maintain our project
portfolio as a valuable component of our earnings model.
We therefore consider the risks acceptable vis-à-vis the
related opportunities.

!'

Compliance risks include any and all issues that could
lead to reputation damage, legal damage, sanctions

Risk of reputation damage (C2)

Ordina’s reputation might be damaged by unfavourable

imposed by regulatory bodies and financial damage as a

reports about Ordina in the Dutch press and other

result of the failure to comply with prevailing laws and

channels.
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regulations. The main compliance risks are as follows:

Failure to comply with laws and regulations (C1)

Development: both the likelihood and impact of this
risk are unchanged.

Ordina’s business operations must comply with all laws

Measure: following the introduction of our integrity

and regulations, such as the tender laws, competition

policy, we organised a number of follow-up sessions in

laws, the duty to report data breaches and the Data

the various management teams. We are constantly

Protection Act. In addition, Ordina must comply with all

looking for ways to increase our employees’ awareness

laws and regulations related to reporting and its stock

and knowledge on this front. For instance, we organise

exchange listing.

awareness sessions for new employees and others. For
more information, see the integrity section in the chapter

Development: our measures and the growing awareness

About Ordina on page 28 of this annual report.

on this front have slightly reduced the likelihood of this

Ambition: we believe that we have taken all possible

risk materialising.

measures to reduce this risk to an acceptably low level.

Measure: a multi-disciplinary approach has increased

We consider our influence on the impact as limited. That

the awareness of existing and changing laws and

puts the risk at our ambition level.

regulations and the ensuing risks. In operational terms,
we monitor compliance via our Deal Review System and
several specific procedures.
Ambition: we aim to reduce this risk to low. We consider
our influence on the impact extremely limited.

!(
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The Governance chapter includes
detailed information on our
operational governance, as well as
the Management Board in control
statement and the report of the
Supervisory Board.
Our operational governance is based
on three pillars:
1. Business principles
2. Sound management
3. Internal controls

')

Fair competition

Ordina’s tax position is consistent with normal business

We advocate fair and open competition in all markets and

operations and is based on its corporate strategy, its

and staﬀ. We operate our company according to sound

countries in which we are active. We refrain from closing

business principles and the geographical distribution of

economic principles, we are a loyal partner, a reliable

agreements with other players in our sector that might

its operations. Each action related to the planning of tax

supplier, a socially-responsible employer, and we take

have a deleterious eﬀect on a client’s freedom of choice.

positions should be related to the company’s normal

Our business principles and the related guidelines provide
guidance for the actions and conduct of both management

our corporate social responsibility seriously.

Integrity

Transparency

business operations and be in line with Ordina’s business
principles. Ordina acts according to both the letter and

Ordina’s annual and interim reports, plus trading

the spirit of the law. Ordina does not make any use of

Ordina wants to be an honest and reliable company.

updates, are publicly available and are published on our

tax havens.

Integrity should be woven into the very fabric of the

website. In these reports, we report our performance

Ordina organisation. Acting with integrity lies at the

faithfully, carefully, transparently and in a timely

Ordina is transparent about its approach to the payment

heart of every relationship and every contact. It creates

fashion. We draw up our annual and interim reports in

of taxes and its tax position. We report our tax position

trust and it determines our success. But any lack of

accordance with the principles for financial reporting

in line with applicable national and international

integrity could undermine the continuity of our business.

and any legal requirements. Except in those instances

legislation. Intra-company services are settled on the

Our clients, partners and stakeholders must be able to

when the company has just reason to delay the

basis of the arm’s length principle. Ordina meets all its

trust us. They have a right to expect an organisation like

publication of such information, the company will

obligations in transfer-pricing documentation, such as

Ordina to maintain the very highest standards in terms

publish any information that qualifies as share price

country-by-country reporting. We closely monitor all

of assessing desirable and undesirable conduct.

sensitive immediately in a press release.

new developments in the field of relevant documentation

The Ordina code of conduct lays down the level of

Our policy on the payment of taxes

obligations

Ordina believes that ethically responsible conduct with

The tax payments Ordina makes are primarily corporate

same. In addition to the code, we have a broad range of

respect to the payment of taxes should be an integral part

tax, dividend tax, sales tax, payroll tax and social

interrelated guidelines that also oﬀer concrete guidance

of any sustainable business operation. Ordina believes

premiums. Results are recognised where Ordina is legally

on subjects such as anti-bribery, gifts and business

that meeting its obligations to pay taxes creates long-

registered, as a result of which Ordina pays corporate tax

entertainment, the prevention of fraud, the prevention

term value for all its stakeholders.

in the Netherlands, Belgium and Luxembourg.

In line with our business principles, Ordina believes

Ordina communicates with the tax oﬃce on the basis of

integrity Ordina expects and the appropriate attitude to
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of conflicts of interest, fair competition and handling
confidential information.

in ethically responsible conduct with respect to the

reciprocal trust and transparency. Ordina consults with

The chapter About Ordina provides further details on our

payment of taxes. Ordina acts at all times in accordance

the tax oﬃce periodically to discuss significant fiscal

integrity policy in 2017.

with all applicable laws and regulations. We endorse the

matters and developments. Ordina consults with the tax

tenet that taxes should be paid on the basis of the fair

oﬃce in advance with respect to significant fiscal

share principle.

matters, if such is deemed necessary. Ordina has no

'*
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agreements with the tax oﬃce in the context of so-called

representation of same. Ordina and the external auditor

horizontal supervision, but the company does operate on

consult with each other in this context, and discuss any

the basis of the key principles of same.

relevant transactions and the communication with the

in Sustainable Innovation and Corporate Social

tax oﬃce.

Responsibility (CSR) are embodiments of the same

Risks related to taxes are part of our internal risk
management and control system. We see compliance

Social policy

Ordina is aware of its role in society. Partnerships

principle: using know-how and expertise sustainably for
the benefit of people and society. We have identified five

Ordina’s employee policy is geared towards finding a

themes in our sustainability strategy: employees, clients,

and it is part of the Ordina Risk Control Framework.

good balance between the company’s interests and

society, suppliers & resources and external obligations &

As part of our risk management, tax risks and tax

opportunities and those of its employees. We oﬀer

validation. We explain these themes in more detail in the

positions are discussed in the Executive Committee

employees equal opportunities in terms of career and

chapter Corporate Social Responsibility, where we also

and the Supervisory Board’s audit committee.

development and strive to arrive at fair treatment in

present the results achieved in 2017.

with tax laws and regulations as a compliance risk

the event of a conflict. We do our utmost to promote the
The external auditor determines whether the tax position

well-being of our employees through an active vitality

presented in the financial statements is a true and fair

policy and by providing good working conditions.

'"

Internal governance is a high priority for Ordina. We

The business plan includes a financial budget per business

• progress in terms of the risks identified;

continuously assess and further professionalise this

unit. On top of this, it includes concrete business targets

• turnover and recruitment of staﬀ;

governance. We devote systematic attention to our

that have been translated into several Key Performance

• progress and risks in the execution of key contracts.

governance structure, processes, systems and controls.

Indicators (KPIs), which we monitor for progress

Our internal governance comprises the following

continuously throughout the year. In addition, Ordina

building blocks:

uses the OGSM (Objective, Goals, Strategies and Measures)

• Strategy development;

method to translate our goals and ambitions into concrete

and mandates, the division of tasks, policies and

• Analysis of results, forecasts and internal reporting

and measurable actions and to monitor the progress.

guidelines, administrative requirements and controls

cycles;
• Transparent organisation;
• Transparent process for dealing with incidents;
• Project controls;
• Control self-assessment and audits
(see chapter on Internal Controls)

Strategy development

Analysis of results, forecasts and internal
reporting cycle

Transparent organisation
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At Ordina, we have formalised processes, responsibilities

within the company in a clear and accessible manner in
the Business Management Framework (BMF), in
combination with our Risk Control Framework.

We analyse the financial results of the business units and
their forecasts on a monthly basis, both at local and at

The business unit management is responsible for the

corporate level. This analysis also includes newly

correct application of processes and systems.

identified risks, as a complement to the risk assessment
in the budget phase. We translate any risks that have

Business control supports the management in the

Ordina scrutinises its strategy and the related targets and

been identified into measures. The management

application and continued development and

ambitions on an annual basis. Where necessary, we make

subsequently reports periodically on the results of these

professionalisation of the management system as a risk

adjustments based on market developments and the

measures.

management tool

a strengths and weaknesses analysis and a strategic risk

The management and the business controllers of the

The Legal & Risk Management department monitors the

assessment to identify any potential need for any

various business units submit monthly written progress

correlation of the management system with Ordina’s

adjustment. This is the responsibility of the Management

reports. They report to the Management Board on the

goals right across the Ordina organisation. Our

Board. The Board also discusses Ordina’s strategic

status of the targets defined in their business plan, the

management system is an integrated system,

direction extensively with the Supervisory Board at least

related KPIs and financial performance and related risks.

incorporating the requirements for quality (ISO 9001),

once a year.

Based on these reports, we hold monthly review

business operations (AO), the environment (ISO 14001),

meetings to discuss at the very least the following

sustainability and CSR (ISO 26000) and data security

Ordina’s overall strategic targets and the various divisions’

subjects:

(ISO 27001) set by international norms and laws and

contributions to achieving one or more of those targets

• actions agreed upon during prior reviews;

regulations. Ordina is assessed externally by an

serve as the basis for our business plans and long-term

• relevant commercial developments;

independent certified body for compliance with these

plans. The long-term plan is based on estimates of the

• significant client developments;

norms and standards.

assumed market developments in the Netherlands and

• the financial performance over the past month and

opportunities and threats we have identified. We conduct

Belgium/Luxembourg.

updated forecasts;

'#

concrete, we conduct a preliminary investigation of the

the preparations for the imminent introduction of the

the primary system for the administration and business

facts. Depending on the outcome of such an

European General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR),

operations in the Ordina organisation.

investigation, measures are then taken. These can be

also partly under the supervision of our Privacy Oﬃcer.

measures against people or measures aimed at making
The continued optimisation and concretisation of the

improvements or the tightening of policy and/or

operational management remained on schedule in 2017.

guidelines.

Project Management
Deal Review System

In the year under review, Ordina also met the
requirements for a level 5 certification in the CO2

We also have a data leak procedure in place in the event

Ordina strives for the sound and eﬀective management

Performance Ladder and achieved FIRA silver level in

of any (potential) data leaks, and the employee

of projects in which we bear responsibility for results.

the Netherlands and EcoVadid gold level in Belgium.

responsible resolves any issues and (if necessary) makes

This starts with a critical review of opportunities and

the required reports.

threats during the commercial process. We also review

Transparent process for dealing with incidents

the mandatory involvement of the right level of

Ordina has set up a transparent process for incidents in

These reports, investigations and the outcome of same

management, depending on the size and the risk of a

the fields of security, privacy, integrity and compliance.

are compiled in quarterly reports. These reports are

potential contract.

All cases are registered and the designated member of

discussed in the Management Board and the Supervisory

staﬀ monitors the resultant procedures. These are chosen

Board. The Management Board receives weekly progress

We launched the Deal Review System (DRS) to safeguard

from a limited number of potential scenarios and we

reports during any investigations.

this process. For instance, this system enables us to make

devote attention to potential improvements to reduce the
likelihood of such incidents in the future.
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Ordina’s financial administration runs on SAP, which is

Privacy & Security

well-informed decisions at every stage of the tender
process as to whether or not to submit a bid for a project.

Ordina sees the subjects privacy and security as a major

Key elements of the DRS include the assessment of risks

For instance, in the event of a report via one of the

priority, given the tightening of privacy laws and the

and the control measures we have available to mitigate

channels cited in the Speak Up policy of the Code of

increase in threats and risks in digital environments.

those risks.

Conduct, we first look for independent verification of the

On this front, in addition to the regular activities of the

issue cited in the report. If the report is suﬃciently

responsible functionary, we are also working full out on

'$

Audits

Risk management and control systems

we believe these risks have to be manageable and

Management Board and conducts independent audits of

are designed to help ensure that we have suﬃcient

transparent. Our track record, experience, strict project

the correct application of and compliance with internal

certainty at all times regarding the extent to which we

management and contractual agreements with our

procedures and guidelines. These audits focus on both

are achieving our strategic and operational goals. The

clients, including a realistic division of liability, are all

financial and operational elements. The department

systems are also designed to guarantee the reliability

key factors in the mitigation of these risks. Our Legal &

reports its activities to both the Management Board and

of our financial reporting, to ensure that we act in

Risk Management department monitors the consistent

the audit committee on a quarterly basis.

accordance with the laws and regulations that apply

When we accept projects and management contracts,
we obviously accept a certain level of risk. However,

The internal audit function reports directly to the

application of the DRS.

Our internal risk management and control systems
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to our organisation.
The goal is to use the audit findings as a basis for the

excellent Project execution

continuous professionalization of our internal control

Ordina sees the configuration of our internal risk

Ordina has developed an approach to project execution

structure. In addition, these formalised procedures also

management and control systems for our strategic,

it has dubbed excellent Project execution (excellente

help us to continuously increase risk awareness within

operational, compliance and financial (reporting)

Project executie) or xPx in short. The xPx approach is

Ordina.

risks as a high priority. In view of internal and external

equivalent to Prince2, with the addition of a number of

developments, we continuously refine and improve

steps aimed at generating buy-in and commitment from

The external audits are conducted by organisations such

all those involved in a project. For Ordina, sound project

as DNV-GL (Det Norske Veritas-Germanischer Lloyd) and

management is a key condition for the realisation of

our external auditor EY.

project targets. We want to provide our clients with added

these systems.
These systems can never provide absolute certainty and
it is possible that Ordina’s reporting contains material

value by maintaining a clear focus on what we can do to

The external audits cover the management system used,

help them achieve their own business goals and by making

the administrative organisation, the Risk Control

sure that our services continue to facilitate those goals.

Framework and the financial results. In the context of the

You will find more information about our corporate

The progress of key projects is discussed in the business

audit of the annual financial statements, the external

governance on the Ordina website.

units’ monthly review meetings, together with the main

auditor assesses the correct set-up, existence and

conclusions in the findings of the internal audit function.

partially the operation of internal control procedures

inaccuracies.

that are important when drawing up the annual financial
statements. The external auditor reports the findings
of their audits to the Management Board and to the
Supervisory Board, both orally and in writing.

'%

In the year under review, we evaluated the (eﬀectiveness

In addition to this, the Management Board hereby

of the) set-up and functioning of our existing internal risk

declares, in accordance with section 5.25c of the Dutch

management control systems. We discussed the findings

Financial Supervision Act, that to the best of its

of this evaluation, including an evaluation of our risk

knowledge:

profile, with the audit committee and the Supervisory

• The financial statements as per 31 December 2017,

Board.
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presented on pages 102 through 155 of this annual
report, and which have been drawn up in accordance

Based on the evaluation of our internal control structure,

with IFRS EU, give a true and fair account of the assets

it is the Management Board’s opinion that in the year

and liabilities, the financial position and results of

under review the internal risk management and control
systems functioned properly, that they provide

Ordina N.V. and its consolidated entities;
• The annual report gives a true and fair account of

reasonable assurance that the financial information is

Ordina N.V.’s position as per 31 December 2017 and

free from material misstatements and that our

the course of events during the 2017 financial year and

expectation is that the continuity of Ordina N.V. is

that of its related entities whose financial information

assured for the coming twelve months. In view of the

has been consolidated in the company’s financial

current state of aﬀairs, Ordina’s financial statements can

statements, and that the annual report describes the

justifiably be drawn up on a going concern basis.

principal risks that Ordina N.V. faces.

You will find a more detailed description of the internal

Finally, the Management Board declares that the annual

risk management and control systems in the Governance

report complies with the EU directive regarding the

chapter, on page 85 of this annual report. The material

disclosure of non-financial information and information

risks and uncertainties that may have an impact on

related to diversity.

Ordina’s business operations are explained in the Risk
chapter, on pages 72 through 79 of this annual report.

Nieuwegein, 14 February 2018
Management Board Ordina N.V.

In view of the above, Ordina complies with best practice
provisions 1.4.2 and 1.4.3 of the Dutch Corporate

Jo Maes, CEO

Governance Code.

Annemieke den Otter, CFO

'&

The Supervisory Board’s primary duty is to supervise

Johan van der Werf (1952, Dutch) has been a member

Dirk Anbeek (1963, Dutch) was appointed as a member

Ordina’s management, from both a strategic and an

of Ordina’s Supervisory Board since May 2010 and its

of the Ordina Supervisory Board in May 2012 and

operational perspective. The role, tasks and composition

Chairman since August 2010. His other positions include

reappointed for a four-year period on 26 April 2016.

of the Supervisory Board are described in the Supervisory

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the NOS, and

He has also been chairman of the audit committee since

Board rules of procedure.

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Utrecht

1 May 2015. Mr. Anbeek is the Chief Executive Oﬃcer of

The members of the Supervisory Board are:

University Medical Centre, Chairman of the Supervisory

Wereldhave and a member of the Supervisory Board of

Board of the Zeeuws Investeringsfonds. He is also a

supermarket operator Detailresult Groep, the parent

member of the Supervisory Board of the Blauwtrust

company of Dirk van den Broek and Dekamarkt

Group, and of the Advisory Board of the Sociale

supermarkets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | GOVERNANCE

SUPERVISORY!BOARD

Verzekeringsbank, where he is also chairman of the
Audit Committee. Mr. Van der Werf was appointed on

Aloys Kregting (1967, Dutch) was appointed as a

12 May 2010 and was reappointed as a member of the

member of the Supervisory Board of Ordina in May 2011.

Supervisory Board for a four-year period on 14 May 2014.

Mr. Kregting was appointed Chief Information Oﬃcer
at AkzoNobel in February 2016 and has been a member

Johan van der Werf

Pamela Boumeester

Pamela Boumeester (1958, Dutch) was appointed as a

of the Utrecht University Medical Centre’s Supervisory

member of the Ordina Supervisory Board in May 2009

Committee since 1 December 2016. Mr. Kregting was

and was appointed Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory

appointed to the Ordina Supervisory Board on

Board in May 2012. Ms. Boumeester was also appointed

11 May 2011 and reappointed for a four-year period

as chairman of the remuneration, nomination and HRM

on 30 April 2015.

committee on 1 May 2015. Ms. Boumeester’s other

Dirk Anbeek

Aloys Kregting

Jan Niessen

positions include chairman of the board of the Stichting

Jan Niessen (1963, Dutch) was appointed as a member

Royal Haskoning DHV, chairman of the Advisory Board

of the Supervisory Board of Ordina on 16 November 2015.

of H&S Groep and a member of the Supervisory Boards

Mr. Niessen is Managing Director of Mont Cervin Sàrl

of Jaarbeurs, Persgroep Nederland and Heijmans. In

and a member of the Supervisory Board of Amsterdam

addition, Ms. Boumeester is a judge at the Enterprise

Commodities N.V. Mr. Niessen’s term ends as of the end

Chamber of the Amsterdam district court and executive

of the General Meeting of Shareholders to be held in 2019.

coach with Quist Executive Coaching. Ms. Boumeester
was reappointed for a two-year period on 2 May 2017.

You will find the rules of procedure for the Supervisory
Board on Ordina’s website.

'!

In this report, we provide you with
more information on how the
Supervisory Board carried out its
supervisory tasks with respect to the
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various issues that arose in the year
under review.

''

Supervisory Board

The members of the Supervisory Board were in frequent

In the year under review, the Supervisory Board held five

contact with the Management Board members outside

regular meetings with the Management Board, all

the scheduled meetings.

according to a prearranged schedule. Members of the

Supervisory Board committees

The Supervisory Board has appointed two committees
from among its members: an audit committee and a
remuneration, nomination and HRM committee (RNH

Executive Committee also attended a number of these

In addition to the aforementioned meetings, the

committee). The task of these committees is to prepare

meetings. The Supervisory Board and the Management

Supervisory Board conducted one meeting in the

the discussions and decision-making processes in the

Board also held two additional meetings, at which the

absence of the Management Board and the Supervisory

Supervisory Board regarding certain specific subjects.

subjects included the eﬃciency programme with which

Board members frequently consulted with each other

The organisation, working methods, tasks and

Ordina realised a reduction of overheads in 2017.

outside the meetings. During the above-mentioned

responsibilities of the committees are laid down in the

Virtually all members attended all meetings of the

consultations, we also discussed the succession

rules of procedure, which are available on the company’s

Supervisory Board and its committees, with the exception

procedure for the chairman of the Supervisory Board

website under the header ‘Organisational structure’. Last

of Ms. Boumeester and Mr. Kregting, who were each

to be appointed. The Supervisory Board also consulted

year saw the amendment of a number of items in these

unable to attend one meeting (attendance percentage of

with the company’s external auditor, both in the

rules of procedure, as well as in the Supervisory Board

90% and 93% respectively). They were involved in the

presence and in the absence of the Management Board.

rules of procedure, to comply with the new Corporate

deliberations and decision-making associated with the
meetings concerned both in advance and afterwards.

Strategy

In the year under review, the Supervisory Board received

Governance Code.

Audit committee

In the aforementioned meetings, we also discussed a

regular updates on the development of the market

number of regular subjects, such as the budget, the

strategy in the form of five business propositions (High

in their supervision of the Management Board related

operational and financial developments, cost control,

performance teams, Intelligent data-driven

to subjects such as the (eﬀectiveness of the) structure

compliance and integrity, the (execution of the) strategy,

organisations, Digital Acceleration, Business platforms

and functioning of internal risk management and

the relationship with the shareholders and risk

and Security & privacy). These business propositions

control systems, the financial reporting process and

management.

help increase Ordina’s market recognition and added

the introduction and supervision of associated internal

The Audit Committee supports the Supervisory Board

value for clients and are viewed as positive by clients.

procedures, the financing of the company and the

The external auditor attended the meetings in which the

The Supervisory Board also discussed the execution of

relationship with the internal and external auditors.

annual results were on the agenda.

the 2017 management agenda with the Management
Board, including the eﬃciency programme and the

The Audit Committee has two members, at least one

Subjects discussed during the annual meeting with the

continued streamlining of Ordina’s management

of whom has expertise in the field of financial

works council included the evaluation of the relationship

structure, as part of the company’s ambition to be a more

reporting and/or the auditing of financial statements.

between the Management Board and the works council.

eﬀective and eﬃcient organisation.

On 31 December 2017, the committee consisted of

The Supervisory Board determined that the Management
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Dirk Anbeek (chairman) and Aloys Kregting.

Board and the works council have a positive relationship.

'(

RNH Committee were on each occasion sent to all the

The RNH Committee prepares discussions for the

members of the Supervisory Board and the Management

In accordance with the rules of procedure for the Audit

Supervisory Board that relate to subjects such as

Board.

Committee, the meetings were attended by the CFO, the

performance criteria, remuneration and the employment

Finance & Control director and the General Counsel &

terms of the members of the Management Board and

The RNH Committee discussed subjects such as

Compliance Oﬃcer. The CEO, the internal auditor and

other HR–related subjects. The RNH Committee

performance criteria for the members of the

the external auditor also attended a number of the

supports the Supervisory Board in its supervision of the

Management Board, employee engagement,

meetings of the Audit Committee. Over the course of the

Management Board with respect to subjects including

management development, the filling of strategic

year, the chairman of the audit committee discussed

the policy of the Management Board related to selection

management positions and succession planning.

current issues with the CFO.

criteria and appointment procedures for upper

The RNH Committee also initiated the procedure

management positions and management development.

for the appointment of a new chairman of the

regular meetings, as well as two additional meetings.
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Remuneration, Nomination and HR committee

In the year under review, the Audit Committee had five

Supervisory Board.

In the first meeting of the Supervisory Board following
a meeting of the Audit Committee, the chairman of

The RNH Committee has three members. On

the Audit Committee each time reported orally on the

31 December 2017, the RNH Committee consisted

meeting. In addition, the minutes of the meetings of

of Pamela Boumeester (chairman), Jan Niessen and

the Audit Committee were on each occasion sent to all

Johan van der Werf.

the members of the Supervisory Board and the
Management Board.

The RNH Committee met three times in the year
under review. The CEO attended each of the meetings.

Subjects discussed by the Audit Committee included the

The General Counsel & Compliance Oﬃcer and the HRM

quarterly results and the related press releases, plus

Director also attended the parts of the meetings relevant

the eﬀectiveness of the set-up and functioning of internal

for them. In the first meeting of the Supervisory Board

risk management and control systems. The Audit

following a meeting of the RNH Committee, the

Committee also discussed the functioning of the external

chairman of the RNH Committee each time reported

auditor, as well as comments from the external auditor

orally on the meeting of the RNH Committee.

and Ordina’s Assurance department.

In addition, the minutes of the meetings of the

()

Salary development

In terms of the non-financial targets, we concluded

If the targets defined as on-target are realised, the long-

In the context of the appointment of Jo Maes as CEO and

that the targets related to client satisfaction, employee

term variable bonus amounts to 50% of the gross annual

the chairman of the Management Board and in line with

engagement and corporate social responsibility had all

basic salary plus the prevailing percentage of holiday

article 20 of the remuneration policy of the Management

been met.

allowance. The applicable gross basic salary and the
value of the shares in Ordina N.V. to be paid out in the

Board Ordina N.V., the Supervisory Board decided to
increase the annual basic salary of Annemieke den Otter

In view of the above, the Supervisory Board has decided

context of the long-term performance-related bonus

(CFO) to EUR 269,438 including holiday allowance, from

to grant Jo Maes (CEO) a short-term bonus of EUR

scheme are measured at the time the shares are granted

EUR 259,200 including holiday allowance (see paragraph

103,950 and Annemieke den Otter (CFO) a short-term

conditionally.

31.2 of the Financial statements).

bonus of EUR 71,827. This short-term bonus represents

Short-term bonus

In accordance with the Remuneration Policy Management

a payment percentage of 54% of the on-target amount

Each member of the Management Board is entitled to

of the short-term variable bonus, for both board

three variable bonus schemes on the basis of which they

members.

may obtain performance-related shares. These are a
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REMUNERATION!POLICY!MANAGEMENT!BOARD

scheme with a term that runs from January 2015 through

Board Ordina N.V., the short-term bonus is based on
financial and non-financial targets, with the financial

The Supervisory Board has used its discretionary

December 2017, a scheme with a term that runs from

targets carrying greater weight than the non-financial

authority as meant in article 24 of the remuneration

January 2016 through December 2018 and a scheme

targets. The members of the Management Board have

policy for the Management Board and decided to settle

with a term that runs from January 2017 through

the same targets.

the short-term bonus for the year under review for the

December 2019.

departing CEO Stépan Breedveld on a pro rata basis.
If the targets defined as on-target are realised, the short-

As a result, Stépan Breedveld has been allocated a

With respect to the scheme that ran from January 2015

term variable bonus amounts to 50% of the gross basic

short-term bonus of EUR 40,700.

through December 2017, we have determined that the

annual salary plus the prevailing percentage of holiday
allowance.

Long-term bonus

growth in revenues failed to meet the target set. In line
with this, the target set for recurring EBITDA growth was

Like the short-term bonus, the long-term bonus is

also not fully met. However, the net cash position realised

The targets for 2017 were partly realised. The target

based on financial and non-financial targets, in which

was way above the target set. The targets related to client

related to the continued improvement in the net cash

the financial targets carry more weight than the

satisfaction, employee engagement and corporate social

position was easily exceeded. However, the target related

non-financial targets. These targets are also the same

responsibility were all met. And finally, the target related

to revenue growth was not fully met. The EBITDA growth

for both members of the Management Board.

to the image of the company was easily exceeded.

also failed to meet the target set.

(*

With respect to the scheme that runs from January 2017

Jo Maes 16,153 performance-related shares and

through December 2019, the Supervisory Board has

Annemieke den Otter 14,457 performance-related

conditionally granted Jo Maes 91,646 Ordina N.V. Shares

shares. This is equivalent to a payment percentage of

and Annemieke den Otter 63,859 shares. The definitive

53% of the on-target long-term remuneration of the

granting of the shares under this scheme will take place

Management Board. We have allocated the shares on

in the first quarter of 2020.

a pro rata basis for both members of the Management
Board and on the basis of the closing price of Ordina N.V.

The Supervisory Board has used its discretionary

shares prior to the date of their appointment to the

authority as meant in article 31 of the remuneration

Management Board.

policy of the Management Board and decided to settle
the long-term bonus for the year under review for the

With respect to the scheme that runs from January 2016

departing CEO Stépan Breedveld on a pro rata basis. With

through December 2018, the Supervisory Board has

respect to the scheme that runs from January 2015

conditionally granted Jo Maes 61,097 Ordina N.V. shares

through December 2017, the scheme that runs from

and Annemieke den Otter 49,215 shares. The definitive

January 2016 through December 2018 and the scheme

granting of the shares under this scheme will take place

that runs from January 2017 through December 2019,

in the first quarter of 2019. The allocation under these

Stépan Breedveld has been unconditionally granted a

schemes to both members of the Management Board was

total of 149,134 performance shares.
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In view of the above, we have unconditionally granted

also eﬀected on a pro rata basis and on the basis of the
closing price of Ordina N.V. shares prior to the date of

Members of the Management Board are not permitted to

their appointment to the Management Board.

sell their shares within two years of those shares being
granted unconditionally, unless any sale of such shares is
for the sole purpose of paying any levies and premiums
due with respect to those shares.

("

The composition of the Supervisory Board meets the

background and experience. Ordina also strives to meet

eﬀort to realise a diverse composition of the board in

criteria outlined in the profile posted on Ordina’s website,

the aforementioned criteria of Ordina’s diversity policy

aspects including the know-how, experience, gender and

which was amended in 2017 to bring it in line with the

in the composition of the Management Board and the

(social) background of its members.

new Corporate Governance Code. The composition of the

Supervisory Board.
During said meeting, the board also announced that, in

Supervisory Board is such that its members can operate
independently of each other, of the Management Board

The composition of the Supervisory Board is adequately

line with the rotation schedule, Mr. Johan van der Werf

or any other interest, such within the meaning of the

diverse in terms of expertise, experience and social

will step down as of the end of the General Meeting of

Dutch Corporate Governance Code. Four of the five

background, age and gender. In view of the limited size

Shareholders of 2018. In the course of 2017 Mr. Van der

members of the Supervisory Board qualify as

of the Supervisory Board and Management Board, we

Werf has announced he will not be available for

independent within the meaning of best practice 2.1.7

believe it would be unrealistic to apply minimum

reappointment. With a view to the vacancy thus created

of the Code. In view of the (indirect) shareholding held

percentages for the representation of various aspects

and on the basis of the profile outline for members of the

by Jan Niessen, he qualifies as a dependent Supervisory

of diversity. When filling any vacancies that arise, the

Supervisory Board, the board initiated a succession

Board member within the meaning of best practice 2.1.8

Supervisory Board will also take into consideration the

procedure that resulted in the unanimously agreed

of the Code. With the current composition of the board,

aspects of diversity relevant to the company while also

intention of the Supervisory Board, and following a

Ordina complies with best practices 2.1.7 through 2.1.9

taking into consideration all relevant selection criteria

nomination from the Stichting Prioriteit Ordina Groep, to

of the Code.

in the profile outline.

propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders on 26

In the year under review, there were no transactions

On 2 May 2017, the General Meeting of Shareholders

of the Ordina N.V. Supervisory Board, as of the end of said

involving a conflict of interest on the part of the members

reappointed Pamela Boumeester as a member of the

meeting. The Supervisory Board also intends to appoint

of the Supervisory Board or of the Management Board.

Supervisory Board for a period of two years. The reason

Ms. Princen as chairman of the Supervisory Board as of

for the reappointment was Ms. Boumeester’s clear

that date.
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April 2018 that it appoint Caroline Princen as a member

Ordina has a diversity policy. The aim of this policy is to

contribution to Ordina’s development in the previous four

create an inclusive culture with regard to both internal

years with her executive and management experience

In 2017, the rotation schedule was amended to comply

and external stakeholders. This pertain to, among other

and her experience in the field of labour relations and

with the new Corporate Governance Code. This

things, the following aspects of diversity Ordina finds

employee-related aspects. The reappointment of Ms.

document is available in the Organisational structure

important, such as nationality, age, gender, social

Boumeester also contributes to the Supervisory Board’s

section of the Ordina website.

(#

The members of the Supervisory Board received a
remuneration of EUR 35,561 in the year under

Performance of the Board

Partly in view of the relatively recent changes to the

review and the chairman received a remuneration of

composition of the Management Board and the

EUR 50,803. In addition to this remuneration, the

assessment of the corporate governance structure of

chairmen and the members of the Audit Committee

the Ordina Group in 2017, the Supervisory Board

and the RNH Committee received an annual stipend

decided to refrain from assessing the performance of the

of EUR 7,568 and EUR 5,045 respectively.

Supervisory Board and the two committees, as well as
that of each of the individual members in 2017, but

In addition to the above remunerations, members of the

instead do so in the first quarter of 2018. The evaluation

Supervisory Board receive an annual expenses payment

of the Management Board and its individual members

of EUR 2,270. The total remuneration for the members

will also take place in the first quarter of 2018, as will the

of the Supervisory Board in the financial year 2017

assessment of the interaction between the two bodies.
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amounted to EUR 223,318 (excluding expenses).
The remuneration is not related to the company’s
financial performance. Further details are included
in the financial statements.
The annual indexation of the fixed remuneration in line
with the consumer price index as published by the Dutch
Central Bureau of Statistics (CBS) remains unchanged.
The current expenses allowance of EUR 2,270 per annum
also remains unchanged.

($

DIVIDEND!POLICY

General

We conducted a point-by-point analysis of the revised

Ordina’s current dividend policy is aimed at a dividend

The Supervisory Board and the Management Board bear

Corporate Governance Code to determine the extent of

pay-out ratio of 35% of the net profit, under the following

joint responsibility for Ordina’s corporate governance.

Ordina N.V.’s compliance with the provisions of the Code

conditions: 1) a solvency ratio of at least 35% in the

The Supervisory Board and the Management Board

(the ‘comply or explain’ statement). Ordina endorses all

previous reporting year, ii) a historical net debt / adjusted

evaluate Ordina Group’s corporate governance structure

the points made in the Code and applies these in all

EBITDA ratio of less than 1.25 in Q3 and Q4, and iii) the

and a number of related documents on an annual basis.

relevant instances, with the exception of the best practice

future net debt / adjusted EBITDA ratio of less than 1.25

In 2017, in response to the revised Corporate Governance

4.2.3. Individual presentations to investors cannot be

in Q1 and Q2 (after payment of dividend). The basic

Code coming into eﬀect, the boards conducted an

followed by a broad audience via webcast, telephone or

premise is that balance sheet ratios are healthy and that

extensive evaluation of the corporate governance

otherwise. During individual presentations, Ordina uses

the continuity of the company is safeguarded. In the

structure and associated documents, including the

general presentations which are or will be made available

event of surplus cash assets, Ordina may consider the

profile outline for the Supervisory Board, the rules of

on the Ordina website.

payment of a variable, extra dividend.
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procedure of the Supervisory Board and the Corporate
Governance statement. These documents are available in

The Corporate Governance statement and the ‘comply

the Organisational structure section of the Ordina

or explain’ statement are available in the Corporate

website.

Governance section of the Ordina website. Both
documents should be read in conjunction with this
section of the annual report and are deemed to have
been included herein by virtue of referral.

(%

FINAL!REMARKS

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP has audited the financial

We would like to thank the Management Board and all

statements and issued an unqualified auditor’s report.

employees for their dedication and their continued

You will find this report from the independent auditor on

commitment and eﬀorts devoted to serving the interests

page 159 of the Dutch version of the annual report 2017.

of Ordina N.V.’s shareholders, clients and other
stakeholders.

The Supervisory Board and the Management Board
discussed both the financial statements and the external

Nieuwegein, 14 February 2018

auditor’s findings on the basis of their audit of the

Supervisory Board Ordina N.V.

financial statements in a meeting in the presence of the
external auditor. The members of the Supervisory Board

Johan van der Werf, Chairman

have approved and signed the financial statements in

Pamela Boumeester, Deputy chairman

accordance with the provisions of article 2:101, section 2

Dirk Anbeek

of the Dutch Civil Code. We propose that the General

Aloys Kregting

Meeting of Shareholders adopt the financial statements

Jan Niessen
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for 2017 as presented. We ask the General Meeting of
Shareholders to discharge the Management Board for
their management and, independently of same, also
discharge the Supervisory Board for their supervision of
said management.

(&
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OF!ASSOCIATION

(!

The priority share foundation Stichting Prioriteit Ordina

the eyes of the board of the Stichting Prioriteit, one or

Groep (‘Stichting Prioriteit’) is the bearer of the priority

more shareholders, who are acting in a mutually agreed

share issued by the company.

manner, exercise their voting rights in a manner that

Pursuant to the best practice provision 4.2.6 of the Dutch

Appropriation of profits according to the
provisions of the articles of association

If any financial statements submitted by the Supervisory

constitutes a material conflict with the interests of the

Board and adopted by the Annual General Meeting of

company.

Shareholders should disclose that a profit has been made
in the year under review, the Annual General Meeting of

Corporate Governance Code, the company must provide
an overview of all outstanding or potentially applicable

In such or other circumstances in which the continuity

Shareholders shall determine how that profit shall be

protective measures that are in place to protect the

and/or the strategy of the company are at risk, the board

appropriated. Dividends on preference shares shall not

company from any acquisition of control over the

of the Stichting Prioriteit reserves the right to actively

exceed the statutory interest rate prevailing at the date

company. The company must also state in which

exercise its right of nomination in the appointment of

the dividends are declared. If applicable, dividends on

circumstances it expects such measures could be used.

members of the Supervisory Board and the right of

preference shares are calculated on the basis of the

The priority share held by the Stichting Prioriteit may be

approval with respect to proposals to amend the articles

paid-up amount of their par value.

considered such a measure.

of association.

The Stichting Prioriteit has a right of nomination in the

The rights and responsibilities of the Stichting Prioriteit

appointment of members of the Supervisory Board and a

do not prejudice the (statutory) responsibility of the

EUR 3,110,000. The net earnings per share (EPS)

right of approval on proposals to amend the company’s

Supervisory Board and the Management Board to

amounted to EUR 0.03. The company will submit a

articles of association. The Stichting Prioriteit has

investigate all options in the event that the continuity

proposal to the General Meeting of Shareholders, for the

announced it intends to use these rights only in

and/or the strategy of the company are at risk, such in

payment of a cash dividend of 2 euro cents (EUR 0.02)

exceptional cases. These include instances in which the

order to ensure that the interests of the company, its

per share to be charged to the net profit for 2017. The

board of the Stichting Prioriteit believes that the

shareholders and other stakeholders are safeguarded to

remaining net profit will be added to the general

continuity of the company and/or its strategy are at risk.

the greatest possible extent. In the event, for instance,

reserves.

This may be the case, for instance, if a public bid is

of a hostile takeover bid or other circumstances that

announced or made for the ordinary shares in the

the Management Board and the Supervisory Board

company, or if there is a reasonable expectation that such

consider harmful to the interests of the company, the

a bid will be made, without suﬃcient prior consultation

Management Board and the Supervisory Board reserve

2 May 2017 authorised the Management Board – subject

with the company on such a bid. Such a situation may

the right to take all measures possible (including the

to the approval of the Supervisory Board – to purchase

also arise if one shareholder or multiple shareholders

right to claim a response period in accordance with

treasury shares as referred to in article 8 of the articles of

acting in a mutually agreed manner hold a considerable

provision 4.1.7 of the Code). The interests of the

association, such for a period of 18 months commencing

proportion of the outstanding share capital without

company, its group companies and other stakeholders

on 2 May 2017. The treasury shares will be purchased on

making a bid. Another example is a situation in which, in

will be taken into consideration in such an instance.

the stock exchange or otherwise, up to a maximum of

Appropriation of profits
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In the year under review, Ordina recorded a net profit of

Treasury shares

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on

('

ranging between (i) the shares’ par value and (ii) the
share price plus 10%. The share price referred to above
shall be equivalent to the average closing price of Ordina
N.V. shares as stated in the Oﬃcial List of Euronext
Amsterdam N.V. for the five consecutive trading days
immediately prior to the date of purchase.

Significant agreements within the meaning of
article 1 sub j of the Decree implementing article
10 of the Takeover Directive
The company has one contract within the meaning of

article 1(j) of the decree implementing article 10 of the
Dutch Takeover Directive. This involves the credit
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10% of the issued capital as at 2 May 2017 and at a price

facility described in note 17 of the financial statements
on page 136. If, at any time, a shareholder or a group of
shareholders acting jointly should acquire more than
50% of the total issued share capital, control more than
50% of the total number of voting rights or acquire the
right to appoint the majority of the Management Board
members, these credit facilities will be terminated. If the
facilities are thus terminated, any unused borrowing
capacity will lapse and any issued credit facilities will
become payable.

((
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CONSOLIDATED!BALANCE!SHEET!AS!AT!
"#!DECEMBER!$%#&
'BEFORE!APPROPRIATION!OF!PROFIT(

Notes

2016

2017

Intangible assets

7

136.162

131.796

Property, plant and equipment

8

4.677

4.959

Investments in associates

9

397

371

Deferred income tax assets

10

(in euro thousands)
Assets
Non-current assets

Total non-current assets

17.859

18.233

159.095

155.359

Current assets
Transition costs

11

585

123

Trade and other receivables

13

68.891

63.683

Cash and cash equivalents

14

2.691

10.889

72.167

74.695

231.262

230.054

Notes

2016

2017

Paid-up and called-up share capital

15

9.326

9.326

Share premium reserve

16

136.219

136.219

Retained earnings

16

-3.179

-879

Profit for the year

16

Total current assets

Total assets

(in euro thousands)
Equity and liabilities
Equity

Total equity

5.038

3.110

147.404

147.776

880

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employee related provisions

18

868

Other provisions / long term

19

3.889

0

4.757

880

0

0

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings

14/17

Other provisions / short term

20

1.501

839

Trade and other payables

21

71.927

76.325

Current tax payable

5.673

4.234

Total current liabilities

79.101

81.398

Total liabilities

83.858

82.278

231.262

230.054

Total equity and liabilities

The notes 1 through 36 are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED!INCOME!STATEMENT!FOR!$%#&
(in euro thousands)

Notes

2016

2017

6

343,575

344,888

Revenue
Cost of hardware, software and other direct costs

6,474

6,835

77,276

90,158

22

228,327

220,002

7

2,794

4,775

Work contracted out
Personnel expenses
Amortisation
Depreciation
Other operating expenses

8

2,607

2,831

23

16,365

13,360

333,843

337,961

9,732

6,927

0

0

-627

-443

-627

-443

Total operating expenses
Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs
Finance costs - net

24

Share of profit of associates

9

-45

-26

9,060

6,458

-4,022

-3,348

5,038

3,110

Shareholders of the company

5,038

3,110

Net profit for the year

5,038

3,110

Notes

2016

2017

Basic earnings per share

26

0.05

0.03

Diluted earnings per share

26

0.05

0.03

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

25

Net profit for the year

Net profit is attributable to:

(In euro's)

The notes 1 through 36 are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED!STATEMENT!OF!COMPREHENSIVE!
INCOME
Notes

2016

2017

16

5,038

3,110

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans

16/18

-51

-16

Tax on items taken directly to or transferred from equity

10/16

13

4

-38

-12

5,000

3,098

Shareholders of the company

5,000

3,098

Total comprehensive income for the year

5,000

3,098

(in euro thousands)
Profit for the year

Items not te be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:

The notes 1 through 36 are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED!STATEMENT!OF!CHANGES!IN!EQUITY
(in euro thousands)

Notes

At 1 January 2016
Profit for the year

Issued
capital

Share
premium
reserve

Retained
earnings

Profit for
the year

Total

9,296

135,855

-224

-3,168

141,759

16

0

0

0

5,038

5,038

10/16/18

0

0

-38

0

-38

0

0

-38

5,038

5,000

16

0

0

-3,168

3,168

0

15/16

30

364

-394

0

0

15/16/22/31

0

0

645

0

645

30

364

-2,917

3,168

645

9,326

136,219

-3,179

5,038

147,404

Issued
capital

Share
premium
reserve

Retained Profit for the
earnings
year

Total

Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gains and losses
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Transactions with owners
Appropriation of profit previous
year
Issue related to share-based
payment
Movements regarding to sharebased payment
Total transactions with owners
At 31 December 2016

(in euro thousands)

Notes

At 1 January 2017
Profit for the year

9,326

136,219

-3,179

5,038

147,404

16

0

0

0

3,110

3,110

10/16/18

0

0

-12

0

-12

0

0

-12

3,110

3,098

Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gains and losses
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Transactions with owners
Appropriation of profit previous
year

16/27

0

0

5,038

-5,038

0

Dividend distribution

16/27

0

0

-1,865

0

-1,865

Issue related to sharebased payment

15/16

0

0

0

0

0

Share based payments treasury shares settlement

15/16

0

0

-503

0

-503

Share based payments cash settlement

15/16

0

0

-597

0

-597

Share-based payments personnel expenses

15/16/22/31

0

0

239

0

239

0

0

2,312

-5,038

-2,726

9,326

136,219

-879

3,110

147,776

Total transactions with owners
At 31 December 2017

The notes 1 through 36 are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED!STATEMENT!OF!CASH!FLOWS
(in euro thousands)

2016

2017

5,038

3,110

24

627

443

9

45

26

25

4,022

3,348

4,694

3,817

9,732

6,927

7

2,794

4,775

8

2,607

2,831

15/16/22/31

645

239

6,046

7,845

15,778

14,772

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year
Adjustments for
Finance costs -net
Share of profit of associates
Taxes

Operating profit
Adjustments for
Amortisation
Depreciation
Share-based payment

Cash generated from operations profit before changes in
working capital and provisions
Movements in transition costs

11

Movements in receivables
Movements in current liabilities
Movements in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

6

Net cash from operating activities

585

462

-968

5,208

-9,008

3,402

-767

-3,893

-10,158

5,179

5,620

19,951

-345

-203

-1,780

-5,157

3,495

14,591

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of intangible assets

7

-4,693

-409

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

8

-1,392

-3,048

Divestment of intangible asstes

7

45

0

Divestment of property, plant and equipment

8

Cash flows from financing activities

698

29

-5,342

-3,428

Cash flows from financing activities
Drawings/repayment under revolver facility

17

-5,000

0

Settlement of share based payment

15/16

0

-1,100

Dividend distribution to shareholders

16/27

0

-1,865

Net cash used in financing activities

-5,000

-2,965

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

-6,847

8,198

2016

2017

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

-6,847

8,198

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

9,538

2,691

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2,691

10,889

The notes 1 through 36 are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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NOTES!TO!THE!CONSOLIDATED!FINANCIAL!
STATEMENTS
#)!GENERAL!INFORMATION
Ordina N.V., a private limited liability company, was incorporated in 1973 and has its registered oﬃce in
Nieuwegein, the Netherlands, under Trade Register number 30077528. Ordina is the largest independent
IT services provider in the Benelux region. We develop, build and manage IT solutions for the public sector,
the financial services industry, the industrial sector and healthcare. We aim to produce IT that helps people.
IT that matters and that has been created without wasting resources. We achieve our goals by working with
our clients to forge partnerships for sustainable innovation.
The consolidated financial statements for 2017 comprise the financial information of the company and
all its group companies (referred to jointly as Ordina). The Management Board drew up the financial
statements on 14 February 2018 and the statements were discussed in the Supervisory Board meeting of
14 February 2018. They will be submitted for adoption to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on 26 April 2018. The Supervisory Board also approved their publication on 14 February 2018.
The ordinary shares in Ordina N.V. have been listed on the Euronext Amsterdam stock exchange since 1987
and are included in the Small Cap Index (AScX).

$)!SUMMARY!OF!SIGNIFICANT!ACCOUNTING!
POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied by Ordina to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

2.1. General

The consolidated financial statements of Ordina N.V. have been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which have been accepted by the European Union,
and their interpretations as adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the legal
provisions of Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
The financial statements are published in both Dutch and English. The Dutch version is leading.
The financial statements are denominated in euros (EUR). Amounts are in thousands of euros, unless
otherwise indicated, as a result of which rounding diﬀerences may occur. The euro is the functional and
presentation currency of Ordina N.V. The accounting policies are based on the historical cost convention.
Personnel-related provisions ensuing from defined benefit plans are stated at actuarial value.
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that aﬀect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, and income and expenses. Estimates and assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result
of which forms the basis for making aforesaid judgments about the carrying amounts of the recognised
assets and liabilities. Actual results and circumstances may diﬀer from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and adjusted where appropriate.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision aﬀects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision aﬀects
both current and future periods. Assumptions and estimates made by management in the application of
IFRS that have a significant impact on the financial statements and future periods are disclosed in Note 5.
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Application of new standards

In the year under review, Ordina applied new and amended IFRS standards and IFRS interpretations
relevant to the company, when this was applicable. One significant change in this context was the
application of IAS 7, on the basis of which the user of the financial statements is provided with information
on the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. In this context, we refer you to note 17. The
application of new and amended standards and interpretations had no material impact on Ordina’s equity
or results in 2017, or on the note in the financial statements.
The standards and interpretations listed below had been published but did not yet apply to the consolidated
financial statements for the 2017 financial year at the time the financial statements were published. The
summary below includes only those standards with regards to which Ordina has a reasonable expectation
that they will have an impact on Ordina’s notes, financial position or results when they are applied in the
future. Ordina will apply these standards and interpretations as soon as they are applicable.
IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’. This standard explains the classification, measurement and reporting of
financial fixed assets and liabilities. The comprehensive version of IFRS 9 was published in July 2014.
The standard replaced the explanation as included in IAS 39 regarding the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. The standard comes into force on 1 January 2018. Ordina will apply this standard
as per the date that it comes into force. This standard has to be applied retroactively, but it is not obligatory
to adjust information for purposes of comparison. Ordina has assessed the impact of IFRS 9 ‘Financial
instruments’. Applying the standard will not have a material impact on Ordina’s financial position and
equity, excluding the eﬀect of the expected credit loss on trade receivables under IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss from trade receivables to be accounted for on the basis of the expected settlement
period of these trade receivables. Ordina will determine the provision for expected credit loss from trade
receivables on the basis of the ‘simplified approach’. Ordina has determined in this context that the
provision for debtors will increase by approximately EUR 50.000 based on current estimates.
IFRS 15, ‘Revenues from contracts with customers’. The standard, published in May 2014, provides guidelines for the reporting of the scope and timing of revenues to be recognised. The standard replaces IAS 18
‘Revenue recognition’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’. The standard comes into force on 1 January
2018. The standard follows a five-step model. The premise is that revenue recognised corresponds to the
amount the entity expects to receive in exchange for the services and goods delivered. Ordina has
conducted an assessment of the full impact of IFRS 15. Based on this assessment, we have determined that
the recognition of revenues for services as described in note 2.19 will not change materially. The impact to
be limited to the qualification agent vs. principal. Under application of IFRS 15, in a number of situations
net revenue will be recognised where gross revenue is recognised under the current standard. The impact
on the gross revenue over 2017 amounts to less than 1% of revenue. The impact on the recognised margin,
net result and equity was zero in both 2016 and 2017. Ordina has not applied the standard early and has
opted for the ‘full retroactive approach’ in the transition to IFRS 15.
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. Based on this standard, published in January 2016, virtually all lease contracts that are
currently qualified as operational leases will be treated in a similar fashion to financial leases. The standard
comes into force on 1 January 2019 and replaces IAS 17, ‘Leases’. The standard has two exceptions for
lessees, namely i) lease contracts pertaining to assets with relatively low underlying value (e.g. personal
computers and laptops) and ii) short-term lease contracts (lease contracts with a maximum term of 12
months). At the start of a lease contract, the lessee will recognise a liability related to future lease payments,
while simultaneously recognising the right of use on the underlying asset during the lease term. In view of
the fact that Ordina has a large number of operational rental and lease contracts, the application will have a
significant impact on Ordina’s consolidated financial statements. Applying the new standards will lead to a
significant increase of total assets and liabilities. In addition, EBITDA will increase as a result of the shift of
operational lease costs from operating expenses to depreciation and interest expenses. Under the new
standard, lease contracts will also have an impact on the result due to the fact that the financing component
within the lease term is greater at the start of the contract term than at the end of the contract term (frontloading). We are currently unable to make a reliable estimate of the financial impact of the application of
this standard. Ordina expects to complete the full assessment of the impact of IFRS 16 in the course of
2018. The application of the new standard will have no material impact on the covenant calculations, as
these are defined in the financing agreement (see note 17). The financing agreement anticipates a future
change in the recognition of lease agreements, and states that any obligations by virtue of lease agreements
resulting from normal business operations (such as car leases and rental contracts) do not qualify as debt as
this is defined in the financing agreement. For an overview of the liabilities under the current operational
lease obligations, please see note 29.
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2.2. Consolidation

Group companies are all entities over which Ordina can exercise decisive control. Control is eﬀective if
Ordina has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity. The financial statements of such group companies are included in the consolidated financial
statements of Ordina N.V. from the date Ordina gains such control until the date that it loses said control.
All group companies included in the consolidated financial statements for 2016 and 2017 are wholly owned
by Ordina. Consequently, there is no third party non-controlling interest.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the current assets paid and due on the transaction
date, as well as, if applicable, the fair value of equity instruments issued (i.e. shares) used to finance the
acquisition.
Intercompany balances, transactions and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in drawing up the consolidated annual accounts. Transactions with associates are eliminated in
the consolidation as far as Ordina´s share in the associate in question is concerned.
The accounting policies for the balance sheet and the income statement as included in these financial
statements apply to the balance sheet and income statement of all consolidated group companies.
Investments in associates all relate to minority interests in companies in which Ordina has significant
control, but no decisive control. Significant control is generally assumed in the case of a shareholding of
between 20% and 50%. These investments are initially recognised at cost price and subsequently valued
using the equity method of accounting (see section 2.7).

2.3. Segment reporting

Information per segment is reported in line with how reporting lines and decision-making are organised
within Ordina. The Management Board is identified as the highest body with regard to strategic decision
making (the so-called chief operating decision maker). The Management Board comprises the CEO and
the CFO.
See Note 6 for a more detailed explanation of segment information.

2.4. Foreign currency
2.4.1. Functional and presentation currency
All group companies use the euro as their functional currency. Consequently, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in euros, the currency of Ordina’s primary economic environment.

2.4.2. Translation other currencies
Where applicable, foreign currency transactions and balances are translated into the functional currency
(the euro) using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and at the balance sheet date
respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

2.5 Lease obligations

Lease agreements, in which virtually all risk and benefits linked to the ownership of the leased asset accrue
to Ordina are classified as financial leases. Upon the commencement of lease agreements, financial leases
are valued at the fair value of the leased asset or the lower cash value of the minimum lease payments.
Any initial direct costs are added to the amounts reported as assets. The lease payments for financial lease
agreements are divided into financing costs and a reduction of the lease obligation in such a way as to
achieve a constant interest rate on the remaining balance of the obligation. The financing costs are charged
directly to the result. Tangible fixed assets obtained under financial lease agreements are depreciated over
the term of use of the asset or the shorter lease agreement period in as much as there is no reasonable
certainty that Ordina will gain ownership of the leased asset.
Lease agreements in which virtually all risk and benefits linked to the ownership of the leased asset do not
accrue to Ordina’s are classified as operational leases. Payments for operational leases are charged directly
to the statement of income (see note 22 for the costs recognised with respect to car leases and note 23 for
the costs recognised for the lease of oﬃce buildings).
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2.6. Intangible assets
2.6.1. Goodwill
Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Goodwill results from the
acquisition of group companies. Goodwill represents the diﬀerence between the cost of an acquisition and
the fair value of the acquired identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities, at the date of
acquisition. Payments related to the acquisition are stated on the basis of the paid and due current assets at
the transaction date, as well as, if applicable, the fair value of the equity instruments (i.e. shares) use to
finance the acquisition. Contingent elements in the purchase price are stated at fair value, and also carried
as a liability upon acquisition, with variances due to value diﬀerences being recognised through profit or
loss. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Costs pertaining to an acquisition are stated as a charge to the results at the time they are incurred.
Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units. Impairment of goodwill is recognised as an expense in the
income statement where appropriate. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill will not be reversed in a
subsequent period. If an entity in which control is exercised is sold, the carrying amount of the goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss.
Any negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in ´investments in associates´.

2.6.2. Software
Software licences are capitalised on the basis of the cost of acquiring and preparing the software for use.
Internally developed software is capitalised insofar as the cost is the result of the development and testing
phase of a project and if it can be demonstrated that:
•
•
•
•
•

the project is technically feasible so that it can be put to use;
there is an intention to complete the project and use the software;
the software will generate demonstrable future economic benefits;
technical, financial and other resources are available to complete and use the software;
it is possible to reliably determine the expenditure that can be attributed to the developed software.

Directly attributable costs that are attributed to internally developed software comprise personnel
expenses, as well as directly attributable external costs. The costs are capitalised at cost price. Other
expenses relating to internally developed software that do not meet the aforementioned criteria are
charged to the result at the time they are incurred.
Software has a limited lifespan and is capitalised at cost less amortisation and impairments. Amortisation is
charged to the income statement using the straight-line method on the basis of the estimated useful life.
Internally developed software is amortised from the date it is taken into use.

2.6.3. Intangible assets related to customers
This item relates to intangible assets of acquisitions identified in accordance with IFRS 3 (Business
Combinations) and includes brand names, customer lists and contract portfolios. These assets are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The fair value at acquisition qualifies as cost at that
time. The cost of the identifiable intangible assets related to customers is amortised on the basis of the
useful life of each individual component and charged to the income statement.

2.6.4. Amortisation of intangible asset
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of intangible assets over
their estimated useful lives. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment at each balance sheet date.
Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use.

!!"

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017 | NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The useful lives of the intangible fixed assets as estimated by the management are as follows:
• software:
3-7 year
• brand names:
2-3 year
• customer lists:
5 year
• contract portfolios:
1-2 year
The assets´ useful lives are reviewed annually and adjusted where appropriate.

2.7. Property, plant and equipment
2.7.1. Freehold property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or manufacture of
the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset´s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Ordina
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Gains or losses on the sale of property, plant and equipment are included in depreciation.

2.7.2. Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated in the income statement using the straightline method on the basis of the estimated useful life of an asset as estimated by the management.
The estimated economic life of the property, plant and equipment used to calculate the depreciation is
as follows:
• equipment:
2-4 year
• fixtures and fittings: 3-5 year
• building alterations: 2-15 year
Building alterations are depreciated on the basis of the shorter of the remaining terms of the leases for the
respective buildings and their useful lives.
The residual value, which is usually set at nil, and remaining useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed annually on the balance sheet date and adjusted when appropriate.

2.8. Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which Ordina has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are recognised using the equity method and first recognised at cost at the time Ordina enters into the
investment commitment. The valuation of investments in associates includes goodwill as determined
on the acquisition date, net of any accumulated impairment losses.
Ordina’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in Ordina’s reserves, with the recognition
in Ordina’s reserves following the recognition in the reserves of the associate (e.g. dividend payments or a
change recognised via the total result). When its share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds the
carrying amount of the associate, Ordina does not recognise further losses, unless it has issued guarantees
for the associate, or incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. In the event of
obligations not shown on the balance sheet relating to associates for which Ordina can be held liable,
these are included in the commitments and contingencies (see Note 29).

2.9. Transition costs

Transition costs arise upon the acquisition or implementation of long-term management contracts and are
related to the installation of systems and processes which occur after said contracts have been acquired.
Transition costs are valued at cost price. Transition costs pertain primarily to costs related to the conversion
of existing systems to Ordina standards. These costs are primarily personnel costs and costs of
sub-contractors.
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Transition costs are charged to income during the period in which the management activities are carried
out. Transition costs are recognised under the purchase value of hardware and software and other direct
costs.

2.10. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the eﬀective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that Ordina will not be able to collect all amounts
due. The amount of the provision is the diﬀerence between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement
under other operating expenses.
Other receivables include unbilled revenue for services already provided, the amounts receivable as
payments for contracts in progress with a fixed contract sum, other receivables and accrued income.
The amounts receivable for projects in progress at the balance sheet date are recognized under other
receivables, insofar as these receivables have already exceeded the amounts billed for these projects. If the
amounts billed for current projects exceed the sum of costs incurred and gains realised, the balance of these
projects is recognised within other payables. In this regard, reference is made also to the accounting policies
for revenue recognition (see Section 2.19)

2.11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash balances and balances in current accounts with banks. Current account
receivables are presented in the cash flow statement as part of the cash and cash equivalents. Current
account debts with banking institutions are recognized as bank debts under short-term liabilities.

2.12. Assets and liabilities held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as ‘held for sale’ if their sale is more likely than not and their carrying
amounts will be recovered through this sale. For this to be the case, the assets must be available for
immediate sale and their sale must be highly probable. Assets held for sale are presented separately in the
balance sheet. Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
The liabilities included within a disposal group classified as held for sale are also presented separately from
other liabilities in the balance sheet.

2.1 . mpairment of non financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinable useful life, as well as assets that are not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation but tested annually for impairment. Assets that have a definable useful life are
amortised and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset´s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount.

2.13.1. Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and
its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an
asset or cash generating unit. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate independent cash flows, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

2.13.2. Reversal of impairment losses
Impairment losses recognised for goodwill will never be reversed in a subsequent period.
In respect of all other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. It is assessed at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other
than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If there is any such indication, the recoverable
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amount of that asset is re-determined and the impairment loss adjusted when such is warranted by the
assessment.

2.14. Shareholders’ equity
2.14.1. Share capital
The authorised capital of Ordina N.V. consists of 160,000,000 ordinary shares, 39,999,995 preference
shares and one priority share. The issued and paid-up priority share and the issued and paid-up ordinary
shares are classified as shareholders’ equity.
Costs directly related to the issue of new ordinary shares are charged (after deduction of taxes) immediately
upon issue as a correction to the proceeds of the issue and charged to the shareholders’ equity.

2.14.2. Treasury shares
When Ordina N.V. purchases equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from shareholders’ equity until
the moment the shares are cancelled, re-issued or sold. In the event that such shares are subsequently sold
or re-issued, any amount received, net of any directly attributable incremental costs and the related income
tax eﬀects, is credited to the shareholders’ equity.

2.14.3. Dividends
Dividend payments to Ordina N.V. shareholders are classified as liabilities as soon as the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders passes a motion to make such payments.

2.1 . Employee benefits
2.15.1. Pension plans
Ordina has both defined contribution and defined benefit plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which Ordina pays fixed contributions to an insurance company. Ordina has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold suﬃcient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan
is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, salary and years of service.
2.15.1.1. Defined contribution plans (based on the available contribution system)
Contributions to defined contribution plans on the basis of available contributions are recognised as
expenses in the income statement in the period to which they relate. Ordina has no other obligations in
relation to defined contribution plans.
2.15.1.2. Defined benefit plans
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Pension costs incurred during the year (including contributions, interest expenses and expected returns on
plan assets) are charged to the statement of income.

2.15.2. Share-based payments
The members of the Management Board and the Executive Committee are entitled to long-term profitsharing and bonus benefits in the form of Ordina N.V. shares. For the purposes of these long-term benefits,
performance criteria are determined annually for each upcoming three-year period. Based on these
performance criteria, the number of shares in Ordina N.V. to be awarded is determined annually and for
each individual three-year period.
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The shares that are expected to be awarded are valued on the basis of the price of Ordina N.V. shares at the
grant date. Any awarded shares will be subject to a lock-up period of two consecutive years. This lock-up
period does not apply to the sale of part of the shares with a view to paying any taxes due on the grant of
the shares.
The change in long-term profit-sharing and bonus benefits is recognised in the income statement at the
reporting date based on current estimates. The total expense is recognised during the `vesting period´, the
period during which certain vesting conditions must be met. As the liability by virtue of long-term benefits
involving a payment in shares in Ordina N.V. is disclosed as an equity component, the expense recognised
in the income statement results in a corresponding adjustment to equity. The recognised value of the sharebased payment is disclosed as a payment on the issued shares at the time of payment.

2.16. Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the following conditions are met:
• there is a question of a legally binding or actual obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
• the amount necessary to settle the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the current value of the expected expenditures required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
In addition to the provision for pensions referred to in section 2.15.1, provisions are recognised for
restructuring costs, vacant buildings under lease, warranty and project commitments and onerous
contracts.
A provision for restructuring costs will be formed when Ordina has a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has started to implement the restructuring or announced the restructuring publicly.
Costs relating to future operating activities are not included in the restructuring provision.
The provision for vacant buildings has been formed to cover the future rent, including directly attributable
costs less expected sub-lease payments, for the period in which Ordina does not expect to use these
buildings. If the buy-out of a lease contract is lower, the provision is determined at this lower value.
A provision is recognised for warranty commitments pending at the balance sheet date. This provision is
based on the activities that are expected to be associated with these commitments. The warranty provision
is determined at the cost of the expected activities.
The provision for project commitments relates to activities expected to be performed with regard to onerous
contracts. The amount of the provision corresponds to the excess of the unavoidable costs Ordina will incur
to meet the obligations under such contracts over and above the economic benefits expected to be received
from said contracts.

2.17. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the eﬀective interest method.

2.18. Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises income net of value-added tax and discounts from services rendered and goods
provided to third parties. Income is shown at fair value of the consideration received or to which the
Company is entitled.
Ordina recognises revenue when the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the
future economic benefits of the contract will flow to the company and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Company’s activities as outlined below. If there are significant uncertainties about the
probability that receivables will be paid, only the portion of income that Ordina expects to be paid is
recognised.
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Ordina bases its recognition method on the nature of the services rendered and the contractual provision
applicable to said services.

2.18.1. Contracts based on subsequent costing
Revenue from services provided under contracts based on subsequent costing is recognised on the basis of
the contract at the moment the services are rendered, irrespective of the contracts’ term to maturity.

2.18.2. Contracts based on fixed contract sums
Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of a transaction
as a proportion of the total transaction (percentage of completion (POC) method), where the services
performed on the balance sheet date can be reliably measured and the costs incurred for the transaction
and the costs required to complete the transaction can be reliably estimated. Under the POC method,
revenue is recognised based on the services performed to date as a percentage of the total estimated costs
to meet the contractual obligations.
If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates of revenues, costs or work before completion,
estimates are revised. These revisions may result in increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs
and are reflected in income in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known to management.
If the outcome of contracts with fixed contract sum cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the total of the project costs incurred, insofar as it is probable these will be covered by the income from
the project. When it is probable that the total costs of a transaction will exceed the total revenue generated
by it, the expected loss is charged directly to the income statement.

2.18.3. Outsourcing and management contracts
In the context of outsourcing and management contracts, activities are divided evenly across the term of
the contract. As a result, revenue generated from such contracts is recognised on the basis of fixed periodic
amounts across the term of the contract. If additional activities are carried out, the related revenue is
recognised in accordance with sections 2.18.1 and 2.18.2, depending on the nature of the additional
activities.

2.18.4. Licences
Revenue from the sale of licences is fully recognised on the transfer date where Ordina has no further
obligations at the time of transfer.
As soon as a licence is integrated into a project and the licence is not separable from the project as a whole,
the related revenue is recognised as a proportion of total services to be performed in the accounting period
(percentage of completion). Within the project, additional services are provided by Ordina with regard to
the licence, including integration, modification and customisation.
Revenue arising from the sale of acquired and retransferred licences where Ordina does not provide any
material additional services is recognised up to the amount of the margin realised at the time of the
transfer.

2.18.5. Identification of a transaction
The valuation principles as described in sections 2.18.1 through 2.18.4 are applied to each separate
transaction. If there is any question of a separately identifiable component within a contract (so-called
multiple element contracts), the principles are applied as they are applicable to each separately identifiable
component.

2.19. Costs
2.19.1. Costs of hardware, software, other direct costs and work contracted out
Costs of hardware, software, other direct costs and work contracted out are attributed to the period in which
the corresponding income is recognised and recognised at historical cost.

2.19.2. Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.
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2.19.3. Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that Ordina will comply with all
attached conditions and that the grants will be received. Government grants relating to study cost
allowances are recognised in the income statement in `personnel expenses´.

2.19.4. Finance income and costs
This item includes interest received for loans extended, on bank balances, as well as interest received in
relation to the settlement of tax claims.
Finance costs include the interest charged by banks on withdrawals, commitment fees, interest charges
incurred for the settlement of tax obligations and pension commitments, as well as the interest related to
movements in provisions due to the passage of time. In so far as applicable, the interest component of
financial lease obligations is also recognised under financing costs

2.20. Income taxes

Tax expense (tax income) comprises current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred tax expense
(deferred tax income) for the period under review. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. In that case, the associated tax is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income as well.
Tax expense (income) for the accounting period includes income tax on taxable profit, which is calculated
based on tax rates expected to be applied, making allowance for tax-exempt profit components and
non-deductible amounts, as well as any adjustments for current tax of prior periods.
Deferred taxes are recognised for temporary diﬀerences arising between the fiscal values of assets and
liabilities, and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, aﬀects neither commercial nor
fiscal results. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets for tax losses are recognised only when it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilised.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities that have the same term and relate to the same taxable entity are
oﬀset in the balance sheet if Ordina has a legally enforceable right of set-oﬀ.

")!PRESENTATION!OF!THE!STATEMENT!OF!CASH!
FLOWS
Ordina reports cash flows using the indirect method. Cash flows are classified by operating, investing and
financing activities. Net cash flows from operating activities include income and expenses before taxes, as
well as interest received and paid. Cash flows arising from the acquisition or disposal of financial interests
(participations and investments) are included in cash flows from investing activities; allowance is made for
cash and cash equivalents embodied in such instruments. Dividends paid are reported in cash flows from
financing activities.

*)!FINANCIAL!MANAGEMENT
Ordina’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Ordina’s risk management programme, which is prescribed by the Management Board, encompasses
more than just financial risks. It focuses on identifying key risks and managing these using guidelines,
procedures, systems, best practices, specific controls and audits. Our financial risk management focuses
specifically on risks that are relevant to Ordina in this regard.
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The Management Board bears the ultimate responsibility for the design and the implementation of the
supervision of the risk management programme within Ordina. Risk management policies and systems are
evaluated regularly and if necessary adjusted to changes in market conditions and Ordina’s activities.

4.1. Market risk

Market risk pertains to the risk that Ordina’s income is influenced by changes in market prices, such as
interest rates and exchange rates. The management of market risks is aimed at keeping market risk
positions within acceptable boundaries while optimising returns.

4.1.1. Interest rate risk
Ordina is exposed to interest rate risk, which is limited to the Eurozone. Ordina’s interest rate risk policy
seeks to limit the entity’s exposure to interest rate risk on borrowings. Interest rate risks may arise on both
non-current and current borrowings. Ordina continually analyses developments in cash flows in relation to
available financing facilities and interest rate fluctuations.
At year-end 2017 and 2016, Ordina had no non-current interest-bearing borrowings.
The floating rate of interest due on the current borrowings is dependent on the term to maturity of the
borrowings, plus a fixed margin of 1.0%. The term to maturity of the current borrowings fluctuates
depending on cash requirements and ranges between one and three months.
If the floating rate of interest had been on average 1.0% higher, with all other variables remaining constant
during 2017, then the net interest costs (after tax) would have been more than EUR 0.1 million higher.
Ordina has no significant interest-bearing assets. Group income is therefore virtually entirely independent
of changes in interest rates.

4.1.2. Currency risk
All Ordina divisions are based and most of their revenue realised within the Eurozone. Ordina has therefore
chosen the euro as its functional and reporting currency. Ordina has no assets or liabilities outside the
Eurozone. The Management Board qualifies the currency risks at year-end 2017 as limited.

4.2. Credit risk

Ordina has exposure to credit risk. Credit risk is the risk of financial losses for Ordina if a client or
counterparty of a financial instrument defaults on an assumed contractual obligation. Credit risk is mostly
incurred on receivables from clients and cash and cash equivalents outstanding at banks.
Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises on cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments and transactions with clients, including credit exposures. For banks and financial institutions,
only independent professional parties based in the Netherlands are accepted, with risks being spread over a
range of parties.
The credit quality of clients is assessed in advance using project acceptance criteria. If available, external
credit ratings are used. If there is no independent rating, Ordina assesses the credit quality of clients based
on internal guidelines, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
The exposure to credit risk related to clients is assessed on an ongoing basis using the internal guidelines.
Concentration of credit risks associated with trade and other receivables is identified particularly within the
public sector. The concentration of credit risk related to other clients is limited in view of the individual size
and independent position of the various clients. Ordina has done business with a large proportion of its
customers for many years and in the past there have only been occasional instances of clients defaulting
on their obligations. Clients are assessed continually and individually for compliance with payment terms.
The findings are periodically reported to the Management Board. We refer you to Note 13 for further
information on trade receivables.
The Management Board qualified the credit risk related to customers as limited at year-end 2017.
The Board did note a concentration of risks in situations that involved the intervention of so-called
broker parties. Such parties could experience solvency or continuity issues due to market conditions.
Ordina N.V. has filed a declaration of joint and several liability for the majority of its Dutch group companies
with the respective competent Trade Registries.
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4.3. Liquidity risks

Liquidity risk is the risk that Ordina cannot meet its financial obligations. The premise of liquidity risk
management is that insofar as possible there should be suﬃcient liquidity for the company to meet its
current and future financial obligations in both normal and diﬃcult circumstances, without this entailing
unacceptable losses or the threat of damage to Ordina’s reputation.
Cash management within Ordina has been centralised, using the centrally managed financing facility
Ordina contracted in May 2015. At year-end 2017, Ordina was able to draw on a senior committed facility of
EUR 30.0 million in total. The committed facility consists of a revolving facility of EUR 20 million and a
current account credit facility of EUR 10 million. The maximum term is five years, with an initial term of
three years and an option to extend the term twice by one year. After an initial extension in 2016, Ordina
agreed a second one-year extension in the first-half of 2017. Following this extension, the financing
agreement now ends in May 2020. For information on the available credit facilities and the applicable
covenants, we refer you to Note 17.
Cash management is aimed at putting Ordina’s available cash resources and overdraft facilities to the best
possible use. To this end, cash flow forecasts are prepared periodically for both the short and medium
terms. These forecasts are revised periodically based on actual results and revised forecasts, if any.
The table below shows a division of Ordina’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period to contractual maturity date at the balance sheet date. The amounts shown are the
unconditional, contractual, undiscounted cash flows. Future interest payments are included in the
disclosed cash flows where applicable.
Carrying amount

Maturity date
< 1 jaar

1-2 jaar

> 2 jaar

0

0

0

0

-51,737

-51,737

0

0

0

0

0

0

-52,180

-52,180

0

0

At 31 December 2017
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

At 31 December 2016
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

4.4. Capital risk management

Capital is managed centrally to safeguard Ordina’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and provide returns for shareholders.
Instruments for achieving an optimal capital structure are dividend policy, the option to purchase treasury
shares and the option to issue new shares, in particular to fund potential acquisitions or to reduce debt.
The gearing ratio at year-end 2017 stood at around 64% (year-end 2016: around 64%). Any impairment of
goodwill has a major impact on the gearing ratio. If it is assumed, based on a sensitivity analysis, that there
will be an impairment of 20%, the gearing ratio at year-end 2017 stood at around 60%. Ordina considers
gearing ratio (ratio of shareholders equity to the balance sheet total excluding goodwill) of 25% as a
responsible minimum. Excluding goodwill, the gearing ratio stood at 22.1% at year-end 2017 (year-end
2016: 21.5%).
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+)!CRITICAL!ACCOUNTING!ESTIMATES!AND!
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Ordina’s management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future on an ongoing basis. The
accounting estimates and assumptions used will, by definition, seldom equal actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that carry a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

5.1. Impairment of goodwill

For each cash generating unit, Ordina tests at least once a year for impairment of goodwill attributed to the
relevant cash generating unit (see Section 2.13). An impairment of goodwill is recognised when the book
value exceeds the recoverable value. These calculations involve certain estimates and assumptions. The
recoverable value is the higher of fair value, less disposal costs, and the value in use. For a more detailed
explanation of the impairments test see Note 7.6.

5.2. Revenue recognition

Ordina uses the percentage of completion method in accounting for fixed-price contracts. Use of this
method requires Ordina to estimate the services performed to date as a proportion of the total services to
be performed (see Section 2.18.2). Estimates are based on periodically available information regarding the
stage of completion of the projects in question, as well as on the basis of past experience of comparable
situations.

5.3. Restructuring provision

Ordina recognises a restructuring provision when it has prepared a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has started to implement the restructuring or announced same publicly. Restructuring
provisions include estimates and assumptions involving redundancy and severance payments. The actual
situation may diﬀer from these estimates.
The sum of a severance payment may depend on the possibility that the employee in question finds
alternative employment within a certain period of time. Based on past experience, the calculation of the
provision does not take into consideration the possibility that the employee finds alternative employment
within the maximum period in which the severance payment is due to be paid. The actual situation may
diﬀer from this assumption.

5.4. Onerous contracts

The amount of the provision corresponds to the excess of the unavoidable costs Ordina will incur to meet
the obligations under such contracts over and above the economic benefits expected to be received from
said contracts. The actual situation may diﬀer from these estimates.

5.5. Income tax expenseS

Ordina assesses annually the extent to which tax losses are expected to qualify for set-oﬀ. The actual set-oﬀ
may diﬀer from these estimates. In 2016, Ordina implemented plans to avoid the dilution of losses in 2018.
The execution of these plans has considerably reduced the risk of depreciation of the deferred tax asset.
In addition to this, in 2017 Ordina implemented a cost-saving programme, which should contribute to the
recovery of profits in the years ahead due to structurally lower cost levels. For multi-year losses convincing
evidence is required for loss valuation (IAS 12). For additional information concerning deferred tax assets,
see note 10.

5.6 Provision vacant building

Ordina recognises a provision for the vacancy of premises during the period in which these buildings are
expected to be vacant. This provision takes into consideration the expected income from subleases. The
actual income from subleases may diﬀer from the estimated income. In 2017 Ordina entered into a new
lease agreement for the oﬃce space in Nieuwegein, in which the C-tower is no longer included in the new
agreement. As the C-tower is no longer a part of the new lease agreement, the provision has been released.
At year end 2017 there are no vacamt buildings. An important estimate related to the new lease agreement
is the fact that no reliable estimate can be made of a termination fee, which may have been included as lease
incentive (see note 19).
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,)!SEGMENT!INFORMATION!
The organisation is structured around Ordina’s services. Information is reported on a monthly basis to the
Management Board in its capacity as chief operating decision maker in line with this structure. Ordina’s
results are divided to reflect the company’s various divisions. The Management Board’s decision-making
is based on same. Ordina discloses segment information on the basis of how the internal governance,
reporting and decision-making is organised within the company. Ordina recognises the segments Delivery
the Netherlands, the Innovation cluster and Ordina Belgium/Luxembourg.
The Management Board’s assessment of the segments focusses primarily on revenue and EBITDA. Finance
results are not attributed to the individual segments, since cash resources are managed by the central
treasury department. Segment revenues do not include interest revenue or interest expenses, income tax,
or proceeds from the sale of associates.
Segment information is provided for the segments Delivery the Netherlands, the innovation cluster and
Ordina Belgium/Luxembourg. Segment revenues, assets and liabilities are items that are directly or
reasonably attributable to a segment. The prices and terms of inter-segment transactions are determined
on an arm’s length, objective basis. Segment capital expenditure is the total amount incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one reporting period.
Management information related to balance sheet positions and the analysis of same is aggregated at the
level of Ordina the Netherlands (including the innovation cluster) or Ordina Belgium/Luxembourg. Over
the course of 2016, some activities from the innovation cluster were shifted to Delivery the Netherlands.
As a result of this, the comparative figures from 2016 have been adjusted accordingly.
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6.1. Segment information

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:
the Netherlands
Delivery

Innovation
cluster

Total segment revenue

241,994

22,711

264,705

89,350

354,055

Inter-segment revenue

-5,456

-3,144

-8,600

-1,880

-10,480

236,538

19,567

256,105

87,470

343,575

8,976

-2,574

Notes

Revenue

EBITDA

subtotal the
Belgium/
Netherlands Luxembourg

Total

6,402

8,731

15,133

Amortisation

7

-2,776

-18

-2,794

Depreciation

8

-2,117

-490

-2,607

1,509

8,223

9,732

Operating profit
Finance costs – net
Share of profit of associates

24

-627

9

-45

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

9,060
25

-4,022

Profit for the year

5,038

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:
the Netherlands
Delivery

Innovation
cluster

Total segment revenue

240,286

22,920

263,206

92,178

355,384

Inter-segment revenue

-5,714

-3,148

-8,862

-1,634

-10,496

234,572

19,772

254,344

90,544

344,888

5,983

-283

Notes

Revenue

EBITDA

subtotal the
Belgium/
Netherlands Luxembourg

Total

5,700

8,833

14,533

Amortisation

7

-4,775

0

-4,775

Depreciation

8

-2,279

-552

-2,831

-1,354

8,281

6,927

Operating profit
Finance costs – net
Share of profit of associates

24

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

-443

9

-26
6,458

25

-3,348
3,110

The exceptional items in the divisions’ results for 2017 pertained to reorganisation costs and amounted
to a total of EUR 5.9 million (2016: EUR 6.0 million). Ordina incurred EUR 5.6 million of these
reorganisation costs in the Netherlands and the remaining EUR 0.3 million in Belgium/Luxembourg (2016:
EUR 5.7 million in the Netherlands, EUR 0.3 million in Belgium/Luxembourg).
As a result of the renewal of the lease agreement for the oﬃce location in Nieuwegein, in 2017 Ordina in
the Netherlands recognised a release from the vacancy provision of approximately EUR 3.8 million (see
note 19).
In 2017, Ordina decided to no longer use a part of the functionality within the ERP application, as a result
of which there is a change in the estimated life of this part of the asset. The decommissioning of this
functionality led to an additional depreciation of approximately EUR 2.0 million in 2017 (see note 7.1).
For 2016 and 2017 finance income and expenses are almost completely accountable to the segment the
Netherlands.
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The income tax paid in 2017 amounted to approximately EUR 5.2 million (2016: EUR 1.8 million). This
income tax paid pertained entirely to Belgium/Luxembourg. The sharp increase in income tax paid was due
to the fact that Ordina Belgium/Luxembourg paid income tax for both the financial year 2015 and the
financial year 2016. The income tax paid in 2016 pertains to the financial year 2014.
In 2016, Ordina reached a settlement in a judicial procedure related to a legal dispute. On the basis of
this settlement, the 2016 financial statements for the Netherlands include income of EUR 1.0 million
under the item purchase value of hardware and software and other direct costs, plus income of around
EUR 0.4 million in the item other operating expenses. The claim as of 31 December 2016 by virtue of the
settlement was settled in January 2017. Following the settlement, the parties have no reciprocal claims
related to the dispute at hand.
One Dutch client accounted for more than 10% of total revenue in 2017. The revenue generated from this
client was approximately EUR 58.7 million (2016: revenue of approximately EUR 61.3 million). Six other
clients together accounted for more than 20% of total revenue.
The assets and liabilities at year-end 2016 can be specified as follows:

Total assets
Total liabilities

the Netherlands

Belgium/
Luxembourg

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

221,937

56,814

278,751

-47,489

231,262

74,533

24,617

99,150

-15,292

83,858

The assets and liabilities at year-end 2017 can be specified as follows:

Total assets
Total liabilities

the Netherlands

Belgium/
Luxembourg

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

223,613

59,781

283,394

-53,340

230,054

75,837

23,005

98,842

-16,564

82,278
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Other segment information for 2016 can be specified as follows:
Belgium/
Luxembourg

Total

119,020

17,142

136,162

Notes the Netherlands
Carrying amount of intangible assets
Carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

7
8

3,573

1,104

4,677

9/10

18,131

125

18,256

Purchases of intangible assets

7

4,693

0

4,693

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

8

936

516

1,452

Amortisation

7

2,776

18

2,794

Depreciation

8

2,117

490

2,607

Income tax recognised in profit & loss

25

434

3,588

4,022

Income tax paid in reporting period

25

0

1,780

1,780

Carrying amount of financial fixed assets

Other segment information for 2017 can be specified as follows:
Belgium/
Luxembourg

Total

114,654

17,142

131,796

Notes the Netherlands
Carrying amount of intangible assets

7
8

3,958

1,001

4,959

9/10

18,479

125

18,604

Purchases of intangible assets

7

409

0

409

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

8

2,684

458

3,142

Amortisation

7

4,775

0

4,775

Depreciation

8

2,279

552

2,831

Income tax recognised in profit & loss

25

-371

3,719

3,348

Income tax paid in reporting period

25

0

5,157

5,157

Carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
Carrying amount of financial fixed assets
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&)!INTANGIBLE!ASSETS
This item can be specified as follows:
Related to
customers

Goodwill

Software

Total

Cost

192,816

13,846

97,742

304,404

Accumulated amortisation and impairments

-68,321

-5,842

-95,933

-170,096

Carrying amount at 1 January 2016

124,495

8,004

1,809

134,308

Additions

0

2,214

0

2,214

Internally generated

0

2,480

0

2,480

Amortisation

0

-1,890

-905

-2,794

Disposals

0

-46

0

-46

124,495

10,762

905

136,162

192,816

18,540

97,742

309,098

At 1 January 2016

Movements in carrying amount

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016
At 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairments

-68,321

-7,778

-96,837

-172,936

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016

124,495

10,762

905

136,162

0

5,672

0

5,672

Goodwill

Software

Related to
customers

Total

Cost

192,816

18,540

97,742

309,098

Accumulated amortisation and impairments

-68,321

-7,778

-96,837

-172,936

Carrying amount at 1 January 2017

124,495

10,762

905

136,162

Additions

0

384

0

384

Internally generated

0

25

0

25

Amortisation

0

-3,870

-905

-4,775

Disposals

0

0

0

0

124,495

7,301

0

131,796

192,816

15,903

97,742

306,461

Accumulated amortisation and impairments

-68,321

-8,602

-97,742

-174,665

Carrying amount at 31 December 2017

124,495

7,301

0

131,796

0

3,059

0

3,059

Of which internally generated

At 1 January 2017

Movements in carrying amount

Carrying amount at 31 December 2017
At 31 December 2017
Cost

Of which internally generated

0

7.1. Investments and disposals

Total investments in software were primarily related to the ERP application within Ordina Netherlands.
This investment was developed partly in-house. The ERP application was taken into operation as from
1 January 2015. The ERP application will be amortised over a period of seven years. In 2017, Ordina
decided to no longer use a part of the functionality within the ERP application, as a result of which there is a
change in the estimated life of this part of the asset. The decommissioning of this functionality led to an
additional depreciation of approximately EUR 2.0 million in 2017.
In 2017, Ordina fully depreciated decommissioned assets with an initial investment value of approximately
EUR 3.0 million (2016: nil).
The disposal of software is related to the cooperation agreement closed at the end of 2016 with T-Systems.
T-Systems has acquired equipment and software from Ordina pursuant to this agreement.
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7.2. Impairment and reversal of impairment losses

In 2017 and 2016, Ordina recognised no impairment on intangible assets.
No prior-year impairment losses on intangible assets were reversed in 2017.

7.3. Goodwill

Ordina monitors goodwill at the level of a group of cash generating units within Ordina, which groups of
cash generating units are the same as the segments recognised. Ordina recognises the segments Delivery
the Netherlands, the innovation cluster and Belgium/Luxembourg.
The table below shows goodwill per segment.

Delivery the Netherlands
Belgium/Luxembourg
At 31 December

2016

2017

107,353

107,353

17,142

17,142

124,495

124,495

7.4. Software

The carrying value of software amounted to EUR 7.3 million at year-end 2017 (year-end 2016:
EUR 10.8 million). Of that carrying value at year-end 2017, EUR 6.1 million was related to the ERP
application that was taken into operation in 2015 and which was partly produced in-house. The life of this
application is based on the expected life and the assumed obsolescence of such applications, as well as on
past experience with previous comparable applications, and is assumed to be a minimum of seven years.

7.5. Intangible assets related to customers

This item relates to the measurement at acquisition of brand names, customer lists and contract portfolios.
The diﬀerent components are amortised on the basis of the estimated useful lives of the individual
components. Intangible assets related to customers can be allocated entirely to the segment Delivery the
Netherlands. The carrying amount of intangible assets related to customers was fully depreciated at
year-end 2017 (year-end 2016: EUR 0.9 million) and the current carrying amount is therefore nil.

7.6. Impairment testing for goodwill
Ordina carries out impairment tests at least once a year on the goodwill of the relevant (groups of) cash
generating units (see also Sections 2.6 and 2.13 and Note 5.1). Goodwill is monitored at the level of and
allocated to the segments Delivery the Netherlands and Belgium/Luxembourg. An impairment is
recognised if the recoverable amount of the segment is less than the carrying amount.
The recoverable amounts of the various segments to which goodwill can be allocated are determined by
calculating their value in use. These calculations use future cash flows based on projections for the next five
years, which are partly based on the available relevant market data pertaining to the forecasts for the short
and medium term. The market data include sector reports from research agencies, sector organisations and
financial institutions. These five-year projections include estimates related to revenue growth, direct costs
and indirect costs, as well as assumptions regarding developments in investments and working capital. The
annual revenue growth per five-year projection diﬀers per segment, and for Delivery the Netherlands vary
from around 1.0% to around 2.6% (2016: around 1.0% to around 3.2%) and for Belgium/Luxembourg from
around 1.0% to around 8.1% (2016: around 1.5% to around 4.6%). The average annual revenue growth in
the five-year projection amounts to around 1.5% for Delivery the Netherlands (2016: around 1.7%) and
around 2.8% for Belgium/Luxembourg (2016: around 2.4%). The average annual EBITDA margin for the
years 2018 through 2022 in the long-term projections amounts to around 5.7% for Delivery the Netherlands
(2016: around 8.2%) and around 8.5% for Belgium/Luxembourg (2016: around 9.1%). The EBITDA margin
for the years after 2022 in the long-term projections amounts to around 6.5% for Delivery the Netherlands
(2016: around 8.8%) and around 8.5% for Belgium/Luxembourg (2016: around 9.5%). The useful life upon
which cash flows are discounted is indefinite in principle. At year-end 2017, Ordina used an estimated
forward growth rate of 1.0% (2016: 1.0%).
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Future cash flows are discounted on a post-tax basis at an interest rate specific to each segment. At year-end
2017, the discount rate for Delivery the Netherlands stood at 8.6% (year-end 2016: 9.2%) and 9.4% for
Belgium/Luxembourg (year-end 2016: 9.9%). The discount rate before taxes for the Netherlands stood at
11.0% at year-end 2017 (2016: 11.9%) and 13.9% for Belgium/Luxembourg (2016: 14.6%).
Based on the chosen assumptions, the impairment test we have conducted will not lead to an impairment
at year-end 2017. The carrying amount, value in use and the headroom per segment to which goodwill is
allocated at year-end 2017 were as follows:
(in euro millions)
Delivery the Netherlands
Belgium/Luxembourg

Carrying amount

Value in use

Headroom

108.8

120.8

12.0

20.7

69.4

48.7

Supplemental to this impairment test executed at year-end 2017, Ordina performed sensitivity analyses.
These sensitivity analyses were performed, firstly, on the basis of a higher discount rate in combination
with lower forward growth and, secondly, on the basis of a reduction of the EBITDA margin.
The table below shows the impact of the relevant segments of the sensitivity analyses, in which the EBITDA
margin is reduced by 0.25% and 0.5% respectively, with the discount rate unchanged.
The amounts given (in millions of euros) pertain to the remaining excess value of the relevant segments
on the basis of the sensitivity analysis.
Delivery the Netherlands

Belgium/ Luxembourg

-0,25%

5.8

46.7

-0,50%

-0.5

44.7

(in euro millions)
Decline EBITDA margin

The table below shows the impact of the sensitivity analyses on the relevant segments, in which, firstly, the
discount rate is raised successively by 0.5%, 1.0% and 1.5%, and secondly the forward growth is reduced by
0.5% and 1.0%. With respect to the segment Delivery the Netherlands, the sensitivity analysis results in a
potential impairment that varies between EUR 1.1 million and EUR 16.6 million depending on the
parameters used. For Belgium and Luxembourg, the sensitivity analysis does not result in an impairment.
The table below shows the remaining excess values in millions of euros of the relevant segments on the
basis of the sensitivity analysis.
Discount rate post tax

(in euro millions)
Delivery the Netherlands

8.6%

9.1%

9.6%

10.1%

0.5%

5.8

-1.1

-7.3

-12.8

0.0%

0.3

-5.9

-11.5

-16.6

9.4%

9.9%

10.4%

10.9%

0.5%

46.0

42.8

39.9

37.2

0.0%

43.5

40.6

37.9

35.5

Terminal growth

Belgium/Luxembourg
Terminal growth

In addition to the sensitivity analysis, Ordina also conducted a break-even analysis for the cash-generating
unit Delivery the Netherlands, in which the value in use amount was taken to be the same as the carrying
amount. This was eﬀected by changing one of the three following variables: the average EBITDA margin
(during the five-year projection and the period following this planning horizon), the discount rate and the
forward growth under unchanged other assumptions.
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For the cash-generating unit Delivery the Netherlands, the values assigned for the impairment test at
year-end 2017 were: approximately 5.7% for the average EBITDA margin, 8.6% for the discount rate
applied and 1.0% for the forward growth. The break-even value was achieved when the average EBITDA
margin was adjusted to 5.2%, when the discount rate was adjusted to 9.4% and the forward growth was
adjusted to nil.
We also compared the outcome of the impairment test with Ordina’s stock exchange valuation. The value in
use at year-end 2016 was around 16% higher than the stock exchange valuation. As a result of the decline in
the Ordina share price in 2017, the discrepancy between value in use and the stock exchange value had
increased at year-end 2017, with the value in use being around 55% higher than the stock exchange value.
A value in use that is higher than the stock exchange valuation is not unusual due to the control premium.
However, the current discrepancy falls outside the scope of the bandwidth considered reasonable
beforehand. The value in use was determined on the basis of a variety of parameters. The long-term
expectations are the key value driver of the value in use. In view of the discrepancy between value in use
and the stock exchange valuation, we conducted a critical assessment of these parameters. Following this
critical assessment, we still consider the assumptions realistic, partly in view of the successful execution of
improvement programmes, the results for the second half of 2017 and economic developments. These give
us confidence regarding value development in the long term.

!#(
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-)!PROPERTY.!PLANT!AND!EQUIPMENT
This item can be specified as follows:
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Renovations

Total

At 1 January 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016

14,575

1,529

8,564

24,668

-11,546

-1,330

-5,262

-18,138

3,029

199

3,302

6,530

1,118

128

206

1,452

-1,612

-84

-802

-2,498

Movements in carrying amount
Additions
Depreciation
Disposals
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016

-807

0

0

-807

1,728

243

2,706

4,677

At 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016

13,633

1,657

8,753

24,043

-11,905

-1,414

-6,047

-19,366

1,728

243

2,706

4,677

Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Renovations

Total

At 1 January 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017

13,633

1,657

8,753

24,043

-11,905

-1,414

-6,047

-19,366

1,728

243

2,706

4,677

Movements in carrying amount
Additions
Depreciation
Disposals
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017

2,931

61

150

3,142

-1,528

-98

-1,234

-2,860

0

0

0

0

3,131

206

1,622

4,959

At 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017

13,191

1,691

6,207

21,089

-10,060

-1,485

-4,585

-16,130

3,131

206

1,622

4,959

8.1. Investments and disposals

Investments in 2017 were primarily replacement investments. Of the total investments, around
EUR 0.5 million was related to the operations in Belgium and Luxembourg. (2016: EUR 0.5 million)
As a result of the renewal of the rental agreement for the oﬃce in Nieuwegein, in which the C tower is
no longer included in the rental agreement, Ordina recognised an additional depreciation of
EUR 0.4 million in the item building renovations. The renewal of the rental agreement for the oﬃce in
Nieuwegein has not resulted in an extension of the depreciation period related to other capitalised
renovation costs.
Ordina made no material disposals in 2017. The disposal of equipment in 2016 was related to the
cooperation agreement closed with T-Systems at the end of 2016. As a result of this agreement, T-Systems
acquired equipment and software from Ordina. This disposal resulted in a sales loss of EUR 0.1 million,
which amount has been recognised under amortisations on the basis of the valuation principles.
In 2017, Ordina decommissioned fully depreciated assets with an original purchase value of around
EUR 6.1 million (2016: around EUR 0.1 million).
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8.2. Impairment and reversal of impairment losses

Ordina did not recognise any impairment losses on property, plant and equipment in 2017. No prior-year
impairments on property, plant and equipment were reversed in 2017.

8.3. Leasehold property, plant and equipment

At year-end 2017 and year-end 2016, Ordina had no tangible fixed assets in lease. Ordina made no
investments in leased tangible fixed assets in either 2017 or 2016.

/)!INVESTMENTS!IN!ASSOCIATES
This item can be specified as follows:

At 1 January
Additions

2016

2017

442

397

0

0

-45

-26

Dividend

0

0

Disposals

0

0

397

371

Share of profit and impairment of associates

At 31 December

Ordina had two associates at year-end 2017 and 2016: Quli B.V. (Netherlands, 25.0% interest) and Passwerk
CVBA (Belgium, 37.3% interest).
The negative result from participations in both 2017 and 2016 was entirely due to Quli B.V. Ordina did not
recognise any result for Passwerk in 2016 and 2017 in connection with the restrictive conditions under
which it is possible to pay out dividends by virtue of the social purpose of this company.
In the course of 2017, Ordina recognised a total of around EUR 0.2 million in revenue in the context of work
carried out for Quli B.V. (2016: EUR 0.5 million). There were no reciprocal services between Ordina and
Passwerk CVBA in 2017 and 2016.
The following breakdown applies to the item investments in associates:

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

Other results
(OCI)

Total
comprehensive
income

Share

Quli B.V.

1,100

116

508

-81

0

-81

25.0%

Passwerk CVBA

2,766

549

4,208

833

0

833

37.3%

#%)!DEFERRED!INCOME!TAX!ASSETS
Deferred income tax assets can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

8,611

7,794

Employee related provisions

214

216

Other provisions / long term

972

0

8,062

10,223

17,859

18,233

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Recognised tax losses
At 31 December

The deferred income tax asset by virtue of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment relates to
temporary measurement diﬀerences due to the diﬀerence between the actual economic write-down period
and minimum fiscal write-down period. Recognition is at the set tax rates.
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The deferred income tax asset by virtue of employee benefits and provisions relates to temporary
measurement diﬀerences with respect to pension provisions. Recognition is at the set tax rates.
The deferred income tax asset by virtue of other provisions pertains entirely to the provision for vacant
oﬃce space. As a result of the release of this provision in 2017, the deferred tax asset related to same has
also lapsed (see note 19).
Tax losses are recognised if tax loss carry-forwards are expected to be utilised (total at year-end 2017:
around EUR 40.9 million; year-end 2016: around EUR 32.2 million). Recognition is at the tax rate that will
apply in the years to come based on current legislation. At year-end 2017, the tax losses in the Netherlands
were recognised at a rate of 25.0%. The total tax loss potential stood at around EUR 42.7 million at year-end
2017 (year-end 2016: around EUR 34.3 million). At year-end 2017, tax losses totalling around EUR 1.8
million had not been recognised (year-end 2016: around EUR 2.1 million).
Tax losses are recognised based on their assumed utilisation potential in the coming years. The potential
utilisation of these tax losses is limited in the Netherlands. The remaining deduction period is between 1
and 9 years. Given that tax losses were recorded in multiple years, convincing evidence must be presented
for the recognition of such losses (IAS 12). In 2016, Ordina implemented measures to prevent the dilution
of tax losses, which reduced compensable tax losses by an amount of around EUR 33.8 million in 2016.
This eﬀectively extended the remaining period in which tax losses can be deducted. Deferred tax assets are
recognised on the basis of the multi-year projection. The premises are considered realistic in the current
circumstances and are explained in the section on the goodwill impairment test (see note 7.6). The future
realisation of taxable profits and thus compensation of losses may vary from these estimates. If in the
context of a sensitivity analysis an assessment is conducted in which the EBITDA margin is reduced by
0.25% or 0.50% respectively in the multi-year projection, this would result in a potential devaluation of the
deferred tax asset of around EUR 0.5 million or EUR 1.0 million respectively.
The recognition of tax losses does not take into account the proposed phased reduction in the prevailing tax
rate in the Netherlands from 25.0% to 21.0% in the years 2019 through 2021. Once these proposals have
passed into law, the deferred tax asset will be adjusted accordingly. With respect to the recognition of tax
losses, this is currently expected to result in a devaluation of EUR 0.8 million.

Of the deferred income tax assets, an amount of approximately EUR 16.4 million had a term of more than
one year at year-end 2017 (year-end 2016: around EUR 15.6 million).
Movements in deferred income tax assets were as follows in 2016:
Recognised in
consolidated
statement of
comprehencive
income

Closing
balance
2016

Opening
balance
2016

Recognised in
income
statement

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

588

8,023

0

8,611

Employee related provisions

202

-1

13

214

Other provisions / long term
Recognised tax losses

1,166

-194

0

972

16,365

-8,303

0

8,062

18,321

-475

13

17,859

Opening
balance
2017

Recognised in
income
statement

Recognised in
consolidated
statement of
comprehencive
income

Closing
balance
2017

8,611

-817

0

7,794

214

-2

4

216

Movements in deferred income tax assets were as follows in 2017:

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Employee related provisions
Other provisions / long term
Recognised tax losses

972

-972

0

0

8,062

2,161

0

10,223

17,859

370

4

18,233
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##)!TRANSITION!COSTS
Transition costs can be specified as follows:

At 1 January

2016

2017

1,170

585

Cost
Expenses
At 31 December

0

0

-585

-462

585

123

Transition costs are related the installation of systems and processes which occur after the closing of longterm management contracts pertaining to existing IT applications. Transition costs are valued at cost price
and related to the conversion of existing systems to Ordina standards. These costs are primarily personnel
costs and costs of sub-contractors. Transition costs are charged to income during the period in which the
management activities are carried out, which period varies between two and five years. The transition
costs at year-end 2017 had a life of less than one year (year-end 2016: around EUR 0.1 million more than
one year).

#$)!FINANCIAL!INSTRUMENTS!BY!CATEGORY
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Amortised
cost

Fair value
through
profit & loss

Fair value
through
OCI

Derivatives
used for
hedging

Total

At 31 December 2016
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

66,719

0

0

0

66,719

-71,927

0

0

0

-71,927

-5,208

0

0

0

-5,208

Amortised
cost

Fair value
through
profit & loss

Fair value
through
OCI

Derivatives
used for
hedging

Total

Total at 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2017
Trade and other receivables

59,545

0

0

0

59,545

Trade and other payables

-74,840

0

0

0

-74,840

Total at 31 December 2017

-15,295

0

0

0

-15,295

#")!TRADE!AND!OTHER!RECEIVABLES
Trade and other receivables can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

Trade receivables

45,340

36,054

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

-1,418

-241

Trade receivables - net

43,922

35,813

Unbilled receivables

15,653

17,369

5,726

6,122

0

55

Unbilled receivables related to fixed price contracts
Prepaid pension contributions
Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income
At 31 December

82

185

3,508

4,139

68,891

63,683
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The fair value of the trade and other receivables approximates their net carrying amount.
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately EUR 6.4 million (year-end 2016: around
EUR 8.3 million) were past due but not provided for. Despite the fact that they were past due, there were no
indications on the balance sheet date that these customers would not meet their payment commitments.
The ageing analysis of these (net) trade receivables is as follows:
2016

2017

35,586

29,383

5,814

5,236

1 to 2 months

908

410

2 to 3 months

518

237

Trade receivables not impaired and not past due
Trade receivables not impaired and past due:
Up to 1 month

Over 3 months

Trade receivables - net

1,096

547

8,336

6,430

43,922

35,813

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts were as follows:

At 1 January
Provision for receivables impairment
Receivables written oﬀ during the year as incollectible
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 December

2016

2017

1,460

1,418

72

68

-114

-1,212

0

-33

1,418

241

Trade receivables are denominated almost exclusively in euros. Ordina has a negligible amount of trade
receivables that are denominated in currencies other than the euro.
The creation and release of the provision have been included in `other operating expenses´ in the income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written oﬀ when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. Of the total amount of receivables written oﬀ as irrecoverable in
2017, some EUR 1.0 million related to a debtor that was declared bankrupt in 2013, and for which there is
no expectation of a payment as a result of the settlement of the bankruptcy.
At year-end 2017, trade and other receivables amounting to around EUR 45.9 million had been provided as
collateral as security for the financing facility (year-end 2016: around EUR 58.6 million)
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Prepayments and accrued income include prepaid expenses. Other receivables fell due in less than one
year at both year-end 2017 and 2016.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. Ordina does not hold any collateral as security.
The maximum credit risk exposure to trade receivables (gross) and unbilled receivables pertaining to work
already carried out can be specified as follows (by geographical area):
2016

2017

the Netherlands

40,487

32,641

Belgium/Luxembourg

20,506

20,782

At 31 December

60,993

53,423
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The maximum credit risk exposure to trade receivables (gross) can be specified as follows (by client
category):

Public

2016

2017

8,195

9,009

Finance

9,481

5,460

Industry

22,802

18,596

Healthcare
At 31 December

4,862

2,989

45,340

36,054

The credit-worthiness of the trade receivables (net) can be judged on the basis of external credit ratings
(Standard & Poor’s), as well as on the basis of payment history. The following includes a breakdown of the
credit-worthiness of the debtors for which Ordina has not set aside a provision.
2016

2017

10,436

3,923

1,030

158

11,466

4,081

29,169

28,049

3,052

3,377

Debiteuren met een externe credit rating
A - AA
B - BBB

Debiteuren zonder externe credit rating
Laag kredietrisico
Gemiddeld kredietrisico
Hoog kredietrisico

Saldo per 31 december

235

306

32,456

31,732

43,922

35,813

No credit rating is available for governmental bodies. Receivables of governmental bodies are qualified low
risk.

#*)!CASH!AND!CASH!EQUIVALENTS
The balances disclosed in this item are at Ordina’s free disposal. At year-end 2017 an amount of
EUR 2.0 million (year-end 2016: EUR 0.8 milliion) was held on so called ‘blocked accounts’ on the basis
of which the spending options are limited to tax obligations. For details of the committed overdraft facility,
see Note 17.
At the balance sheet date, Ordina had no financial derivatives.
The cash and cash equivalents have been deposited with professional market parties with a good credit
rating. The following is a breakdown of available cash and cash equivalents based on the external credit
rating of these market parties:

2016

2017

A-1

2,691

10,889

At 31 December

2,691

10,889
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#+)!SHARE!CAPITAL
Movements in paid-up and called-up capital in 2016 and 2017 were as follows:
(In thousands)
At 1 January 2016
Issue of shares

Number of
outstanding shares

Issued capital in
EUR

92,958

9,296

0

0

298

30

93,256

9,326

Number of
outstanding shares

Issued capital in
EUR

93,256

9,326

Issue of shares

0

0

Issue related to share-based payment

0

0

93,256

9,326

Issue related to share-based payment
At 31 December 2016

(In thousands)
At 1 January 2017

At 31 December 2017

15.1. Paid-up and called-up share capital

The total authorised capital amounted to EUR 20 million at year–end 2017, and consisted of 199,999,995
shares with a par value of EUR 0.10 per share, plus one priority share of EUR 0.50, divided as follows:
• Priority shares:
1
• Preference shares: 39,999,995
• Ordinary shares: 160,000,000
At year-end 2017, one priority share and 93,255,934 ordinary shares were fully paid up (year-end 2016:
one priority share and 93,255,934 ordinary shares).
No new shares were issued in 2017. The share issues in 2016 pertained to share-based remuneration (2016:
297,262 shares). Ordina did not incur any issue costs related to share issues in 2016.
For the settlement of the variable long-term bonuses for the period 2014-2016, which took place in the first
half of 2017, Ordina acquired and then immediately paid out a total of 137,114 treasury shares. These
shares were purchased at a share price of EUR 2.025 per share. Ordina N.V. did not hold any treasury at
either year-end 2017 or 2016.
For details of the issued priority share, see the provision relating to the priority share in the company’s
articles of association.

15.2. Share and share option schemes

At both year-end 2017 and year-end 2016, there were no outstanding options on Ordina N.V. shares.
The members of the Management Board and the Executive Committee have been granted a variable longterm bonus which involves a payment in shares (see also section 2.16.3). In this context, at year-end 2017,
shares in Ordina N.V. were granted conditionally to the members of the Management Board (total of
323,708 shares) and to the members of the Executive Committee (total of 115,164 shares).
We refer to section 31.2.2 for an explanation of the schemes applicable to the members of the Management
Board. The scheme that applies to the Executive Committee pertains to a variable long-term bonus for the
period 2017-2019. The targets for this scheme are the same as those that apply to the members of the
Management Board. The liabilities pursuant to the Executive Committee’s 2014-2016 bonus scheme have
been settled completely, with a part of the settlement made via a cash payment instead of the remittance of
Ordina N.V. shares. The allocation under the scheme still applicable to the Executive Committee at the end
of 2017 can be broken down as follows:
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Conditionally
granted number
of shares

Grant
date

Share price
at grant

Fair value on
grant date

99,110

01-06-17

1.59

16,054

10-07-17

1.57

!$&

Percentage

Recognised
in profit & loss
2016

Recognised
in profit & loss
2017

158

100%

0

36

25

100%

0

5

0

41

Executive Committee

Window 2017-2019
Window 2017-2019

115,164

183

#,)!RESERVES
Movements in reserves in 2016 and 2017 can be specified as follows:
Share premium
reserve

Retained
earnings

Profit for
the year

Total

135,855

-224

-3,168

132,463

Prior-year retained earnings

0

-3,168

3,168

0

Dividend distribution to shareholders

0

0

0

0

Issue related to share-based payment

At 1 January 2016

364

-394

0

-30

Movements regarding to share-based payment

0

645

0

645

Profit for the year

0

0

5,038

5,038

Actuarial gains and losses

0

-38

0

-38

136,219

-3,179

5,038

138,078

Share premium
reserve

Retained
earnings

Profit for the
year

Total

136,219

-3,179

5,038

138,078

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2017
Prior-year retained earnings

0

5,038

-5,038

0

Dividend distribution to shareholders

0

-1,865

0

-1,865

Issue related to share-based payment

0

0

0

0

Share based payments - treasury shares settlement

0

-503

0

-503

Share based payments - cash settlement

0

-597

0

-597

Share-based payments - personnel expenses

0

239

0

239

Profit for the year

0

0

3,110

3,110

Actuarial gains and losses

0

-12

0

-12

136,219

-879

3,110

138,450

At 31 December 2017

The settlement of the share-related bonuses via the purchase of treasury shares resulted in a negative cash
flow from financing activities of EUR 0.5 million. This pertains to the purchase of the net number of shares
required for the settlement of this liability (see note 15.1) for approximately EUR 0.3 million and income
tax amounting to approximately EUR 0.2 million due on the gross payment. In addition, share-related
bonuses were settled in cash in 2017. This settlement resulted in a negative cash flow from financing
activities totalling EUR 0.6 million. The total negative cash flow from financing activities as a result of the
settlement of share-related bonuses amounted to EUR 1.1 million in 2017.
In 2016, share-related bonuses were settled via the issuance of new Ordina N.V. shares, as a result of which
there was no cash flow from financing activities in this context in 2016.
The personnel expenses as a result of share-related bonuses in the amount of EUR 0.2 million (2016: EUR
0.6 million) pertains to the expenses charged to the result (see note 22).
The company financial statements at year-end 2017 include a statutory reserve charged to the retained
earnings in the sum of approximately EUR 3.1 million (year-end 2016: approximately EUR 5.7 million).
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#&)!BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2017 and year-end 2016, Ordina Group has no non-current borrowings.
In May 2015, Ordina agreed a financing facility with ABN Amro Bank and ING. This financing facility is for
an amount of EUR 30.0 million, is fully committed and is a revolving credit facility of EUR 20.0 million and
a current account credit facility of EUR 10.0 million. The term of this new financing facility is a maximum
of five years, with an initial term of three years and an option to extend this twice by one year. After an
initial extension in 2016, Ordina agreed a second extension of one year in 2017. By virtue of this second
extension, the financing agreement now runs to May 2020.
The withdrawals fluctuate under the revolving facility during the year and depend on Ordina’s credit needs.
At year-end 2017, Ordina had not made any withdrawals (year-end 2016: nil) under the revolving facility.
During the course of the year, Ordina made use of the financing facility (revolving and current account
facilities). Ordina’s average net debt amounted to approximately EUR 3.8 million in 2017 (2016:
approximately EUR 10.6 million).
The most important elements of the covenants related to this financing facility comprise a maximum
leverage ratio (calculated on the basis of total net debt / adjusted EBITDA) and an Interest Cover Ratio
(calculated on the basis of (adjusted) EBITDA / total interest as defined in the financing agreement).
The leverage ratio has been set at a maximum of 2.5 and 2.0 during the final two quarters of the term
(which may have been extended at that point). The Interest Cover Ratio has been set at a minimum of 5.0.
The covenants are based on the consolidated financial statements drawn up in accordance with IFRS.
The correction of the EBITDA for one-oﬀ costs and reorganisation costs has been set at a maximum of
EUR 5.0 million for the year 2015 and a maximum of EUR 3 million for the years 2016 onwards.
The finance agreement also stipulates that the total EBITDA of the companies that have agreed joint and
several liability for the purposes of the credit agreement should account for a minimum of 80% of the
consolidated EBITDA, as laid down in the credit agreement (the Guarantor Cover Ratio) and that a
minimum of 70% of the trade receivables are pledged as security for the lender (the Security Cover Ratio).
The interest rate on the financing agreement is calculated on the basis of the applicable base rate
(EURIBOR) plus a fixed margin of 1.0%. The base interest rate depends on the interest period determined
by Ordina, which can vary from one to six months.
The table below shows the applicable covenants and the extent to which these were realised in 2017.

Leverage ratio

Realisation 2017

Finance agreement

-0,8

=< 2,5

Interest Cover Ratio

57,7

>= 5,0

Guarantor Cover Ratio

90%

>= 80%

Security Cover Ratio

86%

>=70%

In 2017, Ordina applied the changes with respect to IAS 7, which were published as part of the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) disclosure initiative. The changes require the disclosure of information
to provide the users of annual reports with information on changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, for both changes resulting from cash flows and changes without cash flows. The tables below
show the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for both the year under review and the
previous financial period:
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1 January
2016

Cash flows

Foreign exchange
movements

Changes in
fair values

Other

31 December
2016

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,000

-5,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,000

-5,000

0

0

0

0

1 January
2017

Cash flows

Foreign exchange
movements

Changes in
fair values

Other

31 December
2017

Non-current borrowings

0

0

0

0

0

0

Current borowwings

0

0

0

0

0

0

Dividend distribution to
shareholders

0

-1,865

0

0

1,865

0

Total liabilites from
financing activities

0

-1,865

0

0

1,865

0

Non-current borrowings
Current borowwings
Dividend distribution to
shareholders
Total liabilites from
financing activities

The other changes are related to the General Meeting of Shareholders’ resolution to pay out a dividend
adopted on 2 May 2017. Following this decision, Ordina paid out a total amount of approximately
EUR 1.9 million from the net profit for 2016 as dividend to its shareholders in 2017. Ordina recognises
dividend paid out to shareholders as a liability at the moment that the General Meeting of Shareholders
adopts a resolution to pay out a dividend.

#-)!EMPLOYEE!BENEFITS
Employee benefits pertain exclusively to pension liabilities and can be specified as follows per region:

the Netherlands
Belgium
Total defined benefit obligation

2016

2017

856

865

12

15

868

880

1 .1 Provision arising from defined benefit pension plans the netherlands

The provision arising from defined benefit pension plans in the Netherlands can be broken down as follows:
2016

2017

Defined benefit obligation

7,921

8,139

Less: fair value of plan assets

7,065

7,274

Defined benefit obligation

856

865

Movements in the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

At 1 January
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by plan participants
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains and losses
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December

2016

2017

7,067

7,921

0

0

169

158

0

0

-59

-61

744

121

7,921

8,139
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Movements in the fair value of pension plan assets were as follows:

At 1 January
Expected return on plan assets
Employer contributions

2016

2017

6,258

7,065

150

141

23

24

Benefits paid

-59

-61

Actuarial gains and losses

693

105

7,065

7,274

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December

The pension provision pertains to obligations for defined benefit plans (pension plans based on average
salary or final salary plans), measured at current value in accordance with the provisions of IAS 19
(Employee Benefits). As a result of the harmonisation of the pension plans, the defined benefit plan does
not have any active members. At year-end 2017, Ordina´s obligations pursuant to the defined benefit
pension plans were limited to guarantee and management costs, insofar as these are not covered by surplus
interest gains. Related plan assets are stated at fair value. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income. All pension plans operated by Ordina are administered by professional
insurers. The plan assets are comprised of qualifying insurance policies.
The cumulative net change relating to actuarial gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income
was EUR 4.3 million negative (year-end 2016: EUR 4.3 million negative).
The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:
Notes
Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Total, included in personnel expenses

22

2016

2017

0

0

169

158

-150

-141

19

17

The costs that will be charged to the 2018 result are expected to amount to approximately EUR 17,000. The
actual return on plan assets was EUR 0.2 million (2016: EUR 0.8 million). Plan assets are qualifying
insurance policies that correspond exactly with the amount and timing of all payments to be made
pursuant to the plan. The plan assets are equal to the value of the corresponding liabilities, based on the
same assumptions used in the calculation of the cash value of the pension obligations.
The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:
2016

2017

Discount rate at 31 December

2.00%

2.00%

Expected return on plan assets

2.00%

2.00%

In the event that the discount rate were to be raised or lowered by 0.25% (2016: 0.5%) in the context of a
sensitivity analysis, the obligation ensuing from the defined benefit plan would amount to EUR 7.7 million
(2016: EUR 7.0 million) or EUR 8.6 million respectively (2016: EUR 9.0 million) respectively.
Assumptions with respect to life expectancy are based on published statistics. The life expectancy at year
end 2017 is based on the most recent prognosis table, published by the Dutch Actuarial Association in 2016
(Prognosetafel AG2016). Furthermore, a correction was applied due to the higher life expectancy of the
working population.
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Assumptions regarding life expectancy are based on published statistics. The average life expectancy in
years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 66 or 67 is as follows:
2016

2017

Male, age of 65

21.9

22.1

Female, age of 65

24.6

24.8

Male, age of 66

21.0

21.1

Female, age of 66

23.6

23.8

Male, age of 67

20.0

20.2

Female, age of 67

22.7

22.8

The average life expectancy in years of a participant currently 45 years of age retiring at age 65, 66 and 67 is
as follows:
2016

2017

Male, age of 65

24.2

24.3

Female, age of 65

26.8

26.9

Male, age of 66

23.3

23.3

Female, age of 66

25.9

25.9

Male, age of 67

22.5

22.4

Female, age of 67

25.0

24.9

The following is a specification of the valuation of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets over the years 2013 through 2017:
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Defined benefit obligation

5,025

7,168

7,067

7,921

8,139

Less: fair value of plan assets

4,340

6,310

6,258

7,065

7,274

Defined benefit obligation

685

858

809

856

865

98

-2,036

208

-744

-121

-85

1,864

-163

693

105

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities

Experience adjustments on plan assets

1 .2. Provision arising from defined benefit pension plans in elgium

Ordina Belgium N.V. has a pension plan with a defined contribution from the employer. Ordina Belgium
N.V.’s obligation with respect to payments before 1 January 2016 is limited to the deposit of premiums and
a legal minimum return of 3.25% on these deposits in so far as the guaranteed return from the insurer is
lower. With respect to deposits after 1 January 2016, the return guarantee for the employers becomes
variable. The legal minimum guarantee of 1.75% is applicable to premiums paid from 2016 onwards.
From 2016 onwards, these pension plans qualify as defined benefit plans under IAS 19R, and the projected
unit credit method has been used to calculate the cash value of the obligation. The value of the plan assets
stood at EUR 2,762,000 at year-end 2017 (year-end 2016: EUR 1,934,000). The cash value of the
obligations was EUR 2,777,000 at year-end 2017 (year-end 2016: EUR 1,946,000. The provision for
this plan at year-end 2017 was therefore EUR 15,000 (year-end 2016: EUR 12,000).
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#/)!OTHER!LONG-TERM!PROVISIONS
Movements of other long-term provisions can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

4,664

3,889

Unused amounts

-244

-3,768

Used during the year

-531

-121

3,889

0

At 1 January

At 31 December

Other long-term provisions pertain to the vacant oﬃce space at the Ordina head oﬃce in Nieuwegein for
which there is a contractual lease obligation. The release of this provision in 2017 pertains to the change in
the contractual obligations related to the head oﬃce in Nieuwegein.
On 5 April 2017, Ordina entered into a new lease agreement with the same lessor. The new agreement
pertains to the extension of the lease (under new terms) for the oﬃce space in Nieuwegein, in which the
C-tower is no longer included in the lease agreement. By signing the new lease agreement, Ordina
eﬀectively cancelled the old lease agreement prematurely. Ordina has recognised vacancy provision for the
C-tower since 2013. As the C-tower is no longer a part of the new lease agreement, the provision has been
released (EUR 3.8 million) and the related deferred tax asset has been written oﬀ (EUR 0.9 million). In 2017,
Ordina recognised a one-oﬀ net gain of EUR 2.9 million related to the release of the vacancy provision.
Ordina will not recognise a termination fee related to the premature termination of the lease agreement.
No such fee is included in either the termination agreement pertaining to the old lease agreement or the
new lease agreement. However, it is possible that the winding-up completion of the old contract has been
discounted in some way in the new agreement. As part of this transaction, the lease payments for C-tower
have been terminated, and the lease for the remaining space has been extended. The price for the extended
lease was lowered with immediate eﬀect and the new agreement also includes a rent-free period. On this
basis, it is not possible to make reliable estimate of a potential termination fee, which may have been
included as a lease incentive in the new contract. Ordina also has limited insight into the lessor’s business
rationale. Based on external market research and Ordina’s own analyses, Ordina considers the new lease
agreement to be in line with current market standards. The agreed-upon rent-free period has been
recognised as a lease-incentive liability.
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$%)!OTHER!SHORT-TERM!PROVISIONS
Other short-term provisions at year-end 2016 can be specified as follows:
Projects

Reorganisation

Other

Total

At 1 January 2016

222

4,331

361

4,914

Additions

390

6,394

0

6,784

0

-755

-14

-769

-350

-7,453

0

-7,803

262

2,517

347

3,126

0

-1,625

0

-1,625

262

892

347

1,501

Unused amounts
Used during the year
At 31 December 2016
Presented as current liabilities
At 31 December 2016

Other short-term provisions at year-end 2017 can be specified as follows:

At 1 January 2017
Additions
Unused amounts
Used during the year
At 31 December 2017
Presented as current liabilities
At 31 December 2017

Projects

Reorganisation

Other

Total

262

2,517

347

3,126

67

5,655

55

5,777

0

-118

0

-118

-280

-5,883

0

-6,163

49

2,171

402

2,622

0

-1,783

0

-1,783

49

388

402

839

The provision for project commitments pertains to outstanding project activities related to loss-making
contracts. The restructuring provision is for non-recurring costs associated with the restructuring and
initiatives for sustainable margin improvement. The release added to the result from the provision for
reorganisation costs (2017: EUR 0.1 million, 2016: EUR 0.8 million) was due to the fact that the actual
costs of the reorganisation processes were lower than initially estimated.
At year-end 2017, an amount of EUR 0.1 million of the reorganisation provision had a term of more than
one year (year-end 2016: EUR 0.4 million). The project provision and the other provisions had a term of less
than one year at both year-end 2017 and year-end 2016.

$#)!TRADE!AND!OTHER!PAYABLES.!ACCRUALS!AND!
DEFERRED!INCOME
This item can be specified as follows:

Trade payables
Advanced billings

2016

2017

19,886

20,451

4,470

4,578

21,248

25,427

161

0

0

0

Accruals and deferred income

26,162

25,869

At 31 December

71,927

76,325

Taxes and social security
Pension contributions
Other payables
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The fair value of trade and other payables, accruals and deferred income approximates their net carrying
amount.
Of the taxes and social security contributions at year-end 2017, EUR 10.1 million pertained to payroll tax
and social security contributions (year-end 2016: EUR 9.8 million) and EUR 15.3 million pertained to
turnover tax (year-end 2016: EUR 11.5 million). The increase in turnover tax due was largely on account of
the turnover tax due from previous years due to the VAT correction related to private car use. In the first
half-year of 2017, there was confusion regarding to the objection that Ordina filed against this correction.
In the follow-up to this development, the Dutch Tax Oﬃce imposed additional assessments amounting to
EUR 3.2 million. Ordina paid these additional assessments in early 2018. In previous years, this obligation
was recognised under accrued liabilities.
Accruals and deferred income include commitments for holiday allowance, leave day entitlements, other
personnel expenses, as well as items charged to profit or loss for the year under the prevailing accounting
policies. The other payable and accrued liabilities had a term of less than one year at both year-end 2017
and year-end 2016.

$$)!PERSONNEL!EXPENSES
Salaries
Social charges
Defined benefit obligation
Defined contribution obligation
Other personnel expenses
Total

2016

2017

154,656

148,135

26,510

26,654

19

17

10,285

9,009

36,857

36,187

228,327

220,002

Other personnel expenses include car expenses (2017: approximately EUR 24.1 million; 2016:
approximately EUR 25.4 million), hotel and travel expenses (2017: approximately EUR 3.2 million; 2016:
approximately EUR 3.2 million), and study costs (2017: approximately EUR 2.6 million; 2016:
approximately EUR 2.5 million). The item car expenses also includes an amount of approximately
EUR 14.8 million for operating leases for cars (2016: approximately EUR 16.0 million).
An amount of approximately EUR 5.9 million was recognised under personnel expenses in 2017 for
restructuring costs (2016: around EUR 6.0 million).
Personnel expenses included an expense of approximately EUR 0.2 million for share-based payments in
2017 (2016: around EUR 0.6 million). Around EUR 198,000 (2016: EUR 367,000) of these expenses pertain
to the Management Board’s bonus scheme, while around EUR 41,000 (2014: EUR 278,000) pertain to the
Executive Committee’s bonus scheme.
The average workforce in FTEs numbered 2,560 in 2017 (2016: 2,709). At year-end 2017, Ordina employed
2,559 FTEs (year-end 2016: 2,689 FTEs). The number of FTEs employed in the Netherlands stood at 1,831
at year-end 2017 (year-end 2016: 2,003 FTEs). The number of FTEs working at the Belgium and
Luxembourg-based group companies stood at 728 at year-end 2017 (year-end 2016: 686 FTEs).
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$")!OTHER!OPERATING!EXPENSES
Other operating expenses can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

Oﬃce accommodation costs

6,359

2,465

Marketing and selling expenses

1,409

1,404

Other expenses

8,597

9,491

16,365

13,360

Total

Oﬃce accommodation costs include an amount of around EUR 4.6 million (2016: around EUR 6.1 million)
related to operational lease contracts and a release from the vacancy provision in the amount of
EUR 3.8 million (see note 19).
Other expenses include information management and automation expenses, the cost of insurance, and
audit and consulting fees.
Audit fees recognised in the income statement for 2016 under `other operating expenses´ in the reporting
period were as follows:

Audit of the financial statements
Other audit activities
Tax advise
Other non-audit activities

EY the Netherlands

Other EY network

Total EY network

410

72

482

67

2

69

0

0

0

0

0

0

477

74

551

Audit fees recognised in the income statement for 2017 under `other operating expenses´ in the reporting
period were as follows:

Audit of the financial statements
Other audit activities
Tax advise
Other non-audit activities

EY the Netherlands

Other EY network

Total EY network

408

58

466

70

0

70

0

0

0

0

0

0

478

58

536
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$*)!FINANCE!INCOME!AND!EXPENSES
Finance income and expenses can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

0

0

Finance costs

-627

-443

Total

-627

-443

Finance income

Finance expenses can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

Revolving Facility

-148

-83

Other finance costs

-479

-360

Total finance costs

-627

-443

The other financing expenses pertain to among other things interest expenses for current account debts run
up with banking institutions, availability provisions, interest expenses for the settlement of fiscal debts and
pension obligations. In 2016, Ordina recognised a financing obligation of approximately EUR 44,000 for
the increase in the provision for vacant oﬃce space as a result of the passage of time.

$+)!INCOME!TAX!EXPENSE
Current income tax for the year
Ccurrent income taks prior years

Deferred income tax for the year
Deferred income tax prior years

2016

2017

-3,497

-3,712

-50

-6

-3,547

-3,718

-519

370

44

0

-475

370

-4,022

-3,348

2016

2017

Net profit for the year

5,038

3,110

Income tax expense

4,022

3,348

Profit before income tax

9,060

6,458

Eﬀective tax rate

44.4%

51.8%
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%

2016

%

2017

25.0

2,265

25.0

1,614

7.5

680

10.5

681

Non-deductible expenses

11.0

993

15.0

971

Remeasurement of deferred tax assets

-0.1

-8

-0.1

-6

Tax exempt income

0.1

11

0.1

7

Incidental items

0.4

34

1.2

75

Applicable tax rate
Diﬀerences with foreign tax rates

Adjustments for prior years
Eﬀective tax rate

0.5

47

0.1

6

44.4

4,022

51.8

3,348

The eﬀective tax burden amounted to 51.8% in 2017 (2016: 44.4%). The increase in the eﬀective tax burden
compared to the previous year was due to the distribution of the taxable results over the various fiscal
jurisdictions. In addition to this, the relative impact of the non-deductible amounts was greater in 2017
than in 2016.
The nominal tax burden amounted to 25.0% in 2017, as applicable in the Netherlands. The rate diﬀerences
abroad pertain to the higher nominal tax burden, as this is applicable for Belgium (33.99%) and
Luxembourg (29.2%) respectively. The non-deductible expenses relate to result components that cannot
be charged to the pre-tax result and include an impairment of goodwill, share-related payments and the
non-deductible part of the so-called mixed costs. The tax exempt income pertains primarily to the share in
the results of participations.

$,)!EARNINGS!PER!SHARE
26.1. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit for the year by the average number of outstanding
shares during the year.

Profit for the year

Average number of outstanding shares (in thousands)
Earnings per share- basic (in euros)

2016

2017

5,038

3,110

93,129

93,256

0.05

0.03

26.2. Earnings per share – diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the average number of
outstanding shares during the year, including any outstanding option rights whose exercise price is lower
than the share price at year-end and the total of conditional awarded shares in the context of share-related
bonuses.

Profit for the year

Average number of outstanding shares (in thousands)
Adjustment for share-based payment obligations

Earnings per share - diluted (in euros)

2016

2017

5,038

3,110

93,129

93,256

1,112

439

94,241

93,695

0.05

0.03

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017 | NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

!%'

$&)!DIVIDEND!PER!SHARE
To the General Meeting of Shareholders a dividend payment of 2 eurocent per share in cash will be
proposed, to be charged to the 2017 net profit. The remainder of the net profit will be added to the
general reserve.
The General Meeting of Shareholders of 2 May 2017 approved the payment of a cash dividend of
2 eurocents per ordinary Ordina N.V. share, to be paid from the net profit over 2016. Following this decision,
Ordina paid out a total of EUR 1.9 million from the profit for the 2016 financial year as dividend to its
shareholders in 2017. The remaining net profit over 2016 was added to the reserves.

$-)!PREFERENCE!SHARES
Ordina N.V.’s authorised capital includes 24,999,995 preference shares with a par value of EUR 0.10 per
share. Dividends on preference shares cannot exceed the statutory interest rate prevailing at the date the
dividends are declared. No preference shares had been issued at year-end 2017 or year-end 2016.

$/)!COMMITMENTS.!CONTINGENCIES!AND!
CONTRACTUAL!OBLIGATIONS
Ordina N.V. and its group companies have issued guarantees for a total amount of approximately
EUR 1.8 million in 2017 (2016: approximately EUR 2.9 million). Of these guarantees, EUR 1.4 million is
related to lease commitments (year-end 2016: more than EUR 1.8 million) and EUR 0.4 million pertained
to client relations (year-end 2016: more than EUR 1.0 million).
Ordina had no material expenditure obligations with respect to property, plant and equipment at year-end
2017.
Company cars provided to employees are usually acquired under operating leases spanning 36 to
48 months. In this context, Ordina N.V. and its group companies have a total car lease obligation of
approximately EUR 12.7 million that falls due in less than one year (2016: around EUR 13.3 million).
All buildings where group companies are located are in leasehold. Ordina does not have any buildings
in freehold. In addition, Ordina N.V. and its group companies have total building lease obligations of
approximately EUR 4.0 million with a term of less than one year (2016: around EUR 6.2 million). Of the
building leases that fall due within one year, an amount of around EUR 2.3 million relates to the head
oﬃce in Nieuwegein (year-end 2016: EUR around 4.4 million). In 2017, Ordina entered into a new lease
agreement for the head oﬃce in Nieuwegein with diﬀerent terms, and in which the C-tower is no longer
included in the lease agreement. The new lease agreement runs to 31 March 2028.
The other financial obligations at year-end 2016 can be specified by term as follows:
Cars

Buildings

Not later than 1 year

13,340

6,231

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

19,578

16,653

0

521

32,918

23,405

Later than 5 years

The other financial obligations at year-end 2017 can be specified by term as follows:
Cars

Buildings

Not later than 1 year

12,745

3,961

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

14,136

12,892

0

12,435

26,881

29,288

Later than 5 years
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In a number of instances, Ordina N.V. has assumed joint and several liability within the scope of its normal
operations for the performance of contractual obligations by a group company. Where such a guarantee was
issued to clients of Ordina BPO B.V., which was sold in April 2009, and has not yet expired, Centric Holding
B.V. and its group companies have issued a full counter-guarantee.
In the context of the sale of divisions, Ordina has issued the usual limited-time (balance sheet) guarantees
to the buyers of these divisions.
In the course of our operations, we may be confronted with discussions about the (financial) settlement of
projects, such as reduction or addition of work, quality level and scope of the work. The majority of these
discussions are resolved to the full satisfaction of all concerned. However, it is not always possible to avoid
such discussions resulting in legal actions. Provisions are set aside the moment it can be reliably estimated
that a legal action will result in a financial claim against Ordina. Claims from Ordina against third parties
that are subject of ongoing legal procedures are in principle not capitalised, unless payment of said claims
is virtually certain. Main procedures in this context are described below.
Ordina is involved in discussions with one of its clients about delivery of additional work in the context of
an IT system that has been delivered. If it were to be determined that Ordina is obliged to deliver (some of)
this additional work, there may be financial consequences. Since it is impossible to make a realistic
estimation of the outcome of the discussion and the financial consequences of same, Ordina has not set
aside a provision in this context.
Ordina has closed a multi-year contract with one of its suppliers that includes a purchasing obligation,
which could in certain circumstances result in an additional liability. Ordina has not set aside a provision in
this context due to the fact that it is not currently possible to arrive at a reliable estimate of the extent to
which this contractual agreement could lead to a liability in addition to the liabilities arising from regular
business operations.
Belgium has a scheme under which it is possible to receive a subsidy for R&D activities. It is possible that
with eﬀect from 2016 Ordina may be eligible for a larger subsidy than in the past. Ordina has submitted an
additional subsidy request for 2016 in the amount of around € 0.3 million. Due in part to the fact that the
subsidy provider still has to decide whether to grant the larger subsidy, these amounts have not been
recognised in the statement of income.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 403, Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, Ordina N.V. has
assumed joint and several liability for the obligations arising from the legal transactions of the majority of
the Dutch group companies. The declarations to that eﬀect have been filed with the competent trade
registries.
Ordina N.V. and the majority of its Dutch group companies form a tax unit for income tax and value-added
tax purposes, as a result of which the companies involved are jointly and severally liable for the liabilities
incurred by the tax group.
Ordina N.V. and the majority of its group companies have assumed joint and several liability for the bank
overdrafts. At year-end 2017, trade and other receivables valued at approximately EUR 45.9 million had
been pledged as security (year-end 2016: approximately EUR 58.6 million) for the financing facility.

"%)!ACQUISITIONS!AND!DISPOSALS
30.1. Acquisitions

Ordina made no acquisitions in 2016 and 2017. As at year-end 2016 and 2017, Ordina had no earn-out
obligations relating to acquisitions in previous years.

!%(
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"#)!RELATED!PARTIES
31.1. Identity of related parties

Ordina’s related parties are its group companies, the associated participations (see note 9) the members of
the Supervisory Board and the members of the Management Board. The members of the Management
Board qualify as key management.
The total remuneration for Management Board and the Supervisory Board in 2017 and 2016 can be
specified as follows:
2016

2017

1,025

989

Variable component/short-term, cash based

361

217

Variable component/long-term, share based

367

198

Salary

Pension costs

178

34

1,931

1,438

1.2. ransactions with the members of the Management oard and Supervisory oard
32.2.1. Remuneration policy
The Supervisory Board determines the compensation of the members of the Management Board on an
annual basis. For details on the remuneration policy for the members of the Management Board, we refer
you to the section Remuneration policy Management Board in the Report of the Supervisory Board.

31.2.2. Executive compensation
The following amounts in executive compensation were charged to the results for 2016 and 2017
respectively:
2016

2017

Salary

n.a.

387

Variable component/short-term, cash based

n.a.

104

Variable component/long-term, share based

n.a.

112

Pension costs

n.a.

5

n.a.

608

2016

2017

Salary

75

268

Variable component/short-term, cash based

24

72

Variable component/long-term, share based

28

74

2

5

129

419

2016

2017

Salary

443

111

Variable component/short-term, cash based

163

41

Variable component/long-term, share based

188

12

Pension costs

109

24

903

188

J.G. Maes

J.W. den Otter

Pension costs

S. Breedveld
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2016

2017

Salary

284

n.a.

Variable component/short-term, cash based

174

n.a.

Variable component/long-term, share based

151

n.a.

M.J. Poots-Bijl

Pension costs

67

n.a.

676

n.a.

Total executive compensation of the members of the Management Board combined was EUR 1.2 million in
2017 (2016: around EUR 1.7 million).
The long-term benefits under profit-sharing and bonus schemes pertain to a payment in Ordina N.V. shares;
they are determined for a three-year period for each individual scheme. Based on the remuneration policy,
the value of the number of Ordina N.V. shares to be awarded for on-target performance is equivalent to 50%
of the fixed salary (including holiday pay) to be paid to the board member in question in the first year of
each three-year period. The fair value of the on-target shares that are expected to be awarded is determined
on the basis of the share price at the moment the shares are awarded. A conditional number of shares are
awarded at the beginning of each three-year period on the basis of the closing share price of the Ordina N.V.
share at the end of the preceding calendar year. Of the total targets, 70% is linked to financial targets and
30% is linked to non-financial targets. The financial targets are linked to the development of Ordina’s
results and pertain to revenues, the (recurring) EBITDA margin, net profit, cash flows and the leverage ratio.
The non-financial targets are based on individual, clearly measurable (qualitative and quantitative) targets
and pertain to client satisfaction, employee engagement, image and the implementation of the
sustainability strategy. At the end of the three-year period, the shares are awarded unconditionally based on
the targets realised vis-à-vis the targets set. The definitively awarded shares will be transferred in the year
following the last year of the three-year period.
The number of shares in Ordina N.V. to be allotted is estimated each time on the balance sheet date based
on the long-term bonus benefits. Based on this estimation, the costs of the long-term profit-sharing and
bonus plans are recognised in the income statement, proportional to the period that has expired from the
moment the shares were awarded. The costs of the shares expected to be issued under the existing schemes
are recognised in equity as `retained earnings´.
As part of his variable long-term remuneration for the period 2015 through 2017, Mr. Maes and Ms. Den
Otter were unconditionally granted a total of 16,153 and 14,457 Ordina N.V. shares respectively. This is
equivalent to a payment percentage of approximately 52.9% of the on-target bonus. Of the total payment
percentage, 20.3% pertains to the financial targets and 32.6% to the non-financial targets. Including the
settlement of the ongoing scheme for Mr. Breedveld, the cost of the long-term bonus was EUR 0.2 million in
2017 (2016: around EUR 0.4 million).
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The current schemes can be summarised as follows:
Conditionally
granted number
of shares

Grant date

Share price
at grant

Fair value
on grant
date

Percentage

Recognised
in profit & loss
2016

Recognised
in profit & loss
2017

Window 2015-2017

30,549

16-02-17

1,98

60

53%

n.a.

32

Window 2016-2018

61,097

16-02-17

1,98

121

78%

n.a.

44

Window 2017-2019

91,646

01-05-17

1,59

146

100%

n.a.

36

n.a.

112

7

n.a.

J.G. Maes

183,292
J.W. den Otter
Window 2014-2016
Window 2015-2017

27,342

10-11-16

1,93

53

53%

10

18

Window 2016-2018

49,215

10-11-16

1,93

95

78%

11

31

63,859

01-05-17

1,59

101

100%

n.a.

25

28

74

Window 2017-2019

140,416

The members of the Management Board can participate in the pension scheme provided by the company.
If a member of the Management Board participates in this scheme, the company pays the pension
premium. If a member of the Management Board declines to participate, they receive a gross payment
from the company. This is the same as the amount the company would have been due to pay if the member
of the Management Board in question were to participate in the pension scheme provided by the company.
In such a situation, any payments are presented as pension expenses.
The members of the Management Board are provided with a car and a mobile phone. In addition, they are
entitled to a monthly expense allowance. The related amounts for the members of the Management Board
in 2017 were approximately EUR 0.1 million (2016: EUR 0.1 million) and are not included in the
specification of the remuneration of the members of the Management Board included in explanatory
note 31.
No loans, advances or guarantees have been issued for the benefit of the members of the Management
Board.

31.2.3. Shares held by the members of the Management Board
At year-end 2017, the members of the Management Board held 53,592 shares in Ordina N.V. (year-end
2016: 1,111,110 shares). The shares are distributed among the members of the Management Board as
follows:

J.G. Maes
J.W. den Otter
S. Breedveld

2016

2017

n.a.

51,725

0

1,867

1,111,110

n.a.

1,111,110

53,592

31.2.4. Options granted to, and held by, the members of the Management Board
At year-end 2017 and year-end 2016, Ordina had not issued any option rights to the members of the
Management Board.
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31.2.5. Supervisory Board compensation
The remuneration for the members of the Supervisory Board can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

J.G. van der Werf, chairman

57

57

P.G. Boumeester, vice chairman

43

43

D.J. Anbeek

43

43

A. Kregting

40

40

J. Niessen

40

40

223

223

The compensation of the Supervisory Board is not linked to the financial performance of the company.
In addition to their remuneration, the members of the Supervisory Board receive an expenses allowance of
EUR 2,270 per annum. No loans, advances or guarantees have been issued for the benefit of the members
of the Supervisory Board.

31.2.6. Shares held by the members of the Supervisory Board
At year-end 2017, the members of the Supervisory Board held 14,560,967 shares in Ordina N.V. (year-end
2016: 14,525,967 shares). The shares are distributed among the members of the Supervisory Board as
follows:

J.G. van der Werf, chairman

2016

2017

100,000

100,000

P.G. Boumeester, vice chairman

0

0

D.J. Anbeek

0

35,000

A. Kregting
J. Niessen (held through Mont Cervin S.a.r.l.)

0

0

14,425,967

14,425,967

14,525,967

14,560,967

"$)!EVENTS!AFTER!THE!BALANCE!SHEET!DATE
No events occurred after 31 December 2017 that have a material impact on, or warrant restatement of the
balance sheet positions at year-end 2017 as presented in the financial statements.
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COMPANY!BALANCE!SHEET!ORDINA!N)V)!AS!AT!
"#!DECEMBER!$%#&!
'BEFORE!APPROPRIATION!OF!PROFIT(

Notes

2016

2017

Financial assets

34

139,147

137,372

Deferred income tax assets

35

(In euro thousands)
Assets
Non-current assets

8,254

10,402

147,401

147,774

Other receivables

1

0

Current income tax receivables

2

2

Total current assets

3

2

147,404

147,776

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Paid-up and called-up share capital

36

9,326

9,326

Share premium reserve

36

136,219

136,219

Statutory reserve

36

5,672

3,059

Retained earnings

36

-8,851

-3,938

Profit for the year

36

5,038

3,110

147,404

147,776

Trade and other payables

0

0

Total current liabilities

0

0

Total liabilities

0

0

147,404

147,776

Total equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

COMPANY!INCOME!STATEMENT!OF!
ORDINA!N)V)!FOR!$%#&
2016

2017

Revenue

0

0

Other operating expenses

1

2

Total operating expenses

1

2

(in euro thousands)

Notes

Operating profit

-1

-2

Finance income

1

0

Finance costs

0

0

Finance costs - net

1

0

4,512

2,982

4,512

2,980

526

130

5,038

3,110

Share of profit of associates
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Net profit for the year

34
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NOTES!TO!THE!COMPANY!FINANCIAL!STATEMENTS
"")!GENERAL
.1. asis of preparation of company financial statements

The company financial statements of Ordina N.V. have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. In preparing these financial statements, the company availed itself
of the facility oﬀered by Section 362(8), Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code to use the same accounting policies
(including those for the presentation of financial instruments as equity or loan capital) for the company and
the consolidated financial statements.
Due to a change in legislation with eﬀect from 2016, public-interest entities are no longer permitted to
publish a condensed income statement as part of the company financial statements (as previously
permitted pursuant to Section 402(2), Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code). In view of the limited scope of the
activities within Ordina N.V., the impact of this change is limited.
The company financial statements of Ordina N.V. are presented in euros (EUR). Amounts are in thousands
of euros, unless otherwise indicated.

33.2. Accounting policies

The accounting policies for the company financial statements are the same as for the consolidated financial
statements. If no further policies are mentioned, reference is made to the accounting policies for the
consolidated financial statements.

33.3. Financial assets / investments in associates

Associates and group companies in which Ordina N.V. exercises control or where Ordina N.V. is responsible
for central management are accounted for using the equity method. The equity method is a method of
accounting whereby the net assets, liabilities and provisions of the group company are measured and profit
is calculated on the basis of the accounting policies used in the consolidated financial statements.

"*)!FINANCIAL!ASSETS
This item can be specified as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2016

Investments in
group companies

Receivables from
group companies

Total

122,787

2,335

125,122

252

9,299

9,551

Changes in 2016
Investments/loans advanced
Actuarial gains and losses
Share of profit of associates
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016

Carrying amount at 1 January 2016

-38

0

-38

4,512

0

4,512

127,513

11,634

139,147

Investments in
group companies

Receivables from
group companies

Total

127,513

11,634

139,147

-860

-3,885

-4,745

Changes in 2017
Investments/loans advanced
Actuarial gains and losses
Share of profit of associates
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017

-12

0

-12

2,982

0

2,982

129,623

7,749

137,372
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"+)!DEFERRED!INCOME!TAX!ASSETS
Deferred income tax assets can be specified as follows:
2016

2017

192

179

Recognised tax losses

8,062

10,223

At 31 December

8,254

10,402

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Ordina N.V. heads the fiscal unit for corporate income tax in the Netherlands. Consequently, Ordina N.V.
accounts for the fiscal positions of this fiscal unit, insofar as these are not already accounted for by the other
members of the fiscal unit.

The deferred income tax assets by virtue of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment relates to
temporary measurement diﬀerences due to the diﬀerence between actual economic write-down period and
the minimum fiscal write-down period. Recognition is at the set tax rates.
Tax losses are recognised if they are expected to be utilised (total at year-end 2017: approximately EUR 40.9
million; year-end 2016: approximately EUR 32.2 million). Recognition is at the tax rate that will apply to
future financial years. For details on the scale and measurement of Ordina’s compensable losses, see Note
10.

",)!EQUITY
Movements in equity in 2016 and 2017 were as follows:

At 1 January 2016

Issued
capital

Share
premium
reserve

Statutory
reserve

Retained
earnings

Profit for
the year

Total

9,296

135,855

4,136

-4,360

-3,168

141,759

Prior-year retained earnings

0

0

0

-3,168

3,168

0

Dividend distribution to shareholders

0

0

0

0

0

0

Actuarial gains and losses

0

0

0

-38

0

-38

Issue related to share-based payment

30

364

0

-394

0

0

Movements regarding to share-based
payment

0

0

0

645

0

645

Profit for the year

0

0

0

0

5,038

5,038

0

0

1,536

-1,536

0

0

9,326

136,219

5,672

-8,851

5,038

147,404

Movement regarding statutory reserve
At 31 December 2016
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Issued
capital

Share
premium
reserve

Statutory
reserve

9,326

136,219

5,672

Prior-year retained earnings

0

0

Dividend distribution to shareholders

0

0

Actuarial gains and losses

0

Issue related to share-based payment

0

Share based payments - treasury shares
settlement

At 1 January 2017

Retained Profit for the
earnings
year

Total

-8,851

5,038

0

5,038

-5,038

0

0

-1,865

0

-1,865

0

0

-12

0

-12

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-503

0

-503

Share based payments - cash settlement

0

0

0

-597

0

-597

Share-based payments - personnel
expenses

0

0

0

239

0

239

Profit for the year

0

0

0

0

3,110

3,110

0

0

-2,613

2,613

0

0

9,326

136,219

3,059

-3,938

3,110

147,776

Movement regarding statutory reserve
At 31 December 2017

147,404

The share premium reserve at year-end 2017 includes share premium of approximately EUR 2.9 million
which does not qualify as tax approved share premium related to share- based payments (year-end 2016:
around EUR 2.9 million).
The statutory reserve relates to the carrying amounts of the internally generated intangible assets (see
Section 2.6.2 and Note 7).
Ordina N.V. had not purchased any treasury shares at year-end 2016 and year-end 2017.
At year-end 2016 and year-end 2017, there were no outstanding option rights for Ordina N.V. shares.
For details on the remuneration of the members of the Management Board, see Note 31.2.2.

Nieuwegein, 14 February 2018

Management Board
J. Maes, CEO
J.W. den Otter, CFO
Supervisory Board
J.G. van der Werf, Chairman
P.G. Boumeester, Vice-Chairman
D.J. Anbeek
A. Kregting
J. Niessen
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LIST!OF!GROUP!COMPANIES!/!
PRINCIPAL!ASSOCIATES

Registered oﬃce

Participation as a % at
year-end 2017

Ordina Holding B.V.*

Nieuwegein

100

Ordina Nederland B.V.*

Nieuwegein

100

Ordina Business Consulting & Solutions B.V.*

Nieuwegein

100

Ordina Technologie & Competenties B.V.*

Nieuwegein

100

Ordina Software Development B.V.*

Nieuwegein

100

Ordina Beheer & Outsourcing B.V.*

Nieuwegein

100

Clockwork B.V.*

Amsterdam

100

SourcePower B.V.*
Ordina Belgium N.V.
Ordina Luxembourg SA

Nieuwegein

100

Mechelen (België)

100

Windhof (Luxemburg)

100

All group companies listed above are fully consolidated. The company has issued declarations of joint and
several liability (pursuant to Section 403, Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code) for the subsidiaries
marked *. These companies were given permission to prepare financial statements based on a format that is
in contravention of the provisions of this Part.
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INDEPENDENT!AUDITOR’S!REPORT
For the Independent Auditor’s Report we refer to page 159 in the Dutch version of the annual report 2017.

ASSURANCE!REPORT
For the Assurance Report we refer to page 168 in the Dutch version of the annual report 2017.
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LEGAL!ORGANOGRAM!ORDINA

Ordina Luxembourg S.A.

Ordina
Belgium N.V.
Passwerk CVBA (37,51%)

Ordina N.V.

Ordina
Holding B.V.

Ordina Business Consulting
& Solutions B.V.

Clockwork B.V.

Ordina Technologie
& Competenties B.V.

Ordina So"ware
Development B.V.

Ordina
Nederland
B.V.

Ordina Beheer
& Outsourcing B.V.

Ordina Sourcing B.V.

Facilitaire Diensten Ordina B.V.

SourcePower B.V.

Quli B.V. (25%)

Not recognised in Ordina’s consolidated statements (minority interest)
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General terms

Service with an impact: Service with an impact

Agile and DevOps: Agile is related to the 12

refers to services Ordina provides that have a

principles of the Agile Manifesto for the production

tangible impact on sustainability. Ordina measures

of software. The best developers also use these

this impact by assessing the project on the basis of

principles in their day-to-day activities.

the most relevant issues included in the materiality
matrix, which has been drawn up in line with the

‘Agile’ literally means: agile. In the IT world, it refers

guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative G4.

to software development in short, clearly

A project has to score a minimum number of points

demarcated periods, often less than a month and

to be classified as a trend-setting project.

sometimes no more than a week. These periods are
referred to as iterations and each one is like a mini

FTE: Number of employees expressed in full-time

project in itself.

equivalents (40 hours per week). The average

DevOps is a new principle that was prompted by the

number of employees in FTEs is determined on the

frustration arising from the fact that many IT

basis of roster days compared to workable days

projects in the field of software are delivered after

during a period. The FTEs at end-period figure is

the deadline, do not perform as planned and do not

determined on the basis of contractual employment

generate a return on investment. The word DevOps

agreements with Ordina (this is excluding any

comes from the terms ‘developer’ and ‘system

mandatory leave options, such as maternity or

operator’. DevOps represents a development

paternity leave).

method in which new code is written in an agile way
that can run in a stable fashion (error-free) in a

Global Reporting Initiative: International

production environment and for which the

organisation that draws up guidelines for corporate

developer remains responsible.

social responsibility reporting.

Bitcoin: Bitcoin is a form of electronic currency,

Inclusive organisation (inclusivity): An

as well as the name of the open source software

organisation that has room for diﬀerences in the

designed for the use of the currency. Bitcoins can

broadest sense of the word.

be stored on a personal computer in the form of a
wallet file or managed by a third party, a bitcoin

Employee Engagement Survey (EES): Ordina

wallet service.

measures employee engagement on an annual basis
to gain insight into the current mindset within

Blockchain: A Blockchain is a network in which all

Ordina. It enables us to focus eﬀorts on areas where

players are directly connected to each other and

improvements are needed and further improve the

jointly share and maintain an administration.

working climate for all employees. Employees are

Changes in this administration must meet the rules

able to express their views anonymously on the

programmed into the Blockchain. They must also be

basis of a questionnaire.

validated by the players in the network before they
are incorporated in the joint administration. The

Since 2015, we have included two questions relating

joint administration in a Blockchain grows and

to inclusivity in the employee engagement survey:

builds on the past.

• I believe Ordina devotes suﬃcient attention to
diversity within the organisation (diﬀerences in

Broker: A broker is an organisation that acts as an

culture, beliefs, ethnic background, sexual

intermediary and brings together supply and

orientation)

demand.

• I feel that it is possible to express diverging

Cloud-native architecture: Architecture

The score on these questions is on a scale of 1 to 10

specifically designed for cloud environments.

(1 = entirely disagree | 10 = entirely agree).

opinions within my own unit
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Ordina Promotor Score (OPS): The OPS is used to
measure client satisfaction. The OPS is part of the
Service Excellence Programme, the aim of which is
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Financial terms

Amortisation: the depreciation of intangible fixed
assets such as goodwill.

to gauge the perception, satisfaction and
expectations of our clients by objective means.

Dutch GAAP: The accounting policies for financial
reporting generally accepted in the Netherlands

The largest clients in The Netherlands and Belgium

(Annual reporting guidelines) and the legal

are invited for interviews. The OPS is measured by

provisions with respect to financial statements, as

asking the question: ‘If someone is looking for a

laid down in Section 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil

partner for his/her services; how would you

Code.

recommend Ordina as a partner?’
EBIT: earnings before interest and taxes.
Ordina calculates the score as the diﬀerence
between the percentage ‘Excellent’ and ‘Good’

EBITDA: earnings before interest, taxes,

(Promotors) and ‘Insuﬃcient’ and ‘Bad’

depreciation and amortisation.

(Criticasters). The OPS is expressed as an absolute
number between -100 and +100.

IFRS EU: International Financial Reporting
Standards are the accounting standards for

In 2016, Ordina adjusted the OPS measurement in

company annual reports, as accepted within the

the Netherlands. In previous years, interviewees

European Union. With eﬀect from 1 January 2005,

who declined to give an opinion were included in

stock exchange listed companies in the EU are

the survey as so-called passives, and exerted a

obliged to report according to these standards.

downward pressure on the score. In 2016, a

Solvency: shareholders’ equity as a percentage of

relatively large proportion of interviewees (15% vs.

the balance sheet total (fixed assets and current

6% in 2014 and 2015) declined to give an opinion,

assets).

and in many cases this was a matter of principle or
group provides a much better picture of client

Terms and measurements used for
CSR results

satisfaction. In line with this, we restated the score

Fuel consumption reduction in litres: the fuel

to 72% in 2016 vs. 67% and 65% in 2015 and 2014

consumption of the lease cars in the Ordina fleet.

respectively. According to the old methodology, the

The number of lease cars per category (diesel,

score would have come out at 61%, 63% and 62%

petrol, LPG) and total fuel consumption are

respectively.

reported monthly by the lease companies and fuel

of company policy. The score excluding this target

card companies in the Netherlands, Belgium and
Ordina is planning to invite its largest clients in

Luxembourg.

both the Netherlands and Belgium to take part in
a survey. This will measure the OPS by asking the
following question: ‘If someone is looking for a
partner for his/her services, how would you
recommend Ordina as a partner?

CO2 footprint: the quantity of emissions expressed

in tonnes of CO2. These emissions fall under scope
1, 2 and 3 emissions as defined in the CO2

Performance ladder guide 3.0 produced by Stichting
Klimaatvriendelijk Aanbesteden en Ondernemen

Client satisfaction index (KTI): The KTI is a client

(The Foundation for Climate Friendly Procurement

satisfaction survey conducted among our clients in

and Business - SKAO) dated 10-06-2015. The

the Netherlands and Belgium/Luxembourg. We

conversion factors Ordina uses are also derived from

measure the general satisfaction of our clients and

this guide. You can find these online at www.

conduct research on Ordina’s image.

co2emissiefactoren.nl (Dutch only).

Ratio of men/women: the ratio of men to women

calculation includes the following components:

working at Ordina.

• Gas consumption: the gas consumption (in m3)

CO2 footprint calculation: Ordina’s CO2 footprint

in the buildings that Ordina leases, corrected for
Sickness-related absenteeism percentage (ZVP):
Calculation of the number of sickness-related

any sub-leases;
• Fuel consumption lease cars: the fuel

absentee days in the period / number of available

consumption of the lease cars per category

days in the period x 100%. This takes into account

(diesel, petrol, LPG) in the Ordina fleet

the % of sick people and the % of employment

(statements from lease companies and fuel card

contacts.

companies);
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• Electricity consumption: the electricity
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Energy reduction per work station for gas: reduction

consumption (in kWh) in the buildings that

in gas consumption (in m3) per work station (see

Ordina leases, corrected for any sub-leases;

below) in the buildings that Ordina leases, corrected

• Business kilometres private cars: in the

for any sub-leases.

Netherlands, these kilometres are determined on
the basis of the amounts claimed as expenses for

FTEs: number of employees expressed in number of

business kilometres. The amount is converted

full-time-equivalents (40 hours per week),

into the number of kilometres on the basis of a

measured on the basis of roster days compared to

conversion factor laid down in the employment

workable days during a given period.

terms and conditions (standard amount per
kilometre). The division into categories of car

Average score for training courses (Belgium):

(diesel, petrol, LPG) is on the basis of the index

Ordina sends an evaluation form to around 30% of

figures produced by the Dutch Central Bureau for

the participants in its training courses. The score is

Statistics (CBS). This does not apply to Belgium/

measured via the question: ‘overall score for my

Luxembourg;

training course’. The score for this question is given

• Fuel consumption lease cars: the fuel
consumption of the lease cars per category

on a scale of 1-10. The response rate was 38% in
2017.

(diesel, petrol, LPG) in the Ordina fleet
(statements from lease companies and fuel card

Inclusivity: (see under General terms) is measured

companies);

on the basis of two questions in our annual

• Air travel: the number of kilometres flown (does
not apply to Belgium/Luxembourg);
• Paper use: the number kilogrammes of paper

Employee Engagement Survey. The two questions
are: whether there is room within Ordina for
diﬀerent opinions and whether Ordina devotes

used, including printed matter (determined on

suﬃcient attention to diversity within the

the basis of invoices received);

organisation.

• Train kilometres: in the Netherlands, these

Oranje Fonds: the largest Dutch social fund. The

kilometres are determined on the basis of the

fund supports social welfare initiatives in the

amounts claimed as expenses for public transport

Netherlands and the Caribbean part of the

costs. The amount is converted into the number

Kingdom.

of kilometres on the basis a conversion factor laid
down in the employment terms and conditions

Ordina Foundation: Ordina gives its employees

(standard amount per kilometre). This does not

the opportunity to support their own projects by

apply to Belgium/Luxembourg;

oﬀering know-how and expertise. The sponsoring

• Commuter traﬃc: this is calculated on the basis

takes the form of services, with both Ordina and the

of the distance travelled from home to work for

employee investing their time. Via the Ordina

employees who do not have a lease car (calculated

Foundation, we support concrete, short-term social

on the basis of 241 work days per year)

welfare projects that are close to our core business.

• Waste: the number of kilogrammes of waste. In
the Netherlands, this is calculated on the basis of

Degree of participation (Belgium): The number

invoices received. In Belgium/Luxembourg,

of unique participants in training courses compared

Ordina receives statements from the company

with the total number of participants.

that picks up the waste.
• Electricity consumption suppliers: electricity

Security training courses: This KPI pertains to the

consumption (in kWh) of the data centres that

number of professionals who have taken the

Ordina uses. In the Netherlands, this is

Security & privacy e-leaning course. Ordina

determined on the basis of invoices received or

measures this KPI in numbers per training course.

meter readings. In Belgium/Luxembourg,
electricity consumption (in kWh) is calculated on

Heating degree days (HDD): To enable the

the basis of quarterly readings.

accurate measurement of the eﬀects of rises or
drops in gas consumption and electricity

Energy reduction per work station for

consumption, Ordina looks at the number of

electricity: reduction in electricity consumption

heating degree days (HDD). The heating degree days

(in kWh) per work station (see below) in the

are downloaded from the internet: http://www.kwa.

buildings that Ordina leases, corrected for any

nl/graaddagen-en-koeldagen (De Bilt).

sub-leases.
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Work stations: The number of work stations (desk
with chair), measured on the basis of up-to-date
drawings of the buildings that Ordina leases.

!#)

General
standard
disclosures

Disclosure

Location disclosure component

Page number or link
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GRI-INDEX

Strategy and analysis
G4-1

Statement from the most senior decision-maker in the organisation.

Interview with the Management Board

4

G4-2

Description of key impacts, risks and opportunities.

Strategy, Risks

29, 72

Organisation profile
G4-3

Name of the organisation.

Ordina N.V.

G4-4

Location of the organisation's headquarters.

Nieuwegein

locations

G4-5

Primary brands, products and/or services.

About Ordina

5

G4-6

The number of countries where the organisation operates, and names of countries where either the
organi- sation has signi cant operations or that are speci cally relevant to the sustainability topics
covered in the report.

Netherlands, Belgium/Luxembourg, About Ordina

5, locations

G4-7

Ownership and legal form.

Legal organogram, Financial statements (Group companies / Principal
associates)

159, 157

G4-8

Markets served (including geographic breakdown, sectors served, and types of customers / bene
ciaries)

About Ordina, Strategy

5, 30

G4-9

Scale of the reporting organisation.

Key figures, Financial statements

9, 100

G4-10

The total number of employees by employment contract and gender; the total number of permanent
employees by employment type and gender; total workforce by employees and supervised workers
and by gender; total workforce by region and gender; portion of the organisation’s work performed by
workers who are legally recognised as self-employed, or by individuals other than employees or
supervised workers, including employees and supervised employees of contractors; signi cant
variations in employ- ment numbers (such as seasonal variations in employment in the tourism or
agricultural industries).

Key figures, About Ordina, Financial statements

5, 9, 100

G4-12

The reporting organisation's supply chain.

Strategy, About Ordina, Corporate Social Responsibility,
Materiality matrix

5, 30, 60, Materiality matrix

G4-13

Signi cant changes during the reporting period regarding the organisation’s size, structure, ownership,
or its supply chain.

About Ordina, Financial statements (Group companies / Principal associates)

5, 162

G4-14

Explanation of how the organisation addresses the precautionary principle.

Strategy, Governance

30, 80

G4-15

Externally developed economic, environmental and social charters, principles, or other initiatives to
which the organisation subscribes or which it endorses.

About Ordina, Corporate Social Responsibility

5, 60

G4-16

Memberships of associations (such as industry associations) and national or international advocacy
organisations.

Nederland ICT

!"#

G4-17

All entities included in the organisation’s consolidated nancial statements or equivalent documents.

Consolidated financial statements

100

G4-18

The process for de ning the report content and the aspect boundaries, as well as how the organisation
has implemented the reporting principles for de ning report content.

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-19

List of material aspects identi ed in the process for de ning report content.

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-20

Identi cation of the boundaries of aspects within the organisation.

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

Stakeholder engagement
G4-24

List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation.

Corporate Social Responsibility (Stakeholder dialogue), Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-25

Basis for identi cation and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage.

Corporate Social Responsibility (Stakeholder dialogue), Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-26

The organisation’s approach to stakeholder engagement, including frequency of engagement by type
and by stakeholder group.

Corporate Social Responsibility (Stakeholder dialogue), Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-27

Key topics and concerns that have been raised through stakeholder engagement, and how the
organisation has responded to those key topics and concerns, including through its reporting.

Corporate Social Responsibility (Stakeholder dialogue), Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix
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Identified material aspects and boundaries

Report profile
G4-28

Reporting period (such as scal or calendar year) for information provided.

2017

G4-29

Date of the most recent report.

Ordina Annual Report 2016 (published 16 February 2017)

G4-30

Reporting cycle.

Annual

G4-31

The contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents.

Colophon

169

G4-32

GRI - the ‘in accordance’ option the organisation has chosen, the GRI content index for the chosen
option and reference to the External Assurance Report.

Materiality matrix, GRI

164, Materiality matrix

Governance structure
G4-34

The governance structure of the organisation, including committees of the highest governance body,
which are responsible for speci c tasks such as determining strategy or supervision of the
organisation.

About Ordina, Governance, Report Supervisory Board

5, 88

G4-38

Composition of the highest governance body and its committees.

About Ordina, Governance, Report Supervisory Board

5, 80, 88

G4-39

Report whether the chair of the highest governance body is also an executive o cer.

About Ordina, Governance, Report Supervisory Board

5, 80, 88

G4-40

Nomination and selection processes for the highest governance body and its committees, and

Report Supervisory Board, Regulations Supervisory Board, Profile Supervisory
Board, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance

G4-41

Processes for the highest governance body to ensure con icts of interest are avoided.

Report Supervisory Board, Regulations Supervisory Board, Corporate
Governance Statement

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance

G4-42

The highest governance body’s and senior executives’ roles in the development, approval, and
updating of the organisation’s purpose, value or mission statements, strategies, policies, and goals
related to economic, environmental and social impacts.

Report Supervisory Board, Regulations Supervisory Board, Corporate
Governance Statement

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance

G4-43

Measures taken to develop and enhance the highest governance body’s collective knowledge of
economic, environmental and social topics.

Report Supervisory Board, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Corporate Governance

G4-44

Processes for evaluation of the highest governance body’s performance with respect to governance
of economic, environmental and social topics. Actions taken in response to evaluation of the highest
governance body’s performance with respect to governance of economic, environmental and social
topics, including, as a minimum, changes in membership and organisational practice.

Report Supervisory Board, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Corporate Governance

!"$

The highest governance body’s role in the identi cation and management of economic, environmental
and social impacts, risks, and opportunities. The use of stakeholder consultation to support the
highest governance body’s identi cation and management of economic, environmental and social
impacts, risks, and opportunities.

Report Supervisory Board, Regulations Supervisory Board, Corporate
Governance Statement

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance

G4-46

The highest governance body’s role in reviewing the e ectiveness of the organisation’s risk
management processes for economic, environmental and social topics.

Report Supervisory Board, Regulations Supervisory Board,
Regulations Audit Committee, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance

G4-47

The frequency of the highest governance body’s review of economic, environmental and social

Report Supervisory Board, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Corporate Governance

G4-48

The highest committee or position that formally reviews and approves the organisation’s
sustainability report and ensures that all material Aspects are covered.

Report Supervisory Board, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Corporate Governance

G4-49

The process for communicating critical concerns to the highest governance body.

Report Supervisory Board, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance

G4-50

The nature and total number of critical concerns that were communicated to the highest governance
body and the mechanism(s) used to address and resolve them.

Report Supervisory Board, Corporate Governance Statement

88, Corporate Governance

G4-51

The remuneration policies for the highest governance body and senior executives.

Report Supervisory Board, Remuneration policy Management Board, Corporate
Governance

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance

G4-52

The process for the determination of remuneration.

Report Supervisory Board, Remuneration policy Management Board, Corporate
Governance

88, Supervisory Board,
Corporate Governance
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G4-45

Ethics and integrity
G4-56

Description of the organisation’s values, principles, standards and norms of behaviour such as codes
of conduct and codes of ethics

About Ordina, Governance

5, 80

G4-57

Internal and external mechanisms for seeking advice on ethical and lawful behaviour, and matters
related to organisational integrity

About Ordina, Governance

5, 80

G4-58

Internal and external mechanisms for reporting concerns about unethical or unlawful behavior, and
matters related to organizational integrity, such as escalation through line management,
whistleblowing mechanisms or hotlines

About Ordina, Governance, Code of Conduct

5, 80, Corporate
Governance

Strategy

29

Disclosure on Management Approach
G4-DMA
Economic performance
G4-EC1

Direct economic value generated and distributed

Key figures, Financial statements

9, 100

G4-EC2

Financial implications and other risks and opportunities for the organisation's activities as a result of
climate change

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EC3

Coverage of the organisation's de ned pension scheme obligations

Financial statements (note 18)

137

Environmental
G4-EN3

Energy consumption within the organisation

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EN4

Energy consumption within the organisation

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EN5

Energy intensity

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EN6

Reduction of energy intensity

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EN7

Reduction in energy consumption of products and services

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

!""

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1)

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EN16

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (scope 2)

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EN18

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-EN19

Reduction of greenhouse gas emissions

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

Key figures, About Ordina, Financial statements (note 22)

9, 142

Social: labour
G4-LA1

The total number and rate of new employee hires and employee turnover during the reporting period,
by age group, gender and region
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G4-EN15

Social: society
G4-SO1

The percentage of operations with implemented local community engagement, impact assessments,
and development programmes

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-SO2

Signi cant impact of operations on local communities

Corporate Social Responsibility, Materiality matrix

60, Materiality matrix

G4-SO4

Communication and training on anti-corruption policies and procedures

Governance, Materiality matrix, Corporate Governance

80, Materiality matrix,
Corporate Governance

G4-SO5

Con rmed incidents of corruption and actions taken

Governance, Materiality matrix, Corporate Governance

80, MMateriality matrix,
Corporate Governance

Strategy

30

Social: Product Responsibility
G4-PR5

Results of surveys measuring customer satisfaction

!"%

EU Directive Non-Financial Information and Diversity information reference table

Topic

Subtopic

Included
(yes/no)

Chapter / Page reference

Business model

N/A

Yes

Company Profile/Organisational Structure (page 6)

Relevant social and personnel maters
(e.g. HR, safety etc.)

A description of the policies pursued, including due dilligence.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

The outcome of those policies.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

Principle risks in own operations and within value chain.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

How risks are managed.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

Non-financial key performance indicators.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

A description of the policies pursued, including due dilligence.

Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility (page 60)

The outcome of those policies.

Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility (page 60)

Principle risks in own operations and within value chain.

Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility (page 60)

How risks are managed.

Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility (page 60)

Non-financial key performance indicators.

Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility (page 60)

A description of the policies pursued, including due dilligence.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

The outcome of those policies.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

Principle risks in own operations and within value chain.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

How risks are managed.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

Non-financial key performance indicators.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

A description of the policies pursued, including due dilligence.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

The outcome of those policies.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

Principle risks in own operations and within value chain.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

How risks are managed.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

Non-financial key performance indicators.

Yes

Integrity (page 28)

A description of the policies pursued.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

Diversity targets.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

Description of how the policy is implemented.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

Results of the diversity policy.

Yes

Report of the Supervisory Board (page 88)

Relevant Environmental maters (e.g. climaterelated impacts)

Relevant matters with respect for human
rights (e.g. labour protection)

Relevant matters with respect to anticorruption and bribery

Insight into the diversity (executive board
and the supervisory board)
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